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City of Albany

Post Office Box 447
Albany, Georgia
31702-0447

December 28, 2008

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
Of the City Commission
City of Albany, Georgia

[ am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Albany, Georgia (the “City"} for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009. The Finance Department is responsible for preparing this report. Management is responsible for the content of the report,
accuracy of the presented data, and completenass and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures. We believe the data, as presented, is
accurate in alt material respects. This belief is based on a comprehensive system of internal controls for this purpose. The objective is to provide
reasonable, rather that absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. Therefore, it is presented in a
manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various
funds, and all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified opinion on the City of Albany's financial statements for the fiscal
year ending Jung 30, 2008, The independent auditer's report is located at the beginning of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis of the basic financial statemanis. The MD&A will complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction
with it.



PROFILE OF GOVERNMENT

Situated in the Plantation Trace region, Albany is the primary trade center for Southwest Georgia. It is the county seat for Dougherty County,
Georgia. Incorporated in 1841, the city lies as the head of the Flint River, 145 miles south of Atlanta and 95 miles north of Tallahassee, Florida.
The city was laid out in 1836 by Alexander Shotwell and named for Albany, New York. The City of Albany and Dougherty County enjoy a good
working relationship. As of the 2000 Census, the population of Albany was 76,939.°

Albany has developed a diversified industrial economy, which includes companies such as Proctor & Gamble, Miller/Coors, and Masterfoods. The
chief farm products are cotton, peanuts, corn, and tobacco, and to a lesser extent, paper-shell pecans and forest products.

The City of Albany was originally incorporated by an Act of the General Assembly of Georgia on December 27, 1838, and has operated under the
Commission-Manager form of government since January 14, 1924. The seven-member commission consists of a Mayor elected at large and six
Commissioners elected on a ward basis. The Commission appoints the City Manager, City Clerk, Assistant City Clerk, City Attorney, Municipal
Court Judge, City Solicitor, and Pubiic Defender. The City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) charged with the enforcement of the laws
and ordinances passed by the Commission. The Commission also appoints members to various Boards, Authorities, and other Commissions.

This report includes all funds and account groups of the primary government {City of Albany), as well as all of its component units. Component
units are iegally separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable. The Water, Gas and Light Commission of Albany,
the Chehaw Park Authority, and the Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority (ADICA) are independent entities whose financial health and,
accordingly, they have been included as part of the City’s reporting entity. The City provides a full range of services including police and fire
protection; solid waste services; road maintenance, streets, storm and sanitary sewers; and recreational activities and cultural events. In addition
io these general governmental activities, the City has a transit system, cemetery, airport, civic center, and golf course.

*Source: Albany Chamber of Commerce www.albanyga.us
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK

The City of Albany is the county seat of Dougherty County and serves as the distribution, retail and wholesale trade, communication, and medical
center for southwest Georgia, a seven county area. In October 2005, Dougherty County was designated as “Entrepreneur Friendly Community” by
the State of Georgia.

It is anticipated that it will take several years for the state’s economy to recover from the recent recession. Georgia was affected somewhat worse
than other states by the recession. This is due primarily fo an overdependence on homebuilding. It is anticipated that the manufacturing sector
will continue to lose jobs, but at much slower rate. Manufacturing sub-sectors with the best immediate prospects for job growth - or at least job
stability - inciude wood products, nonmetallic mineral products, and transportation equipment. Once the housing market begins to rebound, retiree-
based economic development will be an increasingly important factor in Georgia growth.

Albany will see improvements in its focal economy more slowly than other areas of the state. Matters that will compound the focal economy’s woes
are the closing of Cooper Tire piant in 2009, declining retall sales, and a slowly growing population. The Cooper Tire closure will lead to the
eventual loss of approximately 2,400 jobs. Despite this, the City of Albany has managed o maintain a healthy financial position.

The State of Georgia and several local governments have had to eliminate positions during FY 2009 due to continuing budget difficulties. The City
of Albany did not eliminate positions nor enact any furloughs in FY 2009. This is due to stringent budget controls, continuous financial monitoring,
and a mid-year cost reduction plan initiated by the City Manager.

For higher education, Albany has two hometown colleges, a progressive technical college, and a job corps center. Albany State University is a
senior unit of the University System of Georgia. With more than 40 major fields of study, the college offers undergraduate and graduate degree
programs. The University maintains flexible scheduling for the growing number of non-iraditional students. Darton College is a two-year unit of
University System of Georgia. Students can pursue over 70 two-year transfer and career associate degrees. Albany Technical College is a unit of
the Georgia Department of Technical and Adult Education. Turner Job Corps Center also serves the Albany area as a fully accredited Vocational
Education Institute, providing high quality academic and vocational training programs to prepare students {ages 16 ~ 24) to take their places in
today’s technical work force. Turner has over 20 vocational trades from which the 930-member student body may choose. The city is also served
by 16 public elementary schools, 10 pubiic secondary schools, 1 public alternative school and number of private schools.

2Albany Chamber of Cemmerce, from www.atbanyga.com
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FIVE YEAR STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL PLAN

In 2005, Albany accepied the chalienge of change management. The Mayor and Board of City Commissioners hired a management consulting
firm to work with staff to develop a comprehensive Five-Year Strategic and Financial Pian for the City of Albany. The City of Albany has commiited
itseif to continuatly improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the organization. In an effort to maintain this commitment, the City Manager has
agreed to update the City’s Five-Year Strategic and Financial Plan periodically. The City’s staff will perform this task on a biannual basis.

The City outlined six major goals during its most recent strategic plan update:
¢ Improve Public Safety - reducing the impact of gangs and increasing crime prevention
¢ Improve City beautification and Code Enforcement efforts
» [mprove economic development with emphasis on downtown Albany
s  Reduce poverty
» Enhance community, cultural and recreational opportunities
» Storm water system renovation and sewer separation

Major objectives for these goals have also been developed:

¢ To establish competitive comparisons for pay and benefits

o To develop innovative communication methedologies, such as kiosks or a 311 service
o To create an internal bulletin board or intranet for employee communications

¢ To develop and practice & "business-friendly” atmosphere

e To improve downtown Albany revitalization efforts

¢ To establish and maintain a wellness program for employees

These objectives are scheduled to be compleied within the next five years.

The City Manager incorporated proven measurement and management practices and tools that addressed improving the services provided to its
citizens as well as maintaining responsible control of revenues and expenditures without sacrificing quality customer service. To accomplish the
goals, two practices were implemented for use by all departments that would put the plans into action and assist in allocating task and
responsibilities.



The first practice is project management. Project development, resource allocation, and progress for major City projects are systematically
documented. Project managers meet with the City Manager regularly to discuss the progress of each project.

The second practice is staff performance measurement. The City Manager, as well as senior management, believes that every employee should
know how their employer rates their performance. The City also affirms that every employee should make a positive contribution fo the
organization. Each staff member's performance is documenied and monitered on a routine basis. Performance evaluations are conducted for
every City staff member at least twice a year

The City uses two software packages for managing these new practices-Microsoft Project and Performance Pro. These packages have been
adopted and have transformed the culture throughout the organization. Training is ongoing for the tools and employees’ proficiency is steadily
improving.

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax V - The City of Atbany and Dougherty County entered into an intergovernmental sales tax agreement and
in November 2004, voters approved the referendum to continue the 1% Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax {SPLOST). The amount to be
collected from the sales and use tax between April 1, 2005 and March 31, 2011 is estimated to be $108 million. Sixty-two percent, or $65.87
miition, of those funds is to be used for City administered projects and non-profit organizations. The City of Albany projects to be funded through
SPLOST V include: $5.5 million Civic Center debt retirement, $2.56 million Civic Center infrastructure improvements, $1.7 million Airport
improvement, $6.8 million upgrade to the 800 MHz radio and tower, $6.81 million for road improvements, $4.65 Public Safety equipment and
training facility, $3.14 million for the Recreation Master Plan and faciiity renovations, $1.75 fraffic improvements and GIS aerial photography, and
disparity study for $350,000. Also included are projects for community organizations and other capital purchases and improvements; $2 million fo
the Chehaw Wild Animal Park Authority, $3.5 million for the Thronateeska Heritage Center improvements, $3.57 million to the Albany Civil Rights
Museum, and $8.65 for Riverfront Park. Total revenue generated for fiscal year 2009 for SPLOST program was $9 million with expenditures
totaling $12 million. Most projects for this SPLOST series are complete. Therefore, spending should decrease until the end of the SPLOST series.
SPLOST revenue, however, has been drastically affected by a downturn in the economy. Consumers are spending less than in previous years.
Therefore, SPLOST collections for the City of Albany have significantly decreased- approximately 44% less than in FY 2008. A complete list of the
projects and further details regarding the program is available at www.atbany.ga.us




FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City
are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and o ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted and accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management

BUDGETARY CONTROL

The City maintains budgetary controis, the cbjectives of which are io ensure compliance with Georgia law and administrative policy embodied in the
annual appropriated budget duly approved by the City Commission in June of each year. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds,
and Debt Service Fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. Long-range capital projects are included in the forral operating budget.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to
reserve in the Capital Projects Funds, that are continuing.

CASH MANAGEMENT

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in interest-bearing demand deposits, repurchase agreements, certificates of deposits, and the
State of Georgia Local Government Investment Pool.  All investments are coliateralized as required by law. The Pension Fund assets are invested
in common stocks, corporate bonds and U.8. Government securities. The City’s invesiments, exclusive of the Pension Fund invesimenis are
classified in the categories of lower credit risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. All of the Pension Fund investments
are held in the name of the City’s agents for the beneficial ownership of the City of Albany’s Pension Plan.

Vi



OTHER INFORMATION

Henry Gortatowsky willed to the City various properiies from this esiate in 1996. The funds remaining in the trust wili go towards maintenance of
these properties. The financiat activity related to the Gortalowsky trust is reporied as a special revenue fund.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with governmental financial reporting guidelines issued by the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States and Canada and generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental entities. The City
requires an annual audit of all financial records and transactions of the City by an independent certified public accountant selected by the City's
Mayor and Board of Commissioners. The accouniing firm of Mauldin and Jenkins, LLC and their report on the basic financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included ir the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports on internal controls
and compliance with applicable laws and reguiations can also be found in this report.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Cfficers Association of the United States and Canada {GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the City of Albany, Georgia for its comprehensive annual financial reports for seventeen consecutive fiscal years from 1981
to 2008. The Cerlificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award-recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of
state and local government financia! reporis.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such a comprehensive annual financial report must satisfy both generally
accepted accouniing principles and applicable legal requirements

A Cerificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues fo conform to the Certificate of
Achievement program requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate award.

In addition, the Cily received the GFOA Distinguished Budget Award for the sixieenth consecutive year. In order to receive this award, a

governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an operating guide, as a financial guide,
and as a communication device.
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the financial operations of the City.

Most of all, we thank the citizens of Albany for their trust, unselfish community involvement, and belief in making Albany an exciting piace to live
and work.

Respectfully submitted,

Alfred D. Lott, ICMA-CM, CPM
City Manager

Krista M. Newion
Finance Department
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AULDIN
&JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Commission
City of Albany, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Albany, Georgia, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Albany, Georgia’'s management. Our responsibility is {o express opinions on these financial
statemenis based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audils contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance aboui whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit aiso inciudes assessing the accouniing principies used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. VWe believe that our audit provides & reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Albany, Georgia as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary compariscn for the General Fund and Community Development Fund for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

439 MULBERRY STREET - POST OFFICE BOX 1877 » MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 » 478-464-8000 « FAX 478-464-8031 + www.mijcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



As discussed in Note 1, the City changed its accounting and funding policies related to the City of Albany Pension Plan. The City
wiil now have a required contribution which is an actuarially determined percentage of payroll each year as opposed to a required coniribution egual
to a set dollar amount. This practice is allowed under generally accepted accounting principles and is preferable sc the City can ensure a direct
correlation of required contributions to actuai payroll.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28, 2009, on our
consideration of the City of Albany, Georgia’s internal conirof over financial reporting and on our tesis of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matiers. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinicn on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That repori is an infegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
censidered in assessing the resuits of our audit,

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 22 and the Required Supplementary information on page 113 are
not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Stales of America. We have applied cerfain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audii the information and express no
opinion on it.



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemenis that collectively comprise the City of
Albany, Georgia's basic financial statements. The intreductory section, combining and individua! nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the City of Albany, Georgia. The schedules of expenditures of special purpose local option sales tax proceeds are presented for
purpeses of additional analysis as required by the Official Code of Georgia 48-8-121 and are also not a required part of the basic financial
stalements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
the schedules of expenditures of special purpose local option sales tax proceeds have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are faitly presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures appiied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

P awtotinn ¥ Gendforar, XXC

Macon, Georgia
December 28, 2009



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

The City of Albany, Georgia's ("the City") Discussion and Analysis is designed to: (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues; (b)
provide an overview of the City’s financial activity; {c) identify changes in the City’s financial position; (d) identify any material deviations from the
financial plan (the approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Management's Discussion and Analysis ("The MD&A”) is an element of the new reporting medel adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments, issued June 1999; and GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statement — and Management Discussion and Analysis — for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus, an amendment o GASB Statement No. 21 and No. 34, and Statement No. 38 Cerfain Financial Statement
Disclosures, effective July 1, 2002.

The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal lefter, the basic firancial statements, and the accompanying notes to
those financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government wide Financial Statements

O At the close of the fiscal year, the assets of the City exceeded its Habilities by $244,557,185. Of this amount, $59,502,794 (24%) represents
unrestricted net asseis and may be used to meet the City’s cngoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

0 At the close of the current fiscal year, the net assets of the City's business-fype activities were $109,537 671. This represented an increase
of $2,718,288 (2.5%) over the prior year's net asset balance for business-type activilies.

O At the ciose of the current fiscal year, the net assets of the City’'s governmental activities were $135,019,514. This represented a decrease of
$1,638,991 {1.2%) over the prior year's net asset balance for governmental activities.

Fund Financial Statements

£1 The General Fund, the chief operating fund of the Cify, had a total fund balance of $22,922 770 as of June 30, 2009. Of this amount,
$18,627,452 (81.2%) was unreserved,

G The Generat Fund had revenues of $51,375,301 for the current fiscal year. Of this amount, $13,964,606 (27.2%) was from property iaxes
and $7,500,062 (14.6%) was from sales taxes.



Bebt Obligations

o Long-term debt obligaticns from governmental activities decreased 36,128,291 (17%) from $36,044,160 at June 30, 2008, to $25,914,869 at
June 30, 2008.

0 Long-term debt obligations from business type activities decreased $2,409,147 (6%) from §39,538,427 at June 30, 2008 to $37,129,280 at
June 30, 2009.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The MD&A is intended fo serve as an introduction ¢ the City’s basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements include three
components: (1) Government-wide financial statements; (2) Fund financial statements; and {3) Notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The governmeni-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City's finances, in 2 manner simitar tc a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s asseis and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases i net assels may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise o the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of refated cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses ara reperted in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statemenis distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(government activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, judicial, public safety, public works, culture and
recreation, and community developmeni. The business-type aclivities of the City include sanitary sewer, solid waste, transit, civic center, airport,
municipal auditorium, and public employee health plan.

Component units are included in the basic financial statements and consist of legally separate entities for which the City is financially accountable and
that have either the same governing board as the City or a governing board appcinted by the City of Albany. The City has two discretely presented
componeni units: (1) Chehaw Park Authority and (2) Water, Gas and Light Commission. These units are excluded from any activities or amounts
presented in the "Primary Government”.

The government-wide financiat statements can be found on pages 23 - 26 of this report.



Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, like other staie and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related legal requirements. Al of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, uniike the governmental-wide financial statements, governmentat fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on bafances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of ihe governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the leng-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
funds balance sheet and the governmental iunds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide reconciliation to the
government-wide financial statements in order to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains three {3) major governmental funds for financial reporting purposes. [nformation is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds siatement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund,
Community Development Fund, and SPLOST Fund.

Other non-major governmental funds include: Five (5) Special Revenue Funds (Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, Computer Aided Dispatch, Albany-Dougherty
inner City Authority, Grant Fund, and Goriatowsky Fund), one (1) Debt Service Fund; and one (1) Capital Projects Fund (Public Improvement Fund).
Data on these 7 non-major governmental funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the financial statements. Individual fund data
for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the non-major funds supplementary section of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general, special revenue, debt service and enterprise funds. The report contains a “Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual’ for the General and Major Special Revenue Funds. However,
additional budget information on the non-major funds is contained in the supplementary information. Note that capital additions that are not a part of
a separate fund are budgeted for in the General Fund.

The governmental funds financia! statements can be found on pages 27 - 34 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the governmeni-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate informaticn for major proprietary funds: the sanitary sewer, solid waste, airpori, and public
empioyee deposit funds.



The City maintains six (6) non-major proprietary funds. Three (3) of the non-major proprietary funds are enterprise funds (Transit Fund; Civic Center
Fund; and Municipal Auditorium Fund). These three enferprise funds collectively are reflected as "Other Enterprise Funds” on the Proprietary Funds
financial statements. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presenied as business-fype activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

The remaining three non-major proprietary funds are infernal service funds (Self Administered Insurance Fund; Long-term Disability Fund; and
Workers' Compensation Fund). These three internal service funds colieclively are reflected as “Internal Service Funds” on the Proprietary Funds
financial statements. Infernal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and aliocate costs internally among the City’s various
functions. Individual fund data for both the enterprise funds and the internal service funds is provided in the supplementary information section of this
report.

The proprietary funds financial statements can be found at pages 35 - 42 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds, which consisi solely of trust and agency funds, are used to account for resources held for the benefit of pariies
outside the City. Fiduciary funds are not included in the governmeni-wide financial statemenis because the resources are nof available o support the
City’s operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Details of the City’s Pension Fund, a fiduciary fund, can be found on pages 43 and 44 of the report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The notes to the basic financial statemenis provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the governmeni-wide and fund financial statements. The notes tc the basic financial statements begin on page
45 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This is the seventh year that the City of Albany has presented its financial siatements under the new reporting model required by GASE Statement
Nc. 34. This reporting model changed significantly both the recording and presentation of financial data. However, under this statement, the City is
not required to restate prior periods for the purposes of providing comparative informaticn. A comparative analysis of government-wide information
for fiscal years ending June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009, are included in this MD&A.

As noted earlier, net assels may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded
liabilities by $244 557,185 as of June 30, 2009.



As shown in Table 1, the largest portion of the City's net assets, $165.6 million (67.5%), reflects its investment in capital assets less any related
ouistanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to fiquidate liabilities. An
additional portion of the City’s net assets, $19.5 million (8%), represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.
The major restrictions on net assets are funding source restrictions. The remaining balance of total net assets of $60 million (24.5%) is unrestricted
and may be used to meet the City's obligations fo citizens and creditors in accordance with the finance-related legal requirements reflected in the
City's fund structure.

At the end of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City reported positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the City as a whole
as well as for its separaie governmental and business-type activities.

TABLE 1
City of Albany

Statement of Net Assets - Primary Government

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

FYz009 Fy2008 FY2009 FY2008 FY2008 FY2008
Current and Other Assets $ 78,777,966 $ 85,781,593 $ 26,826,710 $ 25,886,819  $105,704,678 $111,668,412
Capital Assels 96,368,312 94,153,287 123,385,793 124,849,223 219,764,105 219,002,520
TOTAL ASSETS 175,146,278 179,934,890 160,312,503 160,736,042 325,458,781 330,670,932
Current and Other
Liabilities 18,633,819 15,900,247 7,023,991 7,681,478 25,557,810 23,591,725
Long Term Liabilities 21,582 945 27,376,138 33,750,841 36,225,191 55,343,786 63,601,329
TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,126,764 43 276,385 40,774,832 43,916,669 80,901,596 87,193,064
Net Assets:
Invested in capital asset,

net of related debt 78,428,752 70,610,705 87,159,039 86,139,998 165,587,791 156,750,703

Restricted 16,456,922 20,208,767 3,009,678 575,157 19,466,600 20,784,924
Unrestricted 40,133,840 45,838,033 19,368,954 20,104,218 59,502,794 65,942 251
TOTAL NET ASSETS $135,019,514 $136,658,505 $109,537,671 $106,819,373  $244 857,185 $243,477 878




in Table 1 (a), the 2009 Statement of Net Assets is compared t¢ the resulis for the prior fiscal year. Note that the relationship between the Statement
of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities is such that the increase in net assets from one year to the next on Table 1(a) is equal fo the change in
net assets at the bottormn of Table 2 ($1,079,307). In Table 2(a), the 2008 and 2009 Statements of Aclivities for the primary government are
compared. Revenues decreased by $31.5 million from 2008 to 2009, the total expenditures for the same periods decreased by $12.2 million.

TABLE 1 (a)
City of Albany
Comparison of Net Assets for Primary Government
Fiscal Years 2008 and 2009
Total Primary Total Primary
Government Goverament Increase
FY 2008 FY 2008 {Decrease)
Current and Other Assets $ 105,704,676 3 111,668,412 3 (5,863,736)
Capital Assets 212,754 105 219,002 520 751,585
TOTAL ASSETS 325,458,781 330,670,832 (5,212,151)
Current and Other Liabilities 25,557,810 23,691,725 1,966,085
Long Term Liabilities 55,343,786 63,601,329 (8,257,543)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 80,901,588 87,193,054 {6,291,458)
Net Assets:
Invested in capital asset, net of
related debt: 165,587,791 158,750,703 8,837,088

Restricted 19,466,600 20,784,924 (1,318,324)
Unrestricted 59,502,794 65,842 251 (6,439,457
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 244 557 185 $ 243,477 878 $ 1,078,307




TABLE 2

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Centributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Generat Revenues:

Property taxes

Sales taxes
Other taxes

Investment income
Gain (loss) on sale or disposat
of capital assets

Transfers

TOTAL REVENUES

Expenses:

Generai government

Judicial
Public safety
Public works

Parks and recreation
Community development
Community service
interest on long-term debt

Sewer
Solid waste
Airport

Public Employee Deposit

Transit
Civic Center

Municipal Auditorium
TOTAL EXPENSES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets - Beg. Of Year

Net Assets - End Of Year

FY200¢ FY2008 FY2008 FY2008 FY2009 FY2008
6,900,390 § 9,572,360 § 38,080,115 & 44,941523 3 44,990,505 $ 54,513,883
18,090,264 16,310,671 1,678,305 2,321,938 19,768,569 17,632,509
2,033,058 15,916,286 2,872,902 5,818,085 4,905,960 21,734,371
13,964,606 14,778,748 13,564,606 14,776,748
18,269,427 23,380,560 18,268,427 23,380,560
9,513,267 9,411,907 9,513,267 9,411,907
1,163,072 1,136,934 251,223 662,182 1,414,285 1,799,116
(2,883,904) (2,543,171) 2,883,904 2,543,171 - -
67,050,180 86,862,195 45,776,449 56,286,899 112,826,629 143,249,084
12,215,564 13,063,421 - - 12,215,564 13,063,421
952,323 910,240 - - 952,323 910,240
31,206,297 30,268,106 - - 31,206,297 30,268,106
7,695,464 8,306,157 - - 7,695,464 8,306,157
8,079,385 12,818,108 - - 9,079,385 12,818,108
5,591,053 7,497,726 - - 5,591,053 7,497,726
399,347 336,411 - - 399,347 336,411
1,549,738 1515177 - - 1,549,738 1.86156177
- - 14,402,908 13,503,253 14,402,908 13,503,253
- - 8,499,618 8,206,745 8,499,618 8,206,745
- - 2,415,280 2,195,398 2,415,280 2,195,298
- - 13,042,126 19,935,572 13,042,126 19,935,572
- - 2,902,880 3,435,890 2,902,980 3,435,880
- - 1,603,124 1,807,638 1,603,124 1,807,638
- - 192,119 160,829 192,119 160,829
68,689,171 74,715,346 43,058,151 49,245,325 111,747,322 123,860,671
(1.638,281) 12,246,349 2,718,298 7.041,574 1,079,307 19,288,423
136,658,505 124,411,656 106,819,373 99,777,799 243,477,878 224,189,455
135,019,514 § 136,658,505 § 108,537 671 $ 106,819,373 § 244 557 185 $ 243,477,878
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TABLE 2 (a)

City of Albany

Comparison of Statement of Activities for Primary Government

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Granis and Contributions

General Revenues:

Property taxes

Sales taxes

Other taxes

Investment income
TOTAL REVENUES
Expenses:

General government

Judicial

Public safety

Public warks

Parks and recreation

Community development

Community service

Interest on long-term debt

Sewer

Solid waste

Airport

Public employee deposit

Transit

Civic Center

Municipal Auditorium
TOTAL EXPENSES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Total Primary
Government
Activities- 2008

Fiscal Years 2008 and 2009

Total Primary
Government

Activities- 2009

Increase
(Decrease)

54,513,883 $ 44,990,505 $  (9,523,378)
17,632,509 19,768,569 2,136,080
21,734,371 4,905,960 (16,828,411)
14,776,748 13,964,606 (812,142)
23,380,560 18,269,427 (5,111,133)
9,411,907 9,513,267 101,360
2,917,716 1,414,295 (1,503,421)
144 367 694 112,826,629 (31,541,065)
13,083,421 12,215,564 (847,857)
910,240 952,323 42,083
30,268,106 31,206,297 938,191
8,308,157 7,695,484 (610,693)
12,818,108 9,079,385 (3,738,723)
7,497,726 5,591,053 (1,906,673)
336,411 399,347 62,036
1,515,177 1,549,738 34,561
13,503,253 14,402,906 899,653
8,206,745 8,499,616 292,871
2,195,398 2,415,280 219,882
19,935,572 13,042,126 (6,893,446)
3,435,890 2,902,980 (532,910)
1,807,638 1,603,124 (204,514)
160,829 192,119 31,290
123,960,671 111,747,322 (12,213,349)
20,407,023 T3 1,079,307 ~% (19,327,716
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Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities decreased the City of Albany’s net assets by $1,638,991. Revenues from governmental activities totaled $69,934,084; with
sales taxes (27%), property taxes (21%), operating grants (27%), other taxes (14%), and charges for services (10%) contributing over $66,737,954 of
the City’s revenues. Expenses for governmental activities were $68,689,171, of which 40% was supported from program revenues and 60% from
general revenues. Expenses for Public Safety (45%), General Government (18%), and Parks and Recreation (13%) make up 76% of the total
expense for governmental activities.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activites (in thousands)

Interest

Community Service

Community Dev.

Parks & Recreation

Public Works

Public Safety

Judicial

General Government

0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 30,000 35,000

O RevenuesB Expenses
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Government Activites - Breakout of Program Revenue

8%

O Charges for Services
B Operating Grants and Contributions

O capital Grants and Contributions

Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the City of Albany’s net assets by $2,718,298, accounting for all of the total growth in the government’s net assets.
As of June 30, 2009, total business-type net assets were $109,537,671 of which $87,159,039 was invested in capital assets; $3,009,678 was

restricted; and $19,368,954 was unrestricted.

Revenues totaled $45,776,449 with 93% of revenues coming from Program Revenues and 7% coming from General Revenues. (See chart
“Business-Type Activities — Breakout of Program Revenues").

Total expenses were $43,058,151. The largest expenditures were Public Employee Deposit (30%) and Sewer (33%).

The Water, Gas and Light Commission is a discretely presented component unit and is_not reflected in the amounts discussed above.
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business Type Activites (in thousands)
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Business Type Activites - Breakout of Program Revenue

O Sanitary Sewer
B Solid Waste
O Airport
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Albany’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the City of Albany’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
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At of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Albany’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $49,877,875 a decrease
of $5,935,239 in comparison with the prior year. Eighty-five percent ($42,637,050) constituted unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government's discretion. The remaining fifieen percent of the fund balance (§7,240,825) is reserved to indicate that it is not available
for new spending. This amount has been committed to Inventories ($259,252); Prepaid items ($314,131); Advances to other funds ($5,852,372);
Program expendiiures ($45,645); and Debt Service ($769,425).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of ihe City. As of June 30, 20089, the unreserved fund balance in the generat fund was $18,627,452; the
total fund balance was $22,922,770 — an increase of $409,981 over 2008.

The General Fund's liquidity can be measured by comparing both ihe unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to tofal fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 38% of the iotal general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 46.9% of that same amounti.
When fransfers out are added to expenditures, the unreserved fund balance represents 36% of expenditures plus transfers, while the total fund
represents 44% of this amount.

The general fund had the following transfers in (increases) and iransfers out (decreases).

Transfer in From Other funds ($1,344,633) represents transfers from the Hotel Motel Tax Fund and Public Improvement Fund. Transfer in from
compenent units ($7,311,870) represents 7.5% of the actual metered revenue from the previcus calendar year for the Water, Gas and Light
Commission. This amount is included in intergovernmental revenues, Funding for component units ($1,002,000) represents an agreed payment o
Chehaw Park Authority, a separate component unit of the City. The funds are used by Chehaw Park Authority fo subsidize the operation of the park.
This amount is included as parks and recreation expenditures.

Other transfers out represent General Fund support of the following funds during the fiscal year: Airport Fund ($557,682); Grant Fund ($495,819);
Transit Fund {$937,168); Civic Center Fund ($1,108,854); Auditorium Fund ($55,508); Albany Tomorrow ($75,000), and ADICA fund ($282,403).
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City's General Fund balance increased by $409,981. The following confributed to the change:

2 Actual revenues fell short of budgeted revenues by $45,216;
0 Total actual revenues for 2008 exceeded 2009 revenues by $339,213;
0 Actual expenditures were $3,869,665 under budgeted expenditures
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The primary factors causing General Fund revenues to fall short of budget include: Revenues from sales taxes were $1,599,938 under budget and
they were $2,218,475 less than the previous year; Property taxes were $185,914 under budget; and Fines and Forfeitures Revenue was under
budget by $219,722. Revenues from Licenses and Permits were under budget by $113,069 and Charges for Services were under budget by
$111,800. Intergovernmental Revenue was the only real bright spot as it was $16,656,922 in FY09, which was $2,091,759 over budget.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009, the proprietary funds had total operating revenues of $37,890,115. Based on revenues, the largest proprietary fund is the
Sanitary Sewer Fund (40%) followed by the Public Employee Deposit Fund (34%). See chart below for an overview of revenue by proprietary fund.

Proprietary Funds - Analysis of Revenue by Fund

6%

20%

Sanitary Sewer

B Solid Waste

O Airport

O Public Empl Deposit
B Other
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The change in net assets for Proprietary Funds was $2,828,640 (representing a 2.7% increase from the prior year's adjusted net asset balance of
$106,334,840). The $2,828,640 net change was the result of the following:

Sanitary Sewer Fund $ 1,080,033
Solid Waste Fund $ 228,634
Airport Fund $ 1,615,409
Public Employee Deposit Fund $ -
Other Enterprise Funds $ (95,436)

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s revenues were 0.09% under the budgeted amount. As a result of the relatively flat economy, the City was conservative in estimating tax
and license revenue. Similarly, the City’s expenditures were 7.3% under budget. This was the result of the City aggressively monitoring costs.
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TABLE 3

CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

General Fund

Original

Budget Final Budget Actual Variance
Reventes:
Property taxes $ 14,667,103 14,150,520 13,964,606 § (185,914)
Sales taxes 9,100,000 9,100,000 7,500,062 (1,599,938)
Other taxes 8,118,203 8,118,203 8,201,806 83,603
Licenses and permits 2,371,431 2,371,431 2,258,362 (113,069)
Intergovernmental 13,113,463 14,565,163 16,656,922 2,091,758
Charges for services 560,505 560,505 448,705 (111,800)
Fines and forfeitures 1,245,167 1,245,167 1,025,445 (219,722)
Interest income 350,000 350,000 300,657 (49,343)
Other 926,997 959,528 1,018,738 59,208
TOTAL REVENUES $ 50452869 $§ 51420517 3 51375301 $ (45,216)
Expenditures:
General government 9,911,042 10,241,042 8,976,530 1,264,512
Judiciat 1,092,408 1,092,408 929,956 162,453
Public safety 28,421,178 28,783,221 27,162,081 1,621,140
Public works 7,378,784 7,399,251 6,921,508 477,743
Parks and recreation 4,808,578 4,808,578 4,538,321 268,257
Community svc{Subsidized agencies} 474,807 474,907 399,347 75,560
Debt service interest - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 52,084,898 $ 52,797,408 $ 48,927,743 $ 3,865,665
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2009,
amounts to $219,754,105, (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and
improvements, equipment and vehicles, infrastructure, and construction in progress. Additional information on the City’s capital assets

can be found in Note 5 on pages 69 - 73 of this report.

TABLE 4

CITY OF ALBANY

CAPITAL ASSETS (Net of Depreciation)

JUNE 30, 2009

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 18,130,988 $ 12,718,132 $ 30,850,120
Construction in Progress 1,721,063 3,023,020 4,744 073
Total assets not depreciated 19,852,041 15,742 152 35,584,193
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 61,476,681 127,148,237 188,625,918
Eguipment and vehicles 24 727,838 27,625,821 52,353,659
Infrastructure 71,050,842 36,656,784 107,707 626
Total assets depreciated 157,255,361 191,431,842 348,687,203
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 14,265,445 38,735,680 53,001,125
Equipment and vehicles 14,061,082 15,835,947 29,897,029
infrastructure 52,412 563 29,216,574 81,629,137
Total accumulated depreciation 80,739,090 83,788,201 164,527,291
Total asseis depreciated, net 76,516,271 107,643,641 184,159,912
Capital assets, net 5 96,368,312 $ 123,385,793 $ 219,754,105
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Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscai year, the City’'s total long-term debt outstanding is $67 million — a decrease of $8.5
million over the previous year. Of this amount, $12.2 million is due within one year. Generai obligation bonds {(18%) and Revenue
Bonds (54%) make up 3$48.3 million of the total. The remaining $18.8 million is comprised of notes payable, certificates of
participation, capital leases and compensated absences. Additional information regarding the City’s long-term debt can be found in
Note 6 pages 72 — 80.

TABLE 5
CITY OF ALBANY LONG TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Balance at
June 30, Percentage Due Within
2009 of Total One Year
Governmental Activities
Bonds payable $ 12,092,018 18% $ 5,905,000
Notes payable 4,925,000 7% 300,000
Certificates of participation 10,000,000 15% -
Compensated absences 2,897,851 4% 2,514,911
Governmental long-term liabilities $ 29,914,869 $ 8,819,911
Business-Type Activities
Bonds Payable:
Revenue bonds $ 36,670,000 $ 2,525,000
Less deferred amts on refunding (494,832) -
Total bonds payable 36,175,168 54% 2,525,000
Notes payable 51,586 0% 41,166
Compensated absences 902,526 1% 812,273
Business-Type long-term liabilities 37,128,280 3,378,438
Total primary government liabilities $ 67,044,149 $ 12,198,350

The Generai Obligation Bonds reiate o bonds issued for the Municipal Auditorium and the Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority. The Revenue
Bonds relate {o sewer systemn revenue bonds issued in 2001, and 2007. The Certificates of Participation represent the City’s purchase of equipment
and vehicles from the Georgia Municipal Association Pooled Bond Funds. The Capital Leases represent the City's acquisition of buses to be used by
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the Albany Transit System. The Notes Payable represents the City's obligations to the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority for sewer and solid
waste system projects. Compensated absences represent the City’s obligation for accrued vacation and sick leave.

Bond Ratings

The following are the financial strength ratings the City has received from Moody’s Investars Service, Inc. and S&P (if available):

Moody’s _S&P
Generat Obligation Bonds (Eames Park) A-3 -
Sewer Revenue Bonds Aaz AAA
ADICA Bonds A-3 -
WGE&L (Water Bonds) A-3 -

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The attached report provides a variety of econoemic data that can be used io assess the current and long-term expected economic heaith of the City.
Specifically, the report includes data related to property tax values; property tax rates; properiy tax levies and collections; special assessment billings
and collections; commercial and residential construction activity; bank deposiis; principal manufacturing and non-manufacturing employers; assessed
and actual real property values; and similar information.

The City is affected by the same economic conditions that influence the State of Georgia and the nation as a whole. Economic conditions were taken
into account in developing the City’s prior year budget. However, a review of the detaited economic information is useful in assessing specific aspects
of the City’s economy.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial repori is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Albany's finances for all those with an interest in the government's
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requesis for additional information should be addressed to the City of
Albany, Director of Finance, 222 Pine Avenue, Roem 480, Albany, Georgia 31701.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009
Primary Government Component Units
Governmental Business-type Chehaw Park Water, (Gas & Light
Activities Activities Total Authority Commission

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 16,210,884 2,848,671 19,059,555 $ 105,870 3 1,010,770
Investments 29,424,554 9,136,950 38,581,504 - 3,881,885
Taxes receivable 51,886 - 51,886 - -
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 1,445,045 626,726 2,074,771 1,316 15,130,686
Notes receivable 18,895,290 - 18,895,290 - -
Inventories 259,252 117,403 376,855 12,248 3,988,244
Internal balances 3,714,708 (3.714,708) - - -
Gue from other governments 6,363,731 971,472 7,335,203 - -
Due from component unit 2,032,323 4,381,148 6,413,471 - -
Cue from primary government - - - 17,534 -
Prepaid expenses 314,131 27,500 341,631 26,500 398,320
Restricied assets:

Cash - 1,148,121 1,148,121 - 825,696

Investments - 10,932,138 10,932,138 - 6,827,845
Deferred charges 66,162 451,289 517,451 - 314,825
Cther assets - - - - 20,278
Capital assets:

MNon-depreciable 19,852,041 15,742,152 35,594,183 1,387,444 1,453,284

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 76,516,271 107,643,641 184,159,812 6,275,075 78,907 617

Total assets 175,146,278 150,312,503 325,458,781 7,825,985 112,760,550

{Continued)}
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 20, 2009

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Quitstanding checks in excess of bank balance
Retainage pavyable
Accrued expenses
Claims payable
Due to primary govemment
Due o component unit
Due 1o other governmenis
Unearned revenues
Other liabilities
Payable from restricied assets:
Advance payments and customer deposits
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable
Line of credit
Non-current liabilities:
Certificates of participation, dug in more than one year
Bonds payable, due within one year
Bonds payable, due more than one vear
Notes payable, due within one year
Notes payable, due more than one year
Capital leases payable, due within cne year
Capital leases payable, due more than one year
Compensated absences payable, due within one year
Compensated absences payable, due more than one vear
Other long-term liabilities

Total lizbilities

(Continued)

Primary Government

Component Unifs

Governmental Business-type Chehaw Park Water, Gas & Light
Activities Activities Total Authority Commission

3 2,747,857 $ 593,445 3,341,302 29,005 3 6,742,225
170,156 - 170,156 - -
23,410 - 23,410 - -
2,401,384 97,811 3,389,195 46,004 730,139
2,402,852 1,095,000 3,497,852 - -
- - - 164,541 6,248,930
17,534 - 17,534 - -
667,085 - 667,085 - -
1,283,830 959,296 2,242,926 7,728 -
- - - 13,185 1,710,976
- 2,525,000 2,525,000 - 1,020,000
. - . - 87,055
- - - - 1,374,100
10,000,000 - 10,000,000 - -
5,905,000 - 5,905,000 - -
6,187,018 33,650,168 39,837,186 - 21,102,780
300,000 41,166 341,168 - -
4,625,000 10,420 4,635,420 - -
- - - - 976,786
- - - - 5,020,811
2,614,911 812,273 3,427,184 - 792,612
282,840 80,253 373,193 - 1,684,300
497,987 - 497 987 - 1,754 652
40,126,764 40,774,832 80,901,598 260,463 48,245,366
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total net assets

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.

Prirnary Government

Component Units

Governmental Business-type Chehaw Park Water, Gas & Light
Activities Activities Total Authority Commission
78,428,752 87,159,039 165,687,721 7.662,519 $ 52,240,534
15,687,497 - 15,687,457 - -
768,425 3,009,678 3,778,103 - 7,334,857
46,133,840 19,368,954 59,502,794 {96,997) 3,938,793
135,019,514 109,537,671 244,557,185 7,585,522 3 63,515,184
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Program Revenues Net (Exg ) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capitat Primary Govemment Component Units
Charges for Grants and Grants 2nd Goverr | Busil type Chehaw Park Water, Gas & Light
Ex; Services Contributions Contributions Activities. Activities Total Authority Commission
Functions/Programs
Primary Govermment
Governmental Activities:
General govemment 5 12,215,584 s 2,468,315 s 3,095,563 s - 5 6652688 s - 8§ 6,652686) s - s -
Judicial 952.323 1,108,205 - - 156,882 - 156,682 - -
Public safety 31,208,287 1,715,042 32274832 - {26,263,623) - {26.263,623) - -
Public works 7.695.484 782,786 16,552,016 1219811 4,869,148 - 4,869,149 - -
Parks and recreation 8,078.385 335,993 289.469 - (8.453,923) - (8,453,923) - -
Community development 5,591,053 451,049 847,719 813,247 (3,448,038) - (3,448,038) - -
Community service 399.347 - 76,865 - (322,482) - (322,482} - -
interast on long-term debl 1,549,738 - - - (1.548,738) - (1.548.738) - -
Total governmeantal activities 58,688,171 6,900,320 18.080,264 2,035,058 {41.865.454) - (41.665.459) - -
Business-type Activities:
Sanitary sewer 14,402,906 15,111,550 - 185,172 - 873,816 873.818 - -
Solid waste 8438616 3412723 - - - 86.893) {85,883} - -
Airgort 2,415,280 728.181 380688 2327332 - 1,030.931 1.030,931 - -
Public employee deposit 13,042,126 13,034,004 - - - {8,122) {8,122) - -
Fransit 2,902,980 435,279 1287617 143623 - {976.467) (976.461) - -
Civic Canter 1,603,124 255,803 - 233,747 - (1.113.574) (1.113,574) - -
Municipal Auditorium 192,119 52,565 - 3028 - {138.528) (138,526} - -
Total business-type activities 43,058,151 38,090,115 1678305 2,872.802 - {416,828) (416,829) - -
Totat primary government 5 111,747.322 5 44,980,505 5 19.768,569 s 4.805,960 $ (41,685.458) § {416.828) $ {42.082.288) $ - $ -
Component Units:
Chehaw Park Authority s 2068583 $ 588419 S 1,110,784 § - 8 -8 - 8 - 5 (370,350) s -
VWater, Gas & Light Commission i08,338.614 104,018,785 - - - - - - {2,318.629)
Total component units 5 108,408.177 5 104,608,204 s 1.110,784 s - $ - 3 - $ - & (370.350) $ {2.318.829}

General revenues:

Property taxes $ 13,864,606 s - s 13,964 606 s - s -
Sales laxes 18,268,427 - 18.269.427 - -
Franchise taxes 2,272.99¢ - 2,272,893 - -
insyrance premium tax 4,323,680 - 4,323,680 - -
Alcoholic beverage tax 1,433,699 - 1,433 599 - -
HoteliMotel tax 1,311.461 - 1.311,461 - -
Other taxes 171,428 - 171,428 - -
investment income 1,183,072 251,225 1,414,295 559 432,208
Gain on sale of assets - - - - 58,988
Transfers {2.883,904) 2,883,904 - - -
Total generat revenues and transfers 40,028,458 3,135,127 43,181,595 553 491,176
Change in net assets {1.638981) 2,718,288 1.679,307 {368,791) (1,827,653)
Net assets - beginning of year, restated 136,658,505 108,819,373 243,477 878 7,935,313 65,342,837
Net assets - end of year 5 135018514 8 108,537.671 $ 244557185 3 7565522 § 63,515,184

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2009

CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis
Investments
Receivabies, net of allowance:
Taxes
Accounts
Notes
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Due from component units
Inventories
Prepaid items
Advance to other funds

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Excess checks over deposits
Accounts payable

Retainage payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds

Due to other governments
Due to component units
Deferred revenues
Advances from cther funds

Total liabilities

{Continued)

Community Other Total
General Development SPLOST Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 10,935,286 $ 3,742,798 ~ $ 1,450,724 $ 15,128,808
1,737,854 - 15,549,380 8,768,857 24,056,091
51,886 - - - 51,886
1,024,280 - - 420,755 1,445,045
- 18,845,290 - 50,000 18,895,290
9,138,616 - - 2,119,274 11,257,890
2,310,269 348,431 2,538,903 1,164,128 6,363,731
1,714,323 - - 318,000 2,032,323
259,252 - - - 259,252
314,131 - - - 314,131
3,721,935 - - 2,130,437 5,852,372
& 31,207,842 $ 229037519 18,089,283 s 14422175 $ 86,656,818
$ - 3 - 170,156 5 - $ 170,156
2,205,428 210,375 86,920 245134 2,747,857
- - 23,410 - 23,410
2,018,444 137,969 - - 2,156,413
3,320,338 544,394 1,164,185 2,304,501 7,333,418
328,075 - 339,010 - 867,085
- - 17,534 - 17,534
412,787 18,845,290 600,571 82,488 19,941,136
- - - 3,721,835 3,721,835
8,285,072 18,738,028 2,401,786 6,354,058 36,778,944
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2002

FUND BALANCES
Reserved:
Reserved for inventories
Reserved for prepaid items
Reserved for advances fo other funds
Reserved for program expenditures
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capitai projects funds
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Community Other Total
General Development SPLOST Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
3 258,252 $ - 3 - 3 - $ 259,252
314,131 - - - 314,134
3,721,935 - - 2,130,437 5,852,372
- - - 45,645 45,645
- - - 769,425 769,425
18,627,452 - - - 18,627,452
- 3,199,491 - 2,476,655 5,676,146
- - 15,687,497 2,645,955 18,332,452
22,922,770 3,199,481 15,687,497 8,068,117 49,877,875
$ 31,207,842 $ 22,937,518 $ 18,089,283 $ 14422175
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial rescurces and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 96,368,312
Other long-term assets are nof available to pay for current pericd expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 18,857,505
Internaj service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk management
to individuai funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the statement of net asseis. 707,486

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.
Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Community Other Total
General Development SPLOST Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 13,864,606 & - % - ] - § 13,964,506
Sales taxes 7,500,062 - 9,718,112 765,617 17,983,781
Other taxes 8,201,808 - - 1,311,461 9,513,267
Licenses and permits 2,258,362 - - - 2,258,362
Intergovernmental 16,656,922 1,410,966 - 2,055,434 20,123,322
Charges for services 448,705 116,666 - 1,667,743 2,233,114
Fines and forfeitures 1,025,445 - - - 1,025,445
Interest income 300,657 4,285 258,351 523,996 1,087,285
Other 1,018,738 1,719,082 - 391 2,738,208
Total revenues 51,375,301 3,250,999 9,876,463 8,324,642 70,927,405
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 8,976,530 - - - 8,676,530
Judicial 929,956 - - 56,403 986,359
Public safety 27,162,081 - - 1,483,477 28,655,558
Public works 6,921,508 - - 69,036 6,890,544
Parks and recreaticn 4,538,321 - - 4,306 4,542 627
Community development - 3,071,600 - 1,947,210 5,018,810
Community service 399,347 - - - 399,347
Capital cutlay B - 7,582,430 3,531,834 11,114,264
Debt service:
Principal - 300,000 5,700,000 - 6,000,000
Interest - 245,709 737,750 518,000 1,601,459
Totai expendituras 48,927,743 3,617,309 14,020,180 7,620,266 74,185,498
Excess (deficiency) of revenues cver expenditures 2,447 558 (366,310 (4,043,717) {1,255,624) (3,258,093}
(Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Community Other Total
General Development SPLOST Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of assets 140,225 $ 66,533 5 - 3 - $ 206,758
Transfers in 1,344,633 - - 925,764 2,270,397
Transfers out (3,522,435) - - {1,631,866) {5,154,301)
Totai other financing sources {uses) (2,037,577) 66,533 - (706,102) {2,677,148)
Net change in fund balances 408,981 (299,777) (4,043,717) {2,001,726) {5,935,239)
Fund balances, beginning of year 22,512,789 3,499,268 18,731,214 10,069,843 55,813,114
Fund balances, end of year 22822770 3 3,199,481 5 15,687,497 8 8,068,117 $ 49877875

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmentat funds
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.
The net effect of various misceilanecus transactions involving capital assets (sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial rescurces are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. This amount is the
effect of the principal payments on capital leases and general obligation bonds and amortization of bond premiums and issuance costs.

Some expenses reported in the statement of aclivities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurance io individual funds.
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities,

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeifures
Interest income
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government:
Legislative
Administrative
Human resources

Procurement and materials mgmt.

Printing

Materials management
Finance

Infermation technology
Risk management

Totai general government

Judicial:
Municipal court
City Attorney
Totat judicial

{Continued)

General Fund

Community Development Fund

Original and
Qriginal Final Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
$ 14,667,103 3 14,150,520 13,964,606 $ (185,914) $ - - -
9,100,060 2,100,000 7.500,082 {1,589,938) - - -
8,118,203 8,118,203 8,201,806 83,603 - - -
2,371,421 2,371,431 2,258,362 {113,069) - - -
13,113,463 14,565,183 16,656,922 2,081,759 1,733,284 1,410,966 (322,318)
560,505 560,505 448,705 {111,800) 471,679 116,666 (355,013)
1,245,167 1,245,167 1,025,445 {218,722) - - -
350,000 350,000 300,657 (48,343) - 4,285 4,285
926,997 959,528 1,018,736 58,208 362,728 1,719,082 1,356,354
50,452,869 51,420,517 51,375,301 {45,216) 2,567,691 3,250,889 683,308
464 488 464,488 415,157 48,331 - ~ -
1,186,024 1,216,024 1,092,279 123,745 - - -
1,881,823 2,581,823 2,071,411 510,412 - - -
656,951 656,551 636,266 20,685 - - .
209,696 209,696 219,740 {10,044} - - -
284,555 284,585 259,487 25,058 - - -
2,776,183 2,770,183 2,490,552 279,631 - - -
1,535,032 1,835,032 1,321,711 213,321 - - -
822,290 522,280 469,917 52,373 - - -
9,911,042 10,241,042 8,975,530 1,264,512 - - -
546,151 546,151 413,850 132,201 - - -
546,258 546,258 516,006 30,252 - - ~
1,092,409 1,092,409 929,956 162,453 - - -
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

General Fund Community Development Fund
Original and
Original Final Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Police 3 15,254,668 3 15,523,785 $  14,535524 $ 988,161 3 - $ - $ -
Fire 11,229,771 11,429,771 11,098,212 330,559 - - -
Planning and development services 1,545,688 1,445,688 1,498,609 246,078 - - -
Marshal divisicn 391,051 383,977 327,636 56,341 - - -
Total public safety 28,421,178 28,783,221 27,162,081 1,621,140 - - -
Public works:
Administration 267,899 268,249 253,391 14,858 - - -
Engineering 3,767,438 3,767,438 3,522,907 244 531 - - -
Code enforcement 853,775 874,242 875,208 {966) - - -
Street maintenance 2,489,572 2,488,322 2,270,002 219,320 - - -
Total public works 7,378,784 7,389,251 6,921,508 477,743 - - -
Parks and recreaticn:
Administration 305,216 305,216 341,957 (36,741} - - -
Parks 3,366,830 3,365,870 3,178,684 187,186 - - -
Park development and managemeant 312,782 310,082 234,916 75,176 - - -
Turner Golf Course 420,806 420,806 415,930 4,876 - - -
Special services 95,781 88,791 102,826 (6,035) - - -
Cemetery 304,143 307,803 264,008 43,785 - - -
Total parks and recreation 4 806,578 4,806,578 4,538,321 288,257 - - -
Community development - - - - 2,021,882 3,071,800 (1,042,618)
Community service, various
subsidized agencies 474 907 474,907 399,347 75,560 - - -

{Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

General Fund

Community Development Fund

Qriginal and
Criginal Final Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 8 - 3 “ 3 - $ - 8 300,000 $ 300,000 $ -
Interest - - - - 245,708 245,709 -
Total expenditures 52,084,898 52,797 408 48,927 743 3,868,665 2,567,691 3,617,309 (1,048,618)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures (1,632,029} {1,378,891) 2,447,558 3,824,449 - (366,310) (368,310)
Other financing sources (uses}):
Proceeds from sale of assets 150,000 160,000 140,225 (8,775) - 66,533 66,533
Transfers in 1,344,833 1,344,633 1,344,833 - - - -
Transfers out (3,460,754) {3,715,892) (3,522,435) 193,457 - - -
Total other financing sources (uses} (1,966,121} (2,221,259) (2,037,577} 183,882 - 66,533 66,533
Net change in fund balances $ (3,598,150} % (3,588,150) 409,981 3 4,008,131 $ - {298.777) $ {298,777)
Fund balance, beginning of year 22,512,789 3,498,268
Fund balance, end of vear 22,822,770 & 3,195,491

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Sanitary Solid Public Other Internal
Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 1,020,791 % 26,291 $ 330,556 3 336,226 $ 534,807 $ 2,848,671 3 82,076
Restricted cash 4,148,121 - - - - 1,148,124 -
Restricted investments 10,832,138 - - - - 10,832,138 -
Investments 9,125,708 - - 11,242 - 9,136,950 5,368,463
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 603,105 - B - 23,8621 626,726 -
Inventories - - - - 117,403 117,403 -
Prepaid expenses - - 27.500 - - 27,500 -
Due from other governments - - 363,148 - 608,324 971,472 -
Due from other funds 1,600,824 - - 634,588 37,348 2,472,770 -
Due from component unit 2,257,605 1,847,725 - 275,818 - 4 381,148 -
Total current assets 26,888,292 1,874,016 1,321,204 1,257,884 1,321,503 32,662,898 5,450,538
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Deferred bond issuance, unamortized balance 451,289 - - - - 451,289 -
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 4,654,196 807,035 7,038,068 - 3,141,855 15,742,152 -
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 71,875,579 3,400,164 19,280,558 - 13,087,340 107,643,641 -
Total noncurrent assets 76,981,064 4,307,189 26,319,624 - 16,229,195 123,837,082 -
Total assels 103,869,356 5,181,215 27,640,828 1,257,884 17,550,688 156,499,981 5,450,539
{Continued)

35



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from current assets:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Claims payable
Current portion - notes payable
Current portion - compensated absences
Bue to other funds
Deferred revenues

Payable from restricted assets:
Revenue bonds payable, current

Total current habilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from other funds
Revenue bonds payable, net of current portion
Notes payable, net of current portion
Compensated absences, net of current portion
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilitles

{Continued)

Sanitary Solid Pablic Other Internal

Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service

Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
125,514 253,715 $ 52,682 3 161,534 - 593,445 B
855,244 219 - - 142,348 997,811 -
- - - 1,085,000 - 1,085,000 2,402,852
41,166 - - - - 41,166 -
348,984 282,778 34,490 1,215 143,805 812,273 -
2.672.371 979,598 764,024 B 5,242 4,421,232 1,876,010
26,493 - 820,460 - 112,343 959,296 -
4,070,772 1,516,308 1,671,656 1,257,749 403,738 8,920,223 4,378,862
2,525,000 - - - - 2,525,000 -
5,595 772 1,516,308 1,671,656 1,257,749 403,738 11,445,223 4,378,862
1,178,155 945,864 1,074 - 5,244 2,130,437 -
33,650,188 - - - - 33,650,168 -
10,420 - - - - 10,420 -
33,887 31,420 3,832 135 15,879 90,253 -
34,877,630 977,384 4,906 135 21,223 35,881,278 -
41,473,402 2,493,692 1,676,562 1,257,884 424,961 47,326,501 4,378,862
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009
Sanitary Solid Public Other internal
Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3 40,303,021 S 4,307,198 3 26,319,824 5 16,228,195 87,159,039 $ -
Restricted for renewal and replacement 3,211,816 - - - 3,211,818 -
Restricted for debt service 3,008,678 - - - 3,009,578 -
Unrestricted 15,871,439 {619,676) (355,358) 896,542 15,782,947 1,071,877
Total net assets $ 62,395,054 3 3,687,523 3 25,964 268 S 17,125,737 109,173,430 3 1,071,877
Adjustment to reflect conselidation of internal service fund activities
related to enterprise funds 364,191
Net assets of business type activities 109,537,671

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Cperaling reventes:
Charges for services
Other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnet costs
General and administrative
Supplies
QOperating services and charges
Maintenance and repairs
Depreciation and amorization
Claims and damages

Total operating expensas

Operating income {loss)

Nonoperating revenues {expenses):

Interest income

Interest expense and fiscal charges

Intergovernmental
Loss on sale of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues {expenses)

(Continued)

Sanitary Solid Public Other Internal
Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
% 14,954,260 8,312,018 3 725,191 3 13,034,004 803,647 37,832,150 483,691
57,260 705 - - - 57,965 37,508
15,011,550 §,312,723 728,191 13,034,004 803,647 37,880,115 521,198
3,442,925 2,138,279 894 893 24,108 2,163,860 8,665,163 -
- 50 - 998,490 - 998,540 363,694
388,773 18,438 56,521 - 76,518 550,248 -
4,289,720 4 867,951 369,583 - 1,169,909 10,677,163 -
1,005,542 650,483 71,629 - 264,494 1,992,148 -
3,357,063 434,571 1,014,830 - 904,618 5,711,082 -
- - - 12,011,806 - 12,011,806 2,705,885
12,474,023 3,110,772 2,407 556 13,034,402 4,579,397 40,808,150 3,069,579
2,537,527 201,951 {1,679,365) (398) (3,775,750) {2,716,035) {2,548,380)
235,656 - 13,981 398 1,178 251,223 75,783
(1,684,148) {332} - - {1,388) (1,685,868) -
100,000 400,000 2,718,020 - 1,287,617 4,205,637 -
{211,632) (349,893) - - (94,2566) (655,791) -
(1,560,124) {250,225} 2,732,011 398 1,193,141 2,115,201 75,783
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Sanitary Solid Public Other Internal
Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
income {loss) before contributions
and transfers 3 477,403 3 (48,274) 3 1,052,646 3 - 3 (2,582 609) % (600,834) $ {2,472,587)
Capital contributions 165,172 - - - 380,398 545 570 -
Transfers
Transfers in {oul) (62,542) 276,808 562,763 - 2,108,775 2,883,904 -
Total transfers (62,542) 276,908 562,763 - 2,108,775 2.883,904 -
Change in net assets 1,080,033 223,634 1,615,409 - {95,436) 2,828,640 (2,472,597}
Total net assets, beginning of year 61,315,921 3,458 889 24,348,857 - 17,221,173 3,544 274
Total net assets, end of year S £2,395,954 5 3,687,523 3 25,964,266 $ - 5 17,125,737 3 1,071,877

Adjustment to reflect consolidation of internal service fund activities
related to enterprise funds (110,342)
Change in net assets of business type activities $ 2,718,298

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Receipts from other funds
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Claims paid
Premiums paid

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in
Operating grants received

Net cash provided by
noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on bonds
Principal paid on notes and capital leases payable
interest paid
Advance from other funds
Capital grants received
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

{Continued)

Sanitary Solid Public Other tnternal
Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
14,832,434 8,344,483 3 587,495 $ 14,137,732 744 007 38,656,151 3 -
- - - - - - 1,092,700
(5,157,702} {6,046,631) (75,208) - {2,140,212) {13.419,753) -
(3,371,760) (2,121,122} (916,541) (22,756) {2,020,015) (8,452,214) -
- - - (12,900,260 - {12,800,260) (1,556,436)
- - - {993,490) - (998.490) {343,684)
6,302,952 176,730 (384,254} 216,226 3,416,220} 2,885,434 {807.430)
(62,542) 276,908 562,763 - 2,108,775 2,883,804 -
100,000 100,000 - - 1,287 617 1,487,617 -
37,458 376,808 562,763 - 3,394,392 4,371,521 -
(852,010) (607,537) {2,699,466) . - {4,259,013) -
(2,440,000) - - - - {2,440,000) -
(40,549) (27,920) - - (58,680) (127,149) -
(1,733,422) (332) - - {1,388) 1,735,142} .
91.626 19,150 (5,081) - {5.242) 100,453 -
- - 2,413,769 - ~ 2,413,769 -
12,084 23,795 - - 17,688 53,577 -
(5,082,261) (592,844) {280,778) - (47.522) (5,893,505) -
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Sanitary Solid Public Other Internal
Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments $ 235,656 $ - s 13,991 $ 398 $ 1,178 3 251,223 $ 75,783
Net cash provided by investing activities 235,656 - 13,981 398 1,178 251,223 75,783
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash
equivaients 1,513,805 (39,208) (108,278) 216,624 (68,272) 1,514,673 (731,647)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 20,712,953 65 497 1,038,834 130,844 603,079 22 551,207 6,182,186
End of year 5 22,226,758 S 26,291 S 930,556 3 347,468 $ 534,807 8 24,085,880 3 5,450,539
Classified as:
Cash 3 1,020,791 $ 26,291 o3 830,556 5 336,226 $ 534,807 3 2,848,671 s 82,078
Irvestments 9,125,708 - - 11,242 - 9,136,950 5,368,463
Restiricted assets, cash 1,148,121 - - - - 1,148,121 -
Restricted assets, invesiments 10,932,138 - - - - 10,932,138 -
s 22,226,758 $ 26,291 $ 930,555 $ 347 468 $ 534,807 $ 24,065,880 $ 5,450,539
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
EINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions of capital assets from
governmental activities 8 165,172 s 12,836 $ - $ - 3 380,357 $ 558,455 $ -

(Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Sanitary Solid Public Other internal
Sewer Waste Airport Employee Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Deposit Fund Funds Totals Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN}
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ 2,537,527 201,851 (1.675,385) S {398} (3,775,750) £2,716,035) {2 548,380}
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used in}
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,357,063 434 571 1,014,830 - 804,618 5,714,082 -
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable {178,116) 31,760 - - 2,358 {144,998} -
Increase in inventories - - - - {11,527} (11,527} -
increase in prepaid expenses - B (27.,500) - - (27,500) -
Decrease in due from other governments - - - 762,164 131,890 894,054 -
{Increase) decrease in due from other funds 75,523 - - 395,040 (37.348) 433,215 -
{Increase) decrease in due from component unit 176,657 {69,752) - {53,478} - 53,429 -
Decrease in outstanding checks in excess
of bank balance - - - {119,588) - (119,988) -
Increase in accounts payable
and other liahilities 207,289 50,081 31,134 1,350 143,845 433,708 -
increase {decrease) in claims payable - - - {768,466) - {768,466) 1,169,449
increase {decrease) in due to other funds 128,009 (471,891) 397.343 - (749,856) {696,195) 571,501
Decrease in deferred revenues - - {130,696) - (24,850) (155,346) -
Net cash provided by (used in}
operating activities % 5,302,852 176,730 {384,254} $ 216,228 (3,416,220) 2,885,434 (B07,430)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
PENSION FUND

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

ASSETS
Cash
investments at fair value:
Equity securities
Government securities
Corporate bonds
Total investmentis

Interest receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable

Total lighilities

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits (A schedule of funding progress is presented on page 113)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3,814,431

60,615,470
9,716,785
5,686,758

76,018,823

204,355

80,037,609

40
546,345

546,385

3

79,491,224




CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
PENSION FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2009

ADDITIONS:
Employer contributions

Investment earnings
interest and dividends
Refunds and other income
Net decrease in fair value of investments
Total investment earnings
L ess investment expense
Net investment earnings

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Total deductions
Change in net assets

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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7,060,720

2,543,964
2,861
(17,702,874)

{15,156,049)
574,652

{15,730,701)

(8,669,981)

9,337,980
45,729

9,383,709

(18,053,690}

§7,544 914

$

79,491,224




CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Albany, Georgia (the "City”} have been prepared in cenformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Beard (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

A,

The Financial Reporting Entity

The City was created by a legislative act of the State of Georgia in 1838. The City is a municipal corporation which
operates under the mayor-commission form of government with an appeinted City Manager. The City provides the
following services and operations as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire); public works; airport; civic
center, municipal auditorium; iransit system; recreafion; parks; cemetery; animal contrel, emergency management;
sanitary sewer and solid waste.

As reguired by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of
the City (the primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the
City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational and financial relationships with the City.

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, as set forth in the Statement of Governmenial Accounting
Standards No. 14, “The Financiai Reporting Entity”, the component unit's financial statements have been included as
blended or discretely presenied. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the
City’s operaticns and so financial data from these units are combined with the financial data of the primary government.
Each discretely presented component unif, on the other hand, is reported separately in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. All blended and discretely presented component units
have June 30 year-ends.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A,

The Financial Reporting Entity (Continued)

Blended Component Unit

Albany Dougherty Inner City Authority (ADICA) - The City Commission appoints six of seven members of ADICA’s
board. Budget requests for ADICA are submitted to the Commission for approvai, with the City Commission possessing
authority to revise ADICA's budget. The City provides 80% of ADICA’s annual budget, primarily under a lease
arrangement on the Civic Center whereby the City guaraniees payment of bond debt because ADICA’s primary purpose is
to provide services to the City. The City, however, does not participate in the selection or monitoring of management.
Compleie financial statements for ADICA can be obtained from ADICA's administrative office located at 21272 West Broad
Avenue, Albany, Georgia 31701,

Discretely Presented Component Units

Water, Gas and Light Commission {the “Commission”) - The City appoints all members of the Water, Gas and
Light Commission’s Board of Directors. The Commission provides operating income {o the City through monthly transfers,
Additionally, the Commission collects all sewer and solid waste fees for the City. Complete financia! statements for the
Water, Gas and Light Commission can be obiained from the Commission’s administrative office located at 207 Pine
Avenue, Albany, Georgia 31701,

Chehaw Park Authority (“Chehaw Park”) - Chehaw Park provides a variety of family oriented activities including a
wild animat park and other exhibiis to the citizens of Albany, Georgia. The City Commission appoints all members of the
Chehaw Park Board of Directors. The City provides & significant operating subsidy to Chehaw Park, primarily fo finance
the operations of the park. Complete financial statements for the Chehaw Park Authorify can be obtained from Chehaw
Park, 105 Chehaw Park Road, Albany, Georgia 31701.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statementis

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the staiement of net assets and the staiement of activilies} report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between
the City’s proprietary funds and varicus other functions of the government. Government-wide financial statements do not
provide information by fund, bui distinguish between the City's governmental activities and business-type activities.
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from discrefely presented component units.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues inciude 1) charges io customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operaticnal or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not considered program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the

latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmentat fund financial staiements are reported using the current financial rescurces measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or scon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues considered susceptibie to accrual are property {axes, sales
faxes, franchise taxes, charges for services, fines, forfeifures, and inferest income. Expenditures are generally recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accruat accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary cperating fund. It accounis for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Community Development Fund (special revenue fund) accounts for the financial resources to be used for the
operations of various community development grant programs.

The SPLOST Fund (capital projects fund) accounts for consiruction or acquisition of major capital faciiities financed by
Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax proceeds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation {Continued)
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Sanitary Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of sewer services to the residents of the City.

The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the provisions of solid waste collection and disposal services to the residents of the
City.

The Airport Fund accounts for the construction, cperations, and maintenance of the Albany-Dougherty County Airport ang
runways.

The Public Employees Deposit Fund accounis for empioyer and employee coniributions to be used for the payment of
employee health claims. The City, Dougherty County, and Albany Water Gas and Light pool their resources and share the
risk.

The City also reports the following fund types:

Special revenue funds account for specific revenuas that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Debt service funds account for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term
debt of the City.

Capital projects funds account for resources provided for acguisition, construction or renovation of major capital
facilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation {Continued)
Internal service funds account for general liability, long-term disability, and workers' compensation claims.

The pension trust fund accounts for the activities of the City of Albany Pension Plan, which accumuiates resources for
pension benefif payments o qualified employees.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior fo December 1, 1989, generally are followed in
both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with
or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.
The City has elected not to foliow subsequent private sector guidance.

Amounis reperted as program revenues include 1) charges for services provided, 2) operating grants and contributions,
and 3) capiial grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include alf taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-cperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and preducing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principle operating revenues of the enterprise funds and internal service funds
are charges for goods and services provided. Operating expenses of the enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of these goods and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. When both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
resources as they are needed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

D.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1.
2.

Budget requests are compleied in March of each year,

Proposed budgets are reviewed and prepared by the City Manager and the Finance Committee for
submission o the Mayor and the City Commission in May.

Public hearings on the proposed budget are held in May. Individual amendments were not material in
relation to the original appropriaticns.

The budget is iegally adopted by the Mayor and City Commission in June of each year.

The City of Albany's budget amendment/budget transfer process is regulated by the official code of
Georgia and local policies. The legal level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures may not
exceed appropriations) for annual budgets is at the fund/depariment level. Any increase in appropriation
in any fund or department, whether accomplished through a change in anticipated revenues in any fund or
through a transfer of appropriations among departments, shall require the approval of the Board of
Commissioners. The City Commission made no supplemental budget appropriations during the year.

The City's Budget Officer can approve budget ifransfers up to $10,000 without the City Manager's
approval, except that no transfers can be made between the salaries budget and the operations budget.
Budget transfers in excess of $1¢,000 must be approved by the City Manager.

Annuat appropriated budgets are legally adopted on & basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP)} for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds. Sufficient
budgetary control is achieved through restrictions included in the various grant agreements. Annual
operating budgets are prepared for each Enterprise and Internal Service Fund for planning, control, cost
allocation, and evaluation purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

7. Revenues and expenditures of the Capital Projects Funds are budgeted on a project basis and are,
therefore, excluded frcm preseniation in the financial staiements.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of monies
are recorded in order to reserve the portion of the applicable appropriation, is emplayed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the year. Encumbrances are re-appropriated in the following
year, except for encumbrances in the Capital Proiects Funds, which are continuing. Encumbrances do not represent
GAAP expenditures. Al June 30, 2008, there were no encumbrances outstanding.

In the General Fund, expenditures exceeded budget for printing by $10,044, code enforcement by $966, parks and
recreation administration by 336,741, and special services by $6,035 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. in the
Community Development Fund, expenditures exceeded budget by $1,049,618 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. In
the blended component unit ADICA, expenditures exceeded budget by $142 687 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009,
In alt funds, the overexpenditures were funded by greater than anticipated revenues.

The blended component unit ADICA had a fund halance deficit of $42,450 at June 30, 2009. The deficit resulted from less
than expected contributions. This deficit will be eliminated through transfers from the City’s General Fund.

52



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liguid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest
rates. Generally, only investments with original maturities of three months or less meet this definition. AY cash and
investmenis reported in the proprietary funds, including restricted cash and investments, meet this definition and are
therefore considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Statutes authorize the City o invest in U.S. Government obligations, U.S. Government agency obligations, Siate of
Georgia obligations, and the Local Government Investment Pool of the State of Georgia (Georgia Fund 1). Georgia Fund
1, created by OCGA 36-83-8, is a stable net asset value investment pool which follows Standard and Poor's criteria for
AAAmM rated money market funds and is regutated by the Georgia Office of Treasury and Fiscal Services. However,
Georgia Fund 1 operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1840 and is considered
to be a 2a-7 like pool. The pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The pools primary objectives
are safety of capital, investment income, liguidity and diversification while maintaining principal ($1.00 per share value).
Net asset value is calculated weekly to ensure stability. The pool distributes earnings net of management fees on a
monthly basis and determines participant’s shares soid and redeemed based on $1.00 per share.

The City only invests in repurchase agreements when collateralized by U.S. Government or agency obligations.

invesiments are reported at fair value. Shori-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.
Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the iast reported sales price at current exchange
rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing
interest rates for similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent appraisals.
investments that do not have an established market are reporied at estimated fair values.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F.

investments (Continued)

In accordance with authorized investment laws, investments in the Pension Fund consist of common stocks, corporate
bonds and U.S. Government securities. Investments in the Pension Trust Fund are reported at fair value. Cash deposits
are reported at carrying amount which reasonably estimates fair value.

Inventory

nventory in Proprietary Funds is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Inventory in the General
Fund, which is valued at cost {first-in, first-out methed} consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. Inventories
of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaid ltems

Certain payments made to vendors reflect costs applicable {o future accounting pericds and are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Receivables/Payables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either "due toffrom other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/ffrom other
funds (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All ¢ther outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due
toffrom other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L

Receivables/Payables (Continued)

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available
financial resources.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, eguipment, and infrastruciure assets {e.g., roads, bridges, dams, and similar
items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Governmental (general) capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and
capitalized at cost in the government-wide statement of net assets. The City’s capitalization threshold is $5,000 for all
assets other than infrastructure. The capitalization threshold for infrastructure assets (roads, bridges, etc.) is $10G,000.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend useful lives are
expensed as incurred,

Major ouilays for capital assets and major improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction period of capifal assets of the Water, Gas and Light Commission {component unit} is included as
part of the capitalized value of assets. The amount of interest capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense
incurred (from the date of borrowing until the date of completion of the project) with interest earned on investment
proceeds over the same period. N interest was capitalized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J.

Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital assets of the primary government and component units are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 20-50 years
Infrastructure 15-50 years
Piant facilities 20-50 years
Equipment and vehicles 5-20 years

Compensated Absences

City employees accrue vacation in different amounts, according to whether they work 40-hour weeks or 56-hour weeks.
Employees can accrue a maximum of 89 days of vacation, depending on whether the employee works a 40-hour or 56-
hour week and whether the employee is exempt or nonexempt. These days can be taken either through time off or by
payment upon termination. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
firancial statemenis. A liability for these amounis is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Employees earn sick leave in proportion to aciual hours
worked. Sick leave, however, is not paid upon fermination if termination is by manner other than death or retirement.
Maximum accumulation of sick leave is 135 working days or 1,008 hours.

Change in Accounting Policy

As discussed in Note 8 and Note 19, the City changed its accounting and funding policies related to the City of Albany
Pension Plan. The City will now have a required contribuiion which is an actuarially determined percentage of payroll each
year, as opposed to a required contribution egual to a set dollar amount.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M,

Long-Term Obligations

In the governmeni-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term cbligations are reported as #abilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities
or proprietary fund fype statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, issuance costs, and gains or losses on
debt refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs during the current period. The face amocunt of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity

in governmental funds, reserves represent those portions of fund eguily not appropriable for expenditures or legally
segregated for a specific use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial rescurces.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabifities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statementis, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reparting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-wide Siatement of Net Assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and net
assels — governmental activities as reporied in the government-wide statementi of net assets. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds.” The details of this $30,581,665 difference are as follows:

Notes payable $ 4,925,000
Bonds payable 12,020,000
Unamortized bond premium 72,018
Unamortized bond issuance cosis (66,162)
Certificates of participation 10,000,000
Compensated absences 2,887,851
Other post-employment benefit obligation 497,987
Accrued interest payable 244 871
Net adiustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds

to arrive at net assefs - governmental activities $ 30,591,665

B. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmentai fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes reconciliation
between nef changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assels of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities
{Continued)

"Governmentat Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of this $3,285,899 difference
are as follows:

Capitai outlay % 7,116,292
Depreciation expense (3,830,393)
Net adjustment to increase nef changes in fund balances - folal

governmental funds to arrive at changes in nef assets of
governmental activities $ 3,285,899

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.” The details of this $1,070,884 differences are as

follows:
Transfers of capital assets to business-type activities 3 (390,532)
Disposals of capital assets {680,352)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total

governmental funds fo arrive at changes in net assets of
governmental activities $ {1,070,884)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.

Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

(Continued}

Anather element of that reconciliation explains that “the issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounis, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this $6,005,727 difference are as follows:

Principatl repayment - general obligation bonds 3 5,700,000
Principat repayment - notes payable 300,000
Amortization of bond premium 70,433
Amortization of bond issuance costs {64,706)

Net adjustment to increase nef changes in fund balances - total

governmental funds to arrive af changes in net assets of
governmental activities $ 6,005,727
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

{Continued)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Some expenses reported in the statement of aclivities do not reguire
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details
of this $493,135 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $ 58,858
Accrued interest (54.0086)
Other post-employment benefit obligation {497,987)
Net adjustment to increase nef changes in fund balances - tofal governmental funds to

arrive at changes In net assels of governmental activities 3 (493,135)

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Credit risk. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or other states; obligations issued by
the U.S. government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government or by & government agency of the United
States; obligations of any corporation of the U.S. government; prime bankers' acceptances; the local government investment pool
established by state taw; repurchase agreements; and cobligations of other political subdivisions of the Staie of Georgia. The City
has no formal credit risk policy other than o only invest in obligations authorized by state statutes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk. The Cily does not have a formal investment policy that limits invesiment maturities as a means of managing
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Custodial credit risk - deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able fo recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. State statutes require all deposits and investments (other than federal or state government
instruments) o be colfateralized by depository insurance, obiligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public authorities,
counties, or municipaiities. As of June 30, 2009, none of the City deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and
uncoliateralized as defined by GASE pronouncements.

Custodial credit risk — investments. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or will not be able {o recover collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. State statules require alt investments (other than federal or state government
instruments) to be collateratized by depository insurance, obiligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public authorities,
counties, or municipalities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2008, the City had the following investments {in thousands).

investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value l.ess than 1 1-5 6-10 11 -15 16 - 20 2% -256 26 - 30 Rating
Government securities  $ 8717 % 852 3 3368 % 2812 % 2188 % - % 396 % - AAA
Common stock 42,284 N/A - - - - - - N/A
Preferred stock 1,544 N/A - - - - - “ N/A
Corporate bends 208 - 203 - - - - - AA+
Corporate bonds 181 - 181 - - - - - AA
Corporate bonds 735 - 735 - - - - - AA-
Corporate bonds 3,362 - 1,824 510 828 - - - A+
Corporate bonds 1,030 - 1,030 - - - - - A
Corporate bonds 1,600 - 1,096 - - - - 504 An
Corporate bonds 3,759 - 534 671 1,018 1,064 - 472 BBB+
Corporate bonds 1,040 439 131 - - - - 470 BBB
Corporate bonds 1,008 - 780 - - 226 - - BBB-
Corporate bonds 1,478 - 500 - 497 220 - 261 BB+
Corporate bonds 768 - - - - - - 768 BB
Corporate bonds 1,916 - 1,344 - - 427 - 145 BB-
Corporate bonds 572 - 350 - 222 - - - B+
Convertible sec. 4,818 - 2,265 - 207 1,919 - 428 N/A
Georgia Fund 1 45324 45324 - - - P - - AAAM
Guaranteed Inv. Contract 4 169 - - - - 4,169 - - AA-
Total fair value 5 125,512 3 456715 $§ 14447 3 3983 $ 5060 % 8025 % 396 3% 3,048

63



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2009, the Water, Gas and Light Commission {component unit) had the following investrments:

Investments Maturities Fair Value
U.S. Government Securities 1 year weighted average 3 6,077,112
Agency Securities 5 month weighted average 124,801
Mortgage-Backed Securities 2 year weighted average 51,360
Other Securities 1 year weighted average 100,441
Certificates of Deposit ¢ month weighted average 4,356,126
3 10,708,840

The Water, Gas and Light Commission’s investments in U.S. Treasuries and other investments were rated AAA by Standard & Poor's.

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES
Property Taxes

Property taxes were fevied on July 21, 2008, on the January 1, 2008 assessed value of all real and personal property including
mobile homes and motor vehicles located within the City. Tax hills were mailed on Sepiember 16, 2008, and payable before
December 20, 2008. The lien date for unpaid taxes was December 21, 2008, After that date, an interest penalty of 18%
applies. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied fo the extent they result in current receivables.

The City is permitied by the Municipal Finance Law of the state to levy taxes up to $20.00 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for
general government services other than the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt and in unlimited amounts for the
payment of principal and interest on long-term debt. A tax rate of 9.16 mills was fevied during fiscal year 2009 for the City (mill
equals §1 per thousand doliars of assessed value).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Property Taxes {Continued)

Gross property iaxes receivable at June 30, 2009 are $995,815. An allowance of $943,929 has been established for taxes in
dispute and taxes that will not be collected for the year ended June 30, 2008, resulting in a net receivable for property taxes of
$51,886.

Sales Taxes

The City and Dougherty County joinily levy a 1% local option sales tax, of which the proceeds are split, 60% City and 40%
Dougherty County. The proceeds are collected by the State of Georgia and remitted to the City. The tax law reguires an

offsetting reduction in property tax during each subsequent year of assessment equal to the amount of sales fax revenue
received in the prior year.

in addition, there is an additional 1% Special Purpose Local Opticn Sales Tax Program ("SPLOST") which was passed by
referendums in 1989 (SPLOST 1l), 1894 {SPLOST lil), 1899 (SPLOST 1V), and 2004 (SPLOST V). The proceeds from these
sales tax programs are used to finance various capital projects. The SPLOST programs are administered by Dougherty County.
SPLOST taxes receivable at June 30, 2009 are $2,539,903.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable of the primary government consisted of the fellowing at June 30, 2008:

Sanitary Nonmajor Nonmajor
General Sewer Governmental Business-type
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Gross receivables 3 2,656,393 % 603,105 % 420,755 23,621
Less aliowance for
doubtful accounts (1,580,217) - - -
Net receivables 3 1,076,176 $ 603,105 $ 420,755 23,621

The Water, Gas and Light Commission had accounis receivable at June 30, 2009, of $15,130,6866, which is net of an allowance

for uncollectible accounts of $837,853.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable of the primary government consist of communily developmeant [oans to individuals and businesses. Financing

has been provided by various federal and state grants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

The City's capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

Primary Government:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2009
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 18,882,321 - 3 (5,769) 3 (745,564) 18,130,088
Construction in progress 1,291,151 2,668,209 (95,384) (2,142,813) 1,721,053
Total assets not depreciated 20,173,472 2,668,209 (101,163) (2,888,477) 19,852,041
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 59,941,264 365,205 (144,918) 1,315,128 61,476,681
Equipment and vehicles 24,632,901 2,815,520 (2,468,254) (252,329) 24,727 838
Infrastructure 68,311,375 1,267,358 - 1,472,109 71,050,842
Total assets depreciaied 152,885,540 4,448,083 {2,613,170) 2,534,908 157,255,361
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 13,243,194 1,526,071 {865,212) {438,608) 14,265,445
Equipment and vehicles 14,499,142 1,506,871 {1,868,769) 23,838 14,061,082
Infrastructure 51,163,379 797,451 - 451,733 52,412,563
Total accumulated depreciation 78,805,715 3,830,393 {2,033,981) 36,963 80,739,080
Total assets depreciated, net 73,878,825 617,690 (579,189) 2,497 945 76,516,271
Governmental activities assets, net $ 94,153,297 3,285,899 $ (680,352) $ {390,532} 96,368,312
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Primary Government:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2009
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 12,083,070 3 - 5 - $ 536,062 $ 12,719,132
Construction in progress 353,240 2,707,144 - (37,364) 3,023,020
Total assets not depreciated 12,436,310 2,707,144 - 598,698 15,742 152
Capitai assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 126,937,834 - - 211,403 127,149,237
Equipment and vehicles 27,575,541 1,568,354 {1,695,604) 179,530 27,625,821
infrastructure 37,153,971 138,875 - {636,062) 36,656,784
Total asseis depreciated 181,667,346 1,705,229 {1,695,604) {245,129) 191,431,842
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 36,337,010 2,050,126 - 348,544 38,735,680
Equipment and vehicles 15,075,325 1,785,498 (987,913) (36,963) 15,835,947
Infrastruciure 27,842,098 1,723,020 - {348,544) 29,216,574
Total accumulated depreciation 79,254 433 5,658,644 (987,813) (36,983) 83,788,201
Total assels depreciated, net 112,412,813 {3,853,415) (707 ,691) (208,166) 107,643,641
Business-type activilies assets, net $ 124,848,223 $  {1,146271) $ (707,691) § 390,532 $ 123,385,793
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government 3 600,855
Judicial 5,847
Public safety 1,496,212
Public works 965,521
Culture and recreation 493,025
Community development 268,826

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,830,393

Business-type activities:

Sanitary sewer $ 3,204 625
Solid waste 434,571
Transit 365,063
Civic center 412,618
Airport 1,014,830
Municipal auditorium 126,937

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 5,558,644
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Discretely Presented Component Unifs:

Activity for Chehaw Park Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 3 1,283,104 $ - $ - $ 1,283,104

Construction in progress 15,025 89,315 - 104,340

Total assets not depreciated 1,298,128 88,315 - 1,387,444
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 8,622,051 - - 8,622,051

Equipment and vehicles 430,727 - (12,858) 417,869

Total assets depreciated 9,052 778 - (12,858) 9,039,920
Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements 2,261,594 225,755 - 2,487,348

Equipment and vehicles 255,012 35,342 {12,858) 277,496

Total accumulated depreciation 2,518,806 261,097 {12,858) 2,764,845

Total assels depreciated, nat 6,536,172 (261,097) - 6,275,075
Chehaw Park Authority assets, net $ 7,834,301 3 (171,782) % - 3 7,662,519
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5.

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED}

Discretely Presented Component Unifs: Continued

Activity for the Water, Gas and Light Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
tand $

Total assets not depreciated

Capitai assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Plant facilities

Total assets depreciated

L ess accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Plant facilities

Total accumulated depreciation

Total assets depreciated, net

Balance Balance
June 30, 20038 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009
1,479,157 3 139,604 3 (165,467) 1,453,294
1,479,157 139,604 {165,467) 1,453,294
23,863,112 1,617,893 (1,009,288) 24471717
11,185,087 235,412 (37,743) 11,382,766
81,617,171 3,150,264 {612,306) 84,048,129
116,565,380 5,003,568 {1,666,337) 119,902,612
8,681,043 2,121,248 {1,041,958) 9,760,331
3,437,531 528,661 {98,284) 3,867,908
25,218,782 2,839,536 (691,562) 27,366,756
37,337,356 5,489,443 {1,831,804) 40,894,995
79,228,024 {485,874) 165,467 78,907 617
80,707,181 3 (346270) $ - 80,360,911

WGE&L Commission assets, net $
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT

A.

Primary Government

Governmental activities

General obligation bonds
Add deferred amounts

Unamortized premium
Total bonds payable

Notes payable

Certificates of participation

Compensated absences

Governmental activity

long-term liabilities

Business-type activities

Revenue bonds
Add deferred amounts
Unamortized discount
Total bonds payable
Notes payable
Capital leases
Compensated absences
Business-type activity
long-term liabilities

Balance, Balance, Due Within
June 30, 2008 Additions Reductions June 30, 2009 One Year
$ 17,720,000 - $ 5,700,000 $ 12,020,000 3 5,905,000
142,451 - 70,433 72,018 -

$ 17,862,451 - 3 5,770,433 $ 12,092,018 $ 5,905,000
5,225,000 - 300,000 4,925,000 300,000
10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 -
2,956,709 2,804,684 2,963,542 2,897,851 2,614,911

$ 36,044,160 2,804,684 3 9,033,975 $ 29,914,869 5 8,819,911
$ 39,110,000 - 3 2,440,000 $ 36,670,000 % 2,525,000
(579,510) - (84,678) (494,832) -
38,530,490 - 2,355,322 36,175,168 2,525,000
120,054 - 68,468 51,586 41,166
58,681 - 58,681 - -
829,202 582,485 509,161 902,526 812,273

$ 39,538,427 582,485 3 2,891,632 $  37.129,280 $ 3,378,439
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT {CONTINUED)

A. Primary Government (Continued)

The government-wide statement of net assets includes $2,525,000 of the long-term liabilities due within one year for business-type
activities in liabilities payabie from restricted assets. The remaining amount of $33,650,168 is dispiayed as noncurrent liabilities,
due in more than one year, on that same statement.

For governmenial funds, compensated absences are tliquidated by the General, Computer Aided Dispatch, Community
Development and Grant Funds. For business-type activities, compensated absences are liguidated by the Sokd Waste, Transit,

Civic Center, Sanitary Sewer, Auditorium and Airport Funds.

Governmental Activities Debt

Notes Payable

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has issued to the City, two (2) Section 108 Guaranteed Loans
for the purpose of providing subordinated debt financing for the development of the Albany Hilton Garden Inn Hotel and
Conference Center. The City's Section 108 Guaranteed Loans outstanding at June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Balance
Original Interest June 30,
Amount Rates 2009
HUD Section 108 Loan, B-02-MC-13-0001 3 5,500,000 2.00% - 5.00% $ 4,125,000
HUD Section 108 Loan, B-98-M{C-13-0001 500,000 2.00% - 5.00% 300,000
Total $ 4 425 000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
A.

Primary Government (Continued}

Governmental Activities Debt (Continued)

Notes Payable {Continued)

The Albany Dougherty Inner City Authority is the recipient of an Equity Fund Loan from the One Georgia Authority. The
amount of this loan is $500,000. This is additional funding for the Albany Hilton Garden Inn and Conference Center
Project. The note is to be paid back over a term of 20 years at an interest rate of zero percent. Quarterly payments will
begin once the hotel and conference center are generating adequate cash flow to debt service all loans, but not later than
five years from the date of the certificate of occupancy. ADICA acts as a pass-through conduit with respect to this One
Georgia loan and has received a secured promissory note from Albany Holdings, Inc. in the amount of $500,000 with
terms the same as the terms from the One Georgia loan. This loan is not inciuded in the maturity table below as debt
service paymenis have not yet been determined.

Notes payable debt service requirements to maturity, including interest of $1,858,961, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015 - 2019
2020 - 2024

Principal Interest Total

$ 300,000 $ 232,869 532,869
300,000 219,218 519,218
300,000 204,904 504,904
300,000 190,023 490,023
300,000 174,708 474,708
1,500,000 630,835 2,130,835
1,425,000 206,404 1,631,404

$ 4,425,000 $ 1,858,961 6,283,961
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT {CONTINUED)

A,

Primary Government (Continued)

Governmental Activities Debt (Continued)

Certificates of Participation

in June 1998, the City entered into a lease pool agreement with the Georgia Municipal Association (the “Asscciation”).
The funding of the lease pool was provided by the issuance of $150,126,000 Certificates of Participation by the
Association. The Association passed the net proceeds through to the pariicipating municipalities with the City participation
fotaling $10,000,000. The lease pocl agreemeni with the Association provides that the City owns their portion of the
assets invested by the pool and is responsible for the paymeni of their portion of the principal and interest of the
Certificates of Participation. The principal of $1¢,000,000 is due in a ump sum payment on June 1, 2028. Interest is
payable at a rate of 4.75% each year. The Cily draws irom the invesimeni to lease equipment from the Association. The
lease pool agreement requires the City to make lease payments back into its investment account to fund the principal and
interest requirements of the 1998 GMA Certificates of Participafion. Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2010 $ - $ 475,000 $ 475,000
2011 - 475,000 475,000
2012 - 475,000 475,000
2013 - 475,000 475,000
2014 - 475,000 475,600
2015 -2019% - 2,375,000 2,375,000
2020 - 2024 - 2,375,000 2,375,000
2025 - 2028 10,000,000 1,800,000 11,200,000

$ 10,000,000 $ 8,025,000 $ 19,025,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

A,

Primary Government (Continued)

Governmental Activities Debt (Continued)

Certificates of Participation (Continued)

As part of the issuance of the certificates of pariicipation, the City entered into an interest rate swap agreement. Under the
Swap Agreement, the City is required to pay {1} a semi-annual (and beginning July 1, 2003, a monthly) floating rate of
interest based on the TBMA Municipal Swap Index (plus a spread) te, or on behalf of, the Swap Counterparty (the "Swap
Payment”); and the Swap Counterparty will pay to, or on behalf of, the City a semi-annual payment based on a rate equal
to the fixed rate on the Contract times a nctional amount specified in the Swap Agreement, but generally equal to the
outstanding unpaid principal portion of such Contract, less the amount originally deposited in the Reserve Fund relating to
the Contract, and (i) a ohe-time Swap Premium to be paid on the effective date of the Swap Agreement. The semi-annual
payments from the Swap Counterpariy with respect to the City are structured, and expected, to be sufficient to make all
inferest paymenis due under the Contract, and related distributions of interest on the Certificates. Under the Swap
Agreement, the City’s obligation to pay floating payments to the Swap Counterparty in any calendar year may not exceed
an amount equal to the TBMA Municipal Swap Index plus 5% to be determined on the first business day of December in
the preceding year. This agreement matures on June 1, 2028.

in the unlikely event that the Swap Counterparty becomes insclvent, or fails to make payments as specified in the Swap

Agreement, the City would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the Swap’s fair value. To minimize this risk, the City
executed this agreement with counterpariies of appropriate credit strength.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERNM DEBT (CONTINUED)

A.

Primary Government (Continued)

Governmental Activities Debt {Continued)

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds fo provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.
These bonds are direct general obligations of the City either directly or through leases and/or intergovernmentat
agreements with Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority (ADICA). General obligation bonds have been issued for general
government activities and are reported in the governmental column of the government-wide statements. Principal and
interest are payable from an ad valorem tax upon all property of the City.

General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009, are as foliows:

Balance
Interest June 30,
Rates 2009
2002 ADICA Refunding issue 3.00% - 4.00% $ 2,530,000
2007 ADICA Issue 4.25% 9,490,000
12,020,00C
Add: Unamortized premium 72,018

$ 12,092,018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERNM DEBT (CONTINUED)

A.

Primary Government {Continued)

Governmental Activities Debt (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)
A description of these General cbligation bond issues is provided below.

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, $8.590.000 Principal {ADICA)

The Series 2002 Bonds are limited obligations of ADICA and are payable sclely from the rental payments received irom
the City pursuant to a Lease Agreement between ADICA and the City, together with all other rents, revenues and receipts
arising out of or in connection with ADICA’s ownership of the facilities described herein. The obligation of the City to make
rental payments pursuant to the Lease Agreement is absolute and unconditional and will be deemed and construed to be a
general obligation of the City. The proceeds of the Series 2002 Bonds were used to (i) effect a current refunding of
ADICA's Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992, and (i} pay expenses related {o the issuance and sale of the Series
2002 Bonds. The 1992 Series was calied on June 7, 2002. The Series 2002 bonds are due in annual installments of
approximately $1,190,000 to $1,290,000 through February 2011 with interest at 3.0% to 4.00%, payable February and
August each year.

Revenue Bonds. Series 2007, $14.000,000 Principat (ADICA)

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the City issued bonds through the Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority (ADICA) in
the amount of $14,000,000. The bonds bear interest of 4.25% with final maturity in 2011. Proceeds of the bonds were
used for the purpose of financing 1) all or a portion of the cost of acquisition, construction, development and equipping of
various capital outlay projects located within the City; and 2) to pay the costs of issuance of the bonds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT {CONTINUED)}

A

Primary Government (Continued}

Governmental Activities Debt (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds {Continued)

Revenue Bonds. Series 2007, $14.000.00C Principal (ADICA) (Continued)

The bonds are limited obligations of ADICA, payable solely from payments to be made by the City pursuant to an
intergovernmentai contract between ADICA and the City. The City’s obligation under the contract to make payments 0
ADICA at times and in amounts sufficient to enable ADICA to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds is absolute and
unconditional, is secured by a pledge of the City's full faith and credit and taxing powers and will not expire so long as any
of the bonds remain outstanding and unpaid. The City intends to make its payments under the contract from its portion of
the revenues generated by a one percent special local option sales and use tax (the "SPLOST"); however, the City's
porfion of the revenues from the SPLOST are not pledged to such payments or to secure the payment of the bonds.

General obligation bonds debt service requirements to maturity are as follows at June 30, 2009

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending June 30,
2010 $ 5905600 $ 502,045 § 8,407,045
2011 6,115,000 256,663 8,371,663
12,020,000 3% 758,708 $ 12,778,708
Add unamoriized premium 72,018

$ 12,092,018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)}

A Primary Government {Continued)

Business-type Activities Debt

Revenue Bonds

The City also issues revenue bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay
debt service. Revenue bonds have been issued for business-like activities and are reported in the business-type column
of the government-wide statements. Principal and interest are payable from enterprise fund revenue.

Revenue bonds ocutstanding at June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Balance
Interest June 30,
Rates 2009

2001 Sewerage Sysiem Revenue Bonds 4.125% - 5.00% $ 10,835,000
2007 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds 4.00% - 5.00% 25,835,000
36,67C,000
Less: Unamortized discount {494 832)
$ 36,175,168
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

A.

Primary Government {Continued})

Business-type Activities Debt (Continued)}

Revenue Bonds (Continued)
A description of each of the ouistanding revenue bonds is provided below.

$13,700,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001

On June 14, 2001, the City issued $13,700,000 in Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 to make additions and
improvements to the City’s sewerage sysiem.

Interesi expense related to the Series 2001 Bonds for the year ended June 30, 2009, was $51C,190. All interest incurred
was expensed.

$27.745.000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007

On April 17, 2007, the City issued $27,745,000 in Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series with interest rates between
4% and 5%. The City issued the bonds for the purpose of 1) current refunding of $30,040,C600 outstanding Sewerage
System Revenue Bonds, Series 1987 maluring on and after July 1, 2008, 2) purchasing a surety bend for the reserve
account and a bond insurance policy and 3} paying the cost of issuing the Series 2007 bonds. The City used the net
proceads from the issuance of the revenue bonds to purchase U.S. government securities and those securities were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments until the 1997 issue were called.

The difference between the requisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt amounted to $641,133.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

A. Primary Government (Continued)

Business-type Activities Debt {(Continued)

Revenue Bonds (Continued)
In accordance with GASB No. 23 “Acceunting and Financial Refundings of Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities”, the
advance refunding charge was deferred and is being amortized over the shorter life of the new debt as a component of

interest expense. At June 30, 2008, the unarmortized balance was $494,832.

Interest expense related to the Series 2007 Bonds for the year ended June 30, 2009, was $1,172,750. All interest incurred
was expensed.

Annuai debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 3 2,525,000 $ 1,632,087 $ 4,157,087
2011 2,620,000 1,528,391 4,148,391
2012 2,725,000 1,420,280 4,145,280
2013 2,830,060 1,307,121 4,137,121
2014 2,940,000 1,177,408 4,117,406
2015 - 2019 16,515,000 3,629,689 20,144,689
2020 - 2023 8,515,000 465,316 6,980,316

36,670,000 $ 11,160,290 $ 47,830,290
Less unamortized discount {494,832)
$ 36,175,168
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED}

A Primary Government (Continued}

Business-type Activities Debt (Continued}

Notes Payable

The City has also incurred debt to the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority (GEFA) for various sewerage system and
solid waste system projects. These notes are as follows at June 30, 2009:

Originat Outstanding
Amount at June 30, 2009
Note payable, instalments of $10,472, including interest at 2.0% % 689,107 $ 51,586
3 51,5686

GEFA notes payabie debt service requirements to maturity, including interest of $776, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2010 $ 41,166 5 724 3 41,890
2011 10,420 52 10,472

3 51,586 3 776 3 52,362
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LLONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)}

B. Component Unit — Water, Gas and Light Commission

lL.ong-term liability activity for the Water, Gas and Light Commission (component unit) for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as

follows:

Bonds Payable:
Revenue bonds
Less deferred amounts
on refunding:

Total bonds payable
Capitat leases
Compensated absences
Business-type activity

Long-term Habilities

Balance, Balance, Due Within

June 30, 2008 Additions Reductions June 30, 2009 One Year
$ 23,070,000 3 - 3 985,000 $ 22,085,000 $ 1,020,000
41,756 - 3,976 37,780 -
23,111,756 - 988,976 22,122,780 1,020,000
7,014,499 300,723 1,317,625 5,987,687 976,786
2,559,305 1,152,375 1,234,768 2,476,912 792,612
$ 32,685,560 $ 1,453,098 $ 3,541,368 5 30,597,289 $ 2,789,398
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED}
B. Component Unit — Water, Gas and Light Commission (Continued)
Revenue Bonds

Revenue bonds of the Water, Gas and Light Commissicn {the "Commission”) outstanding at June 30, 2009, are as

foliows:
Balance
interest June 30,
Rates 2009

1998 Water Revenue Bonds 3.20%-5.25% 3 $,360,000
2000 Water Revenue Bonds 4£.45%-6.00% 6,420,000
2005 Water Revenue Bonds 3.97% 6,305,000
Total $ 22,085,000

A description of each of the cutstanding revenue bonds is provided below.

2005 Water Revenue Bonds. During the year ended June 30, 2008, the City and Commission issued $6,410,000 of tax-
exempt Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (Series 2005 Bonds). The proceeds from the bonds are to be used for
advance refunding of the City and Commission's Series 2000 water revenue bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of
the City and the Commission and are payable solely from the net revenues of the Water System.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B.

Component Unit — Water, Gas and Light Commission {Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)

The Series 2005 Bonds maturing on December 1, 2025 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the
option of the City and the Commission, on or after December 1, 2024, in whole or in part {in any order of maturity and by
iot within a maturity) at any time, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

2000 Water Revenue Bonds. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the City and the Water, Gas and Light Commission
issued $8,000,000 of tax-exempt Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 (Series 2000 Bonds). The proceeds from the bonds
are being used for the various purposes of financing the costs of acquiring, constructing and installing certain additions,
extensions and improvements to the water system of the City and Commission. The Series 2000 Bonds are limited
obligations of the City and the Commission and are payable solely from the net revenues of the water system.

The Series 2000 bonds are due in annual installments of $230,000 to $240,000 through December 1, 2009, with a balloon
payment of $6,180,000 due December 1, 2010, and with interest ranging from 4.45% to 6.00%, payable semi-annually on
June 1 and December 1.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B.

Component Unit — Water, Gas and Light Commission (Continued)
Revenue Bonds {(Continued)
1998 Water Revenue Bonds. The City and the Commission aiso have Series 1998 water revenue bonds outstanding at

June 30, 2008. The Series 19898 bonds are due in annual installments of $720,000 to $1,145,600 through December 1,
2018, with interest ranging from 3.20% to 5.25%, payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1.

The Series 1988 Bonds maturing on December 1, 2010, and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the
option of the City and the Commission, on or after December 1, 2009, in whole or in part (in any order of maturity and by
lot within a maturity) at any time, at the following redemption prices {expressed as percentages of the principal amount of
the Series 1998 Bonds being redeemed), plus accrued interest {o the redemption date:

Dates of Redemption Redemption
{inclusive) Prices
December 1, 2009 to November 30, 2010 101.0%
December 1, 2010 to November 30, 2011 100.5
December 1, 2011 and thereafter 100.0
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. L ONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Component Unit - Water, Gas and Light Commission (Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Interest expense related to the Series 2005, Series 2000 and Series 1998 Bonds for the year ended June 30, 2009, was
$1,058,064. No inferest was capitalized during the year ended June 30, 2009.

A summary of debt service requirements of bonds payable, Series 2005, Series 2000, and Series 1998, is as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 1,020,000 % 1,016,580 3 2,036,580
2011 7,005,000 776,379 7,781,379
2012 1,135,000 589,410 1,724,410
2013 1,190,000 536,629 1,726,629
2014 1,245,000 483,073 1,728,073
2015-2019 7,100,600 1,505,267 8,605,297
2020-2024 2,315,000 443,631 2,758,631
2025-2026 1,075,000 39,617 1,114,617

$ 22085000 § 5,390,626 $ 27,475,626
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B.

Component Unit — Water, Gas and Light Commission (Continued)
Capital Leases

The Water, Gas and Light Commission has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of
computer equipment and equipment to be used in the Commission’s meter reading process. These lease agreements
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes, and therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments as of the inception dates. Assets under capital lease total $12,201,822, with accumulated
depreciation of $5,209,769. The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2010 $ 1,227,159
2011 1,300,344
2012 1,288,808
2013 1,255,536
2014 1,231,865
2015 504,154
Total minimum lease payments 6,807,866
Less: Amount representing interest (810,269)
Present value of minimum lease payments & 5,987,597
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B.

Component Unit — Albany- Dougherty inner City Authority (ADICA)

Conduit Debt

From time 1o time, ADICA has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to both private and public sector
entities for the acquisition and construction of commercial facilities deemed to be of public interest. ADICA is not obligated
in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reporied as liabilities in the accompanying
financial statements. Three (3) series of bond issuances have occurred from November 1, 2003 to June 30, 2009, totaling
$46,072,347. The total amount of bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009 is $44,368,141.

SHORT-TERM DEBT REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT

A.

Component Unit - Water, Gas and Light Commission

The Commission used a revelving line of credit to finance a variety of projects, inciuding financing of general operations.
Short-term debt activity for the year-end June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Reductions June 30, 2009
Line of Credit $ 762,300 % 604,800 $ - % 1,374,100
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

RETIREMENT PLANS

A.

Defined Contribution Plan

The City of Albany maintains a defined contribution pension plan, the City of Albany Retirement Savings Plan ("the Savings
Plan™), which was established by the City of Albany on January 1, 1988 to provide reasonable retirement security for its
“Senior Management Employees”. The plan is administered by Naticnwide Retirement Solutions. At June 30, 2009, there
were three active participants. The City is required to contribute 8.9% of each Plan participant compensation. Plan
participants are required to contribute 5% of their compensation. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are
established by and may be amended by the City of Albany Board of Commissioners. For the year ended June 30, 2009,
the City contributed 378,826 and employees contributed $8,078.

Defined Benefit Plan

Plan Descripiion

The City of Albany maintains a multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan, the City of Albany Pension
Plan (“the Plan"). The funding methods and determination of benefits payable were established by the legislative acts
creating the Plans, as amended, and in general, provide that pension funds are to be accumulated from Cily contributions
and income from the investment of accumulated funds. The plan is administered by a board of {rustees, which includes
the Mayor, the Chief Financial Officer, two members appointed by the Board of Commissioners, three members eiected
from active and retired employees and two members selected from the metropolitan Albany area. Separate financial
statemenis are not issued for the City of Albany Pension Plan.

The Plan covers all full-time, permanent empioyees of the City of Albany and its component unit, the Water, Gas and Light
Commission; as well as the Artesian Federal Credit Union, the Albany Metropolitan Planning Commission, and certain
former City employees resulting from the Delineation of Services Agreement. individuals who were employed by the City
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B.

Defined Benefit Plan (Continued}

Plan Description (Continued)

prior to January 1, 1982, and who elected to remain in the Plan as then constituted are covered under the “old plan rutes”.
All empioyees hired on or after January 1, 1982, are covered by ihe provisions of the "new plan rules". The Plan provides
pension, death and disability benefiis.

Under the "old plan rules”, members may normally refire after obtaining 25 years of service or age 65 with at least five
years of service. Early retirement is possible if the member is within five years of his or her Normal Retirement Date and
has compieted at least five years of service. Benefits are calculated at 1.75% of the member's average monthly salary
multiplied by the employee's years of service at normal retirement date. Additionally, the members will receive a 1.5% per
vear cost-of-living increase in their pensions each year. The average monthly salary is defined as the sum of the
participants' reporied iotals compensation in the three years of employment out of the last five years of employment that
produce the highest average, divided by 36. Uniess a joint and survivor annuity option is elected by the member, the
pension benefits will continue for the lifelime of the member with no residual payments to any beneficiaries. For early
retirement, the pension payment is reduced by 5% for each year early retirement precedes normal retirement. Vesting
changed from 100% after 10 years to 50% after five years, increasing 10% per year to 100% after 10 years of participation.

Under the "new plan ruies”, members may retire afier obtaining 30 years of service or the attainment of age 6C with five
years of service. Early retirement is possible if members are within five years of their Normal Retirement Date, and have
completed at least five years of service. Benefits are calculated in the same manner as under the old plan, but at 1.50%.
Additionally, the members will receive a 3% per year cost-of-living increase in their pensions each year. All other
provisions of the old plan are applicable io the new plan. Al modifications to the Plan must be supported by actuarial
analysis and must be adopted by at least five members ¢f the Board of Trustees.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED}

B.

Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

Plan Description {Continued)

Membership in the Plan as of June 30, 2008 is as foliows:

Active employees 1,138
Retired pariicipants receiving benefiis 710
Terminaied vested participants 372

Total membership 2,220

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Plan are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Coniributions from the empioyers
are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the contributions has been made. Benefils and refunds are
recegnized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Investment inceme is recognized by the Plan
when earned. Gains and losses on sales and exchanges are recognized on the frade date. The financial statements of
the Plan are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Centributions from the employers are recegnized when due and
a formal commitment fo provide the contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Investment income is recognized by the Plan when earned. Gains and
losses on sales and exchanges are recoghized on the trade date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B.

Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Method Used to Valug Invesiments

investments are stated at fair value. Shori-term investments are reporied at cost, which approximates fair value.
Securities traded on the national securities markets are valued at the last reported sales price on the tast business day of
the plan year. Investments traded in the over-the-counter market and listed securities for which no sale was reported on
that date are valued at fair vaiue determined by the frustee on the last reporied bid and asked prices. The bonds,
government, agency and corporate are reported at their market value as of June 30, 2008. No investment in any one
organizaticn represented 5% or more of the net assets available for pension benefits at June 30, 2009. There are no
investments in, loans {o, or leases with parties related to the pension plan.

Contribution Requirements

The City's funding policy is to contribute a percentage of covered employee payroll as developed in the actuarial valuation
for the Plan. Section 47-20 of the Georgia Code sets forth the funding standards for state and local government pension
plans. Effective July 1, 2007, employees were required to make contributions to the Plan as follows: General Employees
— 4% of annual covered payroll, Safety Employees — 7% of annual covered payroll. The participating employers are
required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the coverage of their employees through periodic
contributions at actuarially determined rates. The actuarial determined contribution amount is the sum of the annual
normal cost (determined under the eniry age normal method) and the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability as a level percentage of future payroll. Administrative cosis of the Plan are financed through investment income.
Actual Coniributions tc the plan were $5,450,856 from the City and $1,609,864 from Water Gas and Light Commission, a
component unit of the City. The City had no net pension obligation as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 20092.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
B. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued}

Trend Information

Fiscal Year Annual Pension
Ending Cost (APC)
6/30/2007 $ 4,269,785
6/30/2G08 3,474,213
6/30/2C0% 7,060,720

Percentage of APC
Contributed

81 %
131
100

Net Pension
Obligation
{Asset}*

$

(34,739)
(1,118,600)

«  As discussed in Note 1 and Note 19, the City changed its accounting and funding policies refated to the Plan during
the year ended June 30, 2008. The City will now have a required contribution which is an actuarially determined
percentage of payroll each year as opposed to a required contribution equal to a set dollar amount. This practice is
allowed under generally accepted accounting principles and is preferable so the City can ensure a direct correlation
of required contributions to actual payroll. As a resuit of this change in accounting policy, the actual employer
contributions should always equal the annuai required contribution, which for fiscal year 2009 was required to be
8.9% of payroli for general employees and 11.8% of payroll for public safety employees. Also as & result of this
change in policy, the previously determined net pension asset of $1,118,600 (which was accumuiated as actual
contributions in previous years exceeding the set dollar amount of the annual required contribution) has been
restated to zero and has been removed from net assets of the City.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)
As of the most recent valuation date, July 1, 2008 the funded status of the Plan is as follows:

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Unfunded Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Annual Liability as a
Actuarial Actuarial Value Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date of Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered
71172008 $ 107485676 $ 160,715,933 $ 53,230,257 70% % 42,310,595 126%

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear
frend information about whether the actuarial value of plan net assets is increasing or decreasing over time relafive to the
actuarial accrued liability.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far
into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as resuits are compared o past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective.
Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of July 1, 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B.

Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

The actuarial funding method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under this method, projected benefits are
determined for all participants and the associated ligbilities are spread in @ manner that produces level annual cost as a
percent of pay in each year from the age of hire (entry age) to the assumed retirement age. The cost allocated to the
current fiscal year is called the normal cost. The actuarial accrued Hability for active participants is then calculated as a
portion of the total cost of the plan allocated to prior yvears. The actuarial accrued liability for participants currently
receiving benefits, for active participants beyond the assumed retirement age, and for participants entifled to deferred
benefits, is equal to the present value of the benefits expected to be paid. No normal costs are applicable for these
participants. The excess of the total actuarial accrued liability over the actuarial value of plan assets is called the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability. The period and related method for amortizing the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability is 30
years from 1982, and current changes in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over 15 years for actuarial gains and
losses; 20 years for plan provisions and 30 years for actuarial assumptions and cost methods as a ievel dollar amount.
Thesea amoriization pericds, if applicable, are ciosed for this plan year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED}
B. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The information presentied ahove was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additicnal

information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

Juiy 1, 2008

Entry Age Normal
Levei Percent of Pay

Amortization periocd 24 years
Asset valuation method 10-year smoothed market value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return {includes inflation) 8.50%
Projected salary increases (includes inflation} 4.00%
Inflation 3.00%

Cost-of-living adjustmenis
Old Plan Members
New Plan Members
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2009, is as follows:

Due toffrom other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund
General Fund Community Development Fund $ 544,394
General Fund SPLOST 1,164,185
General Fund Sanitary Sewer Fund 2,074,148
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 2,304,501
General Fund Internal Service Fund - Self-Administered Insurance 1,975,503
General Fund Internal Service Fund - Workers’ Comp 507
General Fund Sofid Waste Fund 316,436
General Fund Airport Fund 758,042
Sanitary Sewer Fund General Fund 1,800,824
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Solid Waste Fund 663,159
Nonmajor Governmenta! Funds (General Fund 847,568
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Airport Fund 5,082
Nonmajor Governmentai Funds Nonmajor Enterprise Fund 5,242
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Sanitary Sewer Fund 588,223
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund General Fund 37,348
Public Employee Deposit Fund General Fund 634,598

The outstanding balances between funds resuit mainly from the time-lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur; (2) transactions are recorded in the accouniing system, and (3} payments
between funds are made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Advances to/from other funds result from the use of Public Improvement Fund lease pool preceads by various funds for capital
outlay and the repayment of these funds to the Public improvement Fund over several years. The composition of advances
to/from other funds al June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Advances toffrom other funds

Receivable Fund

Payable Fund

Noenmajor Governmental Funds Sanitary Sewer Fund 1,178,155

Nenmajor Governmental Funds Solid Waste Fund 945,964

Nenmajor Governmental Funds Alrport Fund 1,074

Nonmaior Governmental Funds Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 5,244

General Fund Nonmajor Governmentat Funs 3,721,935
Due to/from primary government and component units

Receivable Entity Payable Entity

General Fund Water, Gas & Light Commission 1,549,782
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Water, Gas & Light Commissicn 318,000
Solid Waste Fund Water, Gas & Light Commission 1,847,725
Sanitary Sewer Fund Water, Gas & Light Commission 2,257,605
Public Empioyee Deposit Fund Water, Gas & Light Commission 275,818
General Fund Chehaw Park Authority 164,541
Chehaw Park Authority SPLOST Fund 17,534
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Transfers o Transfers from

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund - Hotel Motel Tax Fund $ 899428
General Fund Nenmajor Governmentat Fund - Pubiic improvement Fund 645,205
Solid Waste Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund - Public improvement Fund 276,908
Airport Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund - Pubtic improvement Fund 5,081
Nonmajor Business-type Fund - Civic Center Nonmajor Governmentat Fund - Public improvement Fund 5,244
Airport Fund General Fund 557,882
Nonmajor Governmentat Funds:

Public improvement Fund Sanitary Sewer 62,542

Grant Fund General Fund 495,819

ADICA Fund General Fund 367,403
Nonmajor Business-iype Funds

Transit Fund General Fund 937,168

Civic Center Fund General Fund 1,108,854

Auditorium Fund General Fund 55,509

interfund transfers are used fo (1) move revenues from the fund that staiute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that the
statute or budget requires to expend them, and {2) use unrestricied revenues collected in the general fund to finance various
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Primary Government:

The City is involved in a number of legal matters, which either have or could result in litigation. The nature of the lawsuits varies
considerably. The City has accrued amounts related to litigation where an cutcome unfaverable o the City is probable and the
amount can be estimated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Primary Government: {(Continued)

The City is contingently liable for a $1,300,000C loan from a local financial institution to the Payroll Development Authority. The
outstanding balance of this loan at June 30, 2008, is $1,153,506.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such agencies, principally the
Federal Government. Any disallowed claims, including amountis already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.
The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City
expects such amounis, if any, to be immaterial

Water, Gas and Light Commission:

The Water, Gas and Light Commission (a component unit) is currently involved in rate proceedings, most of which are of a routine
nature. The Commission is also involved in other litigation. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable,
in the opinion of the Commission's management, the resoiution of these matters will not have a material adverse affect on the
financial condition of the Commission.

Additionally, the Commission is an electric utility participant in the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia (MEAG). MEAG is a
public corporation and an instrumentality of the State of Georgia created to supply electricity to jocal government electric
distribution systems. As provided by state [aw, MEAG establishes rates and charges so as to produce revenues sufficient to cover
its costs, including debt service, but it may not operate any of its projects for profit unless any such profits inure to the benefit of the
public.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Water, Gas and Light Commission: (Continued)

As of June 30, 2008, the Commission is obligated to purchase all of its bulk power supply requirements from MEAG for a period
not to exceed 50 years. The Commission has agreed to purchase all of its future power and energy requirements in excess of that
received by the Commission through the Southeastern Power Administration at prices intended to cover the operating costs of the
systems and to retire any debt incurred by MEAG. In the event that revenues are insufficient to cover &l costs and refire the
outstanding debt, the participanis have guaranteed a portion of the unpaid debt based on their individual entitlement shares of the
output and services of generating units acquired or constructed by MEAG. [n addition, in the event of discontinued service to a
participant in default, the Commission would be obligated to purchase additional power subject to contractual limitations.
Payments to MEAG are made monthly based on KWH usage. The total payments under these contracts amounted to
$55,099,621 in 2008.

At June 30, 2009, the outstanding debt of MEAG was approximately $4 billion. The Commission’s guaraniee varies by individual
projects undertaken by MEAG and totals approximately 3366 miliicn at June 30, 2008

Additionally, the Commission conirols a real estate site formerly known as the Albany Manufactured Gas Ptant (the "Plant’). The
Plant previously used a method of manufacturing gas from coal that interfered with the environment. The Commission is therefore
subject to environmental laws and reguiations and is exposed to liabilities and compliance costs arising from the past disposai of
hazardous waste from the past manufaciuring of gas. The Commission has contracted with an engineering and construction firm
to prepare a compliance status report for the Georgia Environmental Protection Division. The compliance status report was
completed and filed with the Georgia Environmental Protection Division in June 2008,

At this time, the Commission anticipates thai corrective action wili be necessary to bring the Plant into compliance. The fotal cost
of this corrective action is anticipated fo range from $2,0600,000 to $10,00C,000. A total of $2,000,000 is believed by management
to be probable. During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Commission incurred costs of $14,429, with total incurred cost o date
of $245,348. The liability has been reduced by these costs, resulting in a liability of $1,754,652 recorded on the statement of net
assets as an other long-term liabiity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the liabilities enumerated in the balance sheet at June 30, 2009, the City has contractual commitments on
uncompleted construction contracts fotaling approximately $800,457.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related te torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;
injuries to employees; and naturai disasters. [t is the policy of the City not to purchase commercial insurance for the risks of losses
to which it is exposed for long-term disability claims. The City does purchase commercial insurance for claims in excess of
coverage provided by its self insurance for risks of iosses o which it is exposed for workmen's compensation and group accident,
heaith, dental and major medical coverage. Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the coverages.

The Long-Term Disability Fund {(an Internal Service Fund) was established to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss for
group long-term disability. This fund services all claims, and cutside commercial coinsurance is not purchased. No liability for
unpaid claims existed at June 30, 2008, or June 30, 2009, and therefore no schedule of changes in fund claims liability is
presented.

The Workers' Compensation Fund (an Internal Service Fund) was established to account for and finance uninsured risks of loss
for workers' compensation. The Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum claim of $275,000. The City purchases commercial
coinsurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund and for all other risks of loss up to $3,000,000.

Changes in the balances of workers’ compensation claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 449,601 $ 257,032
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 604,802 551,868
Claim payments {373,886) {389,289)
Unpaid ¢laims, end of year $ 680,517 $ 449,601
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12.

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Public Empioyees Deposit Fund (an Enterprise Fund) was established to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss for
group accideni, health, dental and major medical insurance. Participanis include the primary government, its component units —
the Chehaw Park Authority and the Water, Gas and Light Commission. The Public Employee Deposit Fund provides coverage for
up to a maximum claim of $200,000. The City purchases commercial coinsurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by
the Fund and for all other risks of loss.

Changes in the balances of the group accideni, heaiih, dental and major medical ¢laims liabilities during the past two years are as
follows:

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 2,025,000 $ 1,644,000
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 12,011,806 18,886,105
Claim payments (12,941,806) {18,505,105)
Unpaid claims, end of year $ 1,085,000 $ 2,025,000

Operations are charged for estimated claims as incurred for medical insurance. Estimated losses on claims of other self-
insurance are charged to expense in the period the loss is determinable. The City does not currently utilize an actuary in
estimating claims in the areas of general hability or long-term disability. Actual estimates for incurred but not reported claims are
recorded as expenses in the Public Employee Deposit Fund, Self Administered Insurance Fund, and Workers” Compensation
Fund. These are the only areas in which the Cily feels claims can be reasonably estimated.

Prior to May 1, 2005, the City participated in the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency Property and Liability Insurance
Fund for ciaims in excess of coverage provided by iis self insurance for risks of loss for which it is exposed for general claims
liability. The Georgla interlocal Rick Management Agency Property and Liability insurance Fund is a public entify risk pool currently
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member local governments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12.

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)}

As a pari of this risk pool, the City was obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the pooi, to cooperate
with the pool's agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the fund, and fo report as promptly as
possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds being required to
pay any claim of ioss. The City was also to allow the pool's agents and attorneys to represent the City in investigation, setlement
discussions and all ievels of litigation arising out of any claim made against the City within the scope of loss protection furnished by
the fund.

The Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency Property and Liability Insurance Fund is to defend and protect the members of
the fund against Hability or loss as prescribed in the member government coniract and in accordance with the workers'
compensation law of Georgia. The Fund is io pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the
members, all interest accruing after eniry of judgment, and ail expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation, or defense.

Beginning May 1, 2005, the City is no longer part of the GIRMA risk pool, except that claims incurred prior o this date are still
being handled by GIRMA. The City is accounting for and financing its uninsured risks of loss for all claims liability for which the
City is exposed through the Self Administered Insurance Fund (an Internal Service Fund). Changes in the balances of the claims
liability during the past two years are as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 783,802 $ 507,823
Incurred ciaims and changes in estimates 1,787,667 823,457
Claim paymentis {(859,134) (647.478)
Unpaid claims, end of year 3 1,722,335 $ 783,802
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

NOTE 15.

RELATED ORGANIZATION

The City's governing board is responsible for all of the board appointments of the Albany Housing Authority. However, the City has
no further accouniability for this organization.

HOTEL/MOTEL LODGING TAX

The City has levied a 5% lodging tax. Of this percentage, 2% is aliocated each year to the Chamber of Commerce for use in the
promotion of the City. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, $1,311,461 of hotel/motel tax was collected, and $655,729, or 50%
of the amount collected was remitied to the Chamber of Commerce. The remaining balance was used by the City for the
promotion of tourism.

JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cifies and counties in the eight county west central Georgia area, is &
member of the Southwest Georgia Regional Development Center {RDC) and is required to pay annual dues thereto. During its
year ended June 30, 2609, the city paid $38,751 in such dues. Membership in an RDC is required by the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the RDC in Georgia. The RDC Board
membership includes the chief elected official of each county and municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the
member governments are liable for any debts cr obligations of an RDC. Separate financial statements may be obtained from:

Southwest Georgia Regional Development Center

P. 0. Box 346
Camilla, Georgia 31730
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The City of Albany maintains an other post-employment benefit plan which was required by GASB 45 and implemented
prospectively, The City of Albany Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan {"the OPEB Plan”), which includes retirees from the City of
Albany and its component unit, the Water, Gas and Light Commission. |n accordance with a Gity ordinance, the Cily's personnet
policy provides that all employees who retire under early, normal or disability retirement provisions are eligible for confirmed health
care benefits provided by the City. Employees under the age of 65 who retired prior {o July 1, 2003, receive the same health
insurance benefits as active employees. These retirees pay 25% of the cost of the premiums, with the Cily paying the remaining
75% of the cast. New “normal” retirees under age 65 who refired effective July 1, 2003, and later pay 40% of the premiums and
the City pays the remaining 60%. New "Early” retirees under the age of 65 who retired effective July 1, 2003, and later pay 50% of
the premium cost, with the City paying the remaining 50%.

At age 65, retired employees are removed from the City's group Mealth Plan but can purchase a Medicare supplement, which is
identical to the health plan offered to active City employees, except that the City becomes secondary payor. This Medicare
supplement has a maximum lifetime benefit cap of $50,000.

Retirees also receive life insurance benefits from the City. Current retirees and fuiure retirees who retire at age 65 or clder receive
iife insurance coverage that is reduced upon retirement io 50% of the amount previously allowed under the plan, and is further
reduced at age 70 to 65% of the amount of coverage at retirement. Future retirees who retire at ages younger than 85 receive life
insurance coverage that is reduced upon retirement to 50% of the amount previously allowed under the plan, and is further
reduced at age 65 o 65% of the amount of coverage at retirement, and is further reduced at age 70 to 50% of the amount of
coverage at retirement. Optional life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment cease at age 65 or upon retirement,
whichever cccurs later.

The General Fund pays the total monthly cost of post-retirement coverage, but is reimbursed for that portion of the premium
deemed fo be the retired employee's share. For the year ended June 30, 20098, the General Fund's net share of the premiums
paid for its 608 retired employees and retired employee’s spouses/dependents was $633,250. There were no significant changes
in the coverage provided.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Plan Description (Continued)

Membership in the OPEB Pian as of the most recent actuarial valuation date {July 1, 2008) is as follows:

Active employees 1,145
Retired participants receiving benefits 555
Spouse/depandent of retired pariicipants receiving benefits 53

Total membership 1,753

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City contributed $633,25C to the OFPEB Plan in the year ended June 30, 2008. The annual required contribution amount is
determined using actuarial methods and assumptions approved by the City Commission. The City Commission establishes and
may amend the funding policy for the OPEB Plan.

Annual required employer contribution $ 1,131,237
Annual pension cost 1,131,237
Employer contributions for period ending June 30, 2009 633,250
increase in net OPEE cbligation 497,987
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation end of year 3 497,987
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Trend Information

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Net OPEB
Ending Cost {(APC) APC Contributed Obligation
6/30/2009 $ 1,134,237 56% $ 497,987

As of July 1, 2008, he most recent vaiuation date, the funded status of the OPEB Plan is as follows:

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Unfunded Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Annual Liability as a
Actuarial Actuarial Value Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date of Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered
71172008 3 - $ 16,546,482 § 16,546,482 0% $ 42,570,855 39%

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan net assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reporied amount and assumptions about the probability of events far into the
future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject o continued revision as results are compared fo past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Caiculations are based on the plan in
effect at July 1, 2008. The assumptions used in the July 4, 2008 actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date Juiy 1, 2008
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortizaticn method Level Percent of Pay
Amortization pericd 30 years
Asset valuation methed Market Value
Actuarial assumplions:
Investment rate of return {includes inflation) 4.00%
Projected salary increases (includes inflation) 4.00%
[nflation 3.00%
Hesalth Care Trend Rate 10.50%
Ultimate Health Care Trend Rate 5.00%
Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2016

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On October 27, 2008, the blended component unit, Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority issued the Albany — Dougherty Inner City
Authority (Georgia) Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 for $6,000,000. Each advance under this bond shall bear interest at
6.75% per annum, from the date of the advance to the date the principal payment is received. Interest only shall be payabie with
respect to the advances made under this bond on each March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2010 from
the date thereof to and included September 1, 2011. The Series 2009 Bonds are issued for the purpose of financing or
refinancing, in whole or part, the cost of acquiring, constructing, developing and equipping various capital outlay projects located
within the City of Albany, Georgia.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18.

NOTE 18.

RELATED PARTY MATTERS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the blended component unit, Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority provided a loan in
the amount of $50,000 to & Board Member of Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority. The loan is to be used for the start-up cost
related to the member's business, which is located in the City. The loan is due in monthly installments beginning August 1, 2009.
The batance outstanding is $50,000 ai June 30, 2009.

RESTATEMENT

As discussed in Note 1 and Note 8, the City has determined that a restatement of net assets is required to reflect a change in
accounting from cne GAAP basis to another GAAP basis for the calculation of the net pension asset associated with the City's
defined benefit retirement plan in the June 30, 2008 financial report. This practice is allowed under generally accepted accounting
principies and is preferable so that the City can ensure a direct correlation of reguired contributions to actual payroff. The
restatement is as foilows:

Governmental Activities

Net assets as previously reported $ 137,777,105
Adjustment needed to properly state the net pension asset (1,118,600)
Net assels as restated $ 136,858,505
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - CITY OF ALBANY PENSION PLAN

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Unfunded Liability as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual a Percentage
Valuation Value Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets Liability Liability Ration Payroll Payroll
7/01/2002 105,180,588 $ 115,587,051 $ 10,406,463 91% 3 32,981,896 32%
710172003 101,234,385 116,585,581 15,351,186 87% 33,873,290 45%
7i31/2004 105,530,007 119,790,054 14,260,047 88% 34,501,482 41%
710172005 98,797,803 124,523,384 25,725,591 79% 37,961,629 68%
70112006 96,875,060 130,509,893 33,634,833 74% 39,516,995 85%
7/01/2007 100,442,613 133,852,447 33,509,834 75% 41,069,169 82%

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - CITY OF ALBANY OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Unfunded Liability as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual a Percentage
Valuation Value Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets Liabitity Liability Ration Payroll Payroll
71112008 - $ 16,546,482 $ 16,546,482 0% $ 42 570,855 39%
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

NONMAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds:

HoteliMotel Tax Fund

Grant Fund

Computer Aided Dispatch Fund

ADICA

Gortatowsky Fund

Debt Service Funds:

Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Funds:

Public Improvement Fund

]

To account for the collection and disbursement of hotel-mote! tax revenue.
To account for grant revenues and expenditures relaied o various short lived projecis.

To account for activities related to enhanced "911" services. Financing is provided from program
charges. Revenues are expanded for capital assets and sysiem operations.

To account for the activities of the Albany-Dougherty Inner City Authority related to inner city
development.

To account for resources provided by the estate of Henry Gortatowsky which are to be used to
maintain the Government Center Fountain.

To account for debt service transactions for bonds and debt other than those bonds issued by ADICA.

To account for the construction and financing of public improvements and services from general
governmental resources and GMA lease activity.



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBEINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2009

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivabie, net of allowances
Lean receivable

Due from other funds

Bue from other governments

Due from component units

Advance to other funds

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payzable
Due te other funds
Deferred revenues
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT}
Reserved for advances to other funds
Reserved for program expenditures
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved:

Undesignated
Totai fund balances

Total liabiiities and fund balances

{Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Fund

Hotel/ Computer Debt
Notel Grant Aided Gortatowsky Service

Tax Fund Dispatch ADICA Fund Fund

- 375,336 $ 641,560 416,517 - $ 5,808

- - 1,440,625 - 45,645 -

137,442 - 283,313 - - -

- - - 50,600 - -

84,952 - - - - 762,617

- 378,228 - 540 - -

222,394 753,564 $ 2,365,498 467,657 45,645 $ 768,425

- 52,276 3 5,056 11,152 - 5 -

- 518,800 63,731 498,355 - -

- 82,488 - - - -

- 753,564 68,787 509,5G7 - -

- - - - 45,645 -

- - - - - 769,425

222 394 - 2,296,711 (42,450) - -

222,384 - 2,296,711 (42,450) 45,645 769,425

222,394 753,564 S 2,365,498 467,057 45,645 $ 769,425
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2009

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Loan receivable

Due from other funds

Due from other governments

Due from component unit

Advance to other funds

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Advance from other funds

Total iizbilities

FUND BALANCES {DEFICIT)
Reserved for advances to other funds
Reserved for program expenditures
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved:

Undesignated
Total fund balances

Total fiabilities and fund balances

Capital Projects Fund

Public
Improvement
Fund Total
$ 10,503 1,450,724
5,282,587 6,768,857
- 420,785
- 50,060
1,274,705 2,119,274
785,360 1,164,128
318,000 318.00C
2,130,437 2,130,437
3 8,798,592 14,422,175
$ 176,850 245,134
1,123,615 2,304,501
- 82,488
3,721,935 3,721,935
5,022,200 6,354,058
2,130,437 2,130,437
- 45645
- 769,425
2,645,955 5,122,610
4,776,392 8,068,117
3 9,798,692 14,422,175

115



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FCR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds
Hotel/ Computer Debt
Motel Grant Aided Gortatowsky Service
Tax Fund Dispatch ADICA Fund Fund
Revenues:
Sales taxes 3 - 8 - 8 - 3 - 8 - 8 765,617
Other taxes 1,311,461 - - - - -
intergovernmental B 802,143 - 250,000 - -
Charges for services - - 1,667,743 - - -
Other revenues:
Interest income - 2.488 34,048 1,547 564 26
Other income - - - 41 350 -
Total revenues 1,311,461 604,632 1,701,791 251,588 914 765,643
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial - 56,403 - - - -
Public safety - 72,498 1,420,879 - - -
Public works - 69,036 - - - -
Parks and recreation - 4,306 - - . _
Community development 655,731 548,792 - 742,687 - -
Capital outlay - - - - - -
Debt service:
Interest - - - - - 3,000
Total expenditures 655,731 751,035 1,420,978 742,687 - 3,000
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over (under) expendiiures 555,730 (146,403) 280,812 (491,099} 914 762,643
OCther financing sources {uses):
Transfers in - 435,819 - 367,403 - -
Transfers out {689,428) - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) {629,428) 485,819 - 367,403 - -
Net change in fund balances (43,698) 349,416 280,812 (123,686) 914 762,643
Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year 286,092 (349,416) 2,015,898 81,246 44 731 6,782
Fund halances (deficif), end of year $ 222394 % - % 2,296,711 $ (42,450) § 45,645 2 769,425
{Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues:
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other revenues:
Interest income
Cther income
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Judiciai
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under} expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances {deficit}, beginning of year

Fund balances (deficit}, end of year

117

Capital Projects Fund

Public
Improvement
Fund Total

$ - % 765,817

- 1,311,461

1,203,291 2,055,434

- 1,867,743

485,322 523,096

- 391

1,688,613 5,324,642

- 56,403

- 1,483,477

- 69,036

- 4,308

- 1,947 210

3,531,834 3,631,834
515,000 518,000
4,046,834 7,620,266
{2,358,221) (1,295,624)
2,542 925,764
{932,438) (1.631,866)
{869,896) (706,102)
(3,228,117) (2,001,726}
8,004,508 10,068,843
4,776,392 % 8.068,117




CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

Special Revenue Funds - Comkbining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual

Debt Service Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ~ Budget and Actual



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Reventes:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest income
Other income

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Judicial

Public safety

Public works

Parks and recreation

Community development
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency} of revenues over expenditures
Other financing (uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year

Fund balance {(deficit), end of year

{Continued)

8pecial Revenue Funds

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

Computer Aided Dispatch Fund

Original and Original and
Final Final
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
3 1,398,856 s 1,311,461 & (87,305} § - 8 - 3 -
- - - 1,663,886 1,667,743 3,857
- - - 65,000 34,048 (30,952}
1,398,856 1,311,461 {87,395) 1,728,886 1,701,791 (27,085)
- - - 1,728,886 1,426,979 307,907
699,428 655,731 43,697 - - -
699,428 655,731 43,697 1,728,888 1,420,979 307,907
689,428 655,730 (43,688) - 280,812 280,812
(889,428) {699,428) - - “ -
(689,428) {699,428) - - - -
$ - (43,698) 3 (43698) 3 - 280812 3 280,812
265,092 2,015,898
$ 222 384 3 2,296,711
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Special Revenue Funds

Revenues:
Taxes
intergovernmental
Charges for services
interest income
Other income

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Judicial

Public safety

Public works

Parks and recreation

Community development
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing (uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing (Uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances {deficit), beginning of year

Fund balance (deficit), end of year

{Continued)
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Grant Fund Gortatowsky Fund
Original and Original and
Final Final
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance

$ - 8 - 3 - 3 - % -
832,677 602,143 (230,534) - -
- 2,489 2,489 564 564
- - - 350 350
832,677 604,632 (228,045) 914 914
20,000 56,403 (36,403) - -
- 72,498 (72,488) - -
30,400 69,036 (38,636) - -
- 4,306 {4,306) - -
782,277 548,722 233,485 - -
832,677 751,035 81,642 - -
- (146,403) (146,403) 914 814
3 - (146,403} 3 (146,403) § 914 $ g14

(348,416} 44 731

8 (485,819} 45,645



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Special Revenue Fund

ADICA Debt Service Fund
Criginal and Original and
Final Final
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Taxes 3 - 5 - 8 - 5 700,000 & 765,617 65,817
Intergovernmental 600,000 250,000 (350,000) - - -
Charges for services - - - - - -
Interest income - 1,547 1,547 - 26 26
Cther income 41 41 - - ~
Total revenues 600,000 251,588 (348,412) 700,000 765,643 65,643
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial - - - - B -
Public safety - - - - - -
Public works - - - - - -
Parks and recreation - - " - - -
Community development 600,000 742,687 (142.687) - - -
Debt service - - - 700,000 3,000 637,000
Total expenditures 600,0C0 742,887 (142,687) 700.000 3,000 897,600
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - (491,099) {481,099) - 752,643 762,643
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in - 367,403 367,403 - - -
Transfers out - - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses): - 367,403 367,403 - - -
Net change in fund balances 3 - {123,696) & (123698) % - 762,643 762,643
Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year 81,246 5,782

Fund balance {deficit), end of year

€A

(42,450) $ 769,425
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

NONMAJOR
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Transit Fund - To account for the provision of transit service to the residents of the City. All aclivities necessary to
provide such services are accounted for in this fund.

Civic Center Fund - To account for the operations of the James H. Gray Civic Center. Al activities necessary to provide
such services are accounted for in this fund.

Municipal Auditorium Fund - To account for the operations of the municipal auditorium. All activities necessary to provide such
services are accounted for in this fund.



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Civic Municipal
Transit Center Auditorium
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Totals
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash % 100 401,545 $ 133,162 534,807
Accounis receivable, net of allowances - 8,520 15,101 23,621
Inventories 117,403 - - 117,403
Due from other funds 37,348 - 37,348
Due from other governments 608,324 - - 608,324
Total current assets 763,175 410,065 148,263 1,321,503
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets
Non-depreciable 282,084 2,739,908 10¢,853 3,141,855
Depreciable, net of accumulated deprecialion 2,187,185 8,087,864 2,812,491 13,087,340
Total noncurrent assets 2,478,279 10,827,572 2,822,344 16,229,195
Total assets 3,242 454 11,237,637 3,070,607 17,550,698
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued fiabiities 46,805 92,148 3,595 142,348
Current poriien - compensated absences 88,132 54673 - 143,805
Due to other funds - 5,242 - 5,242
Deferred revenues 04,433 12,485 5,445 112,343
Total current liabilities 230,170 164,528 9,040 403,738

{Continued}
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences, net of current portion
Advance from other funds
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricied
Total net assets

Civic Municipal
Transit Center Auditorium
Fund Fund Fund Totals

9,904 6,075 3 - % 15,978
- 5,244 - 5,244
2,804 11,318 - 21,223
240,074 175,847 9,040 424,961
2,479,279 10,827,572 2,922,344 16,229,195
523,101 234,218 138,223 896,542
3,002,380 11,061,720 $ 3,061,567 [3 17,125,737
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Civic Municipal
Transit Center Auditorium
Fund Fund Fund Totals
Operating revenues:
Charges for services % 405 279 $ 255,803 $ 52,565 803,647
Total operating revenues 485279 255,803 52,565 803,647
QOperating expenses:
Personnel costs 1,436,370 727,438 54 2,163,860
Supplies 44 024 31,828 564 76,518
Operating services and charges 784,828 340,382 35,698 1,169,809
Maintenance and repairs 171,061 72,351 21.142 264,494
Depreciation and amortization 365,063 412,618 126,937 804,618
Total operating expenses 2,801,287 1,593,715 184,395 4,578,397
Operating loss (2,306,008) {1,337.912) {131,830} {3,775,750)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income - 1,008 170 1,178
Interest expense (1,388) - - {1,388)
Intergovernmental 1,287,617 - - 1,287 617
Loss on sale of assels (92,581) {1,685) - {94,266)
Totai nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,193,648 {677) 170 1,183,141
Loss before contributions and transfers (1,112,360) {1,338,589) {131,660} {2.582,609)

{Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Civic Municipal
Transit Center Auditorium
Fund Fund Fund Totals

Capital contributions $ 143,623 $ 233,747 $ 3,028 $ 380,388
Transfers in 837,168 1,114,098 55,509 2,108,775
Change in net assets (31,569) 9,256 {73,123} {95,436)
Total net assets, beginning of year 3,033,849 11,052,534 3,134,690 17,221,173
Total net assets, end of year $ 3,002,380 $ 11,061,780 $ 3,061,567 3 17,125,737
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in
Operating grants received

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on capital leases payable
Interest paid
Advance from other funds
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

{Continued}

Civic Municipal
Transit Center Auditorium
Fund Fund Fund Totals

3 464,434 236,877 48 596 744,007
{1.245,594) (837,203} (57,415) (2,140,212}
{1,396,061) (827 ,495) 3,541 (2,020,015}
{2,177.221) (1,233,721) (5,278) (3,416,220}

937,168 1,114,008 55,509 2,106,775

1,287.617 - - 1,287,617

2,224,785 1,114,098 55,508 3,394,392
{58,680} - - (58,680}
{1,388) - - (1.388)
- (5,242) - (5,242

12,504 5,184 B 17.688
{47,564) (58) - (47,6223

- 1,008 170 1,178

- 1,008 170 1,178
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Civic Municipal
Transit Center Auditorium
Fund Fund Fund Totals
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents s - (118,673} $ 50,401 $ (68,272)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 100 520,218 82,761 603,079
End of year 3 100 431,545 $ 133,162 5 534,807
REGCONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss $ (2,306,008) {1,337.912) $ {131,830} $ {3,775,750)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amoriization 365,083 412,618 126,837 904,618
(increase) decrease in accounts receivable 8,504 2,310 (6,456) 2,358
Increase in inventories {11,527} - - (11,527)
Increase in due from other funds {37.348) - - (37,348)
Decrease in due from other governmenis 131,890 - - 131,880
increase in accounts payable and accrued labikties 40,308 99,941 3,595 143,845
Decrease in due fo other funds (366,103) {383,542) (11 (742,656)
increase {decrease) in deferred revenues )] (27.136) 2,487 (24,850}
Net cash used in operating activities 3 (2,177,221) (1,233,721} $ (5,278) $ (3,416,220}
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions of capital assets from governmental aclivities g 143,623 233,747 $ 3,027 $ 380,397
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 36, 2009

Self-Administered Long-Term Workers'
insurance Disability Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Cash $ 43,036 $ 8,417 % 30,623 $ 82,076
Investments 2,378,338 129,861 2,858,264 5,368,463
Total assets 2,422 374 138,278 2,889,887 5,450,539
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Claims payabie 1,722,335 - 680,517 2,402,852
Due to other funds 1,875,503 - 507 1,976,010
Totat liabilities 3,697,838 - 681,024 4,378,862
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Unrestricted (1,275,464) 138,278 2,208,853 1,071,877
Total net assets 3 {1,275,464) 3 138,278 $ 2,208,863 $ 1,071,677
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Self-Administered Insurance Fund - To account for the funding of self-insurance and payment of claims and judgments against the Cily.

Long-Term Disability Fund - To account for the accumulation of resources for future long-term disability claims.

Workers' Compensation Fund - To account for the accumulation of resources for future workers' compensation claims.



CiTY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
INTERNAL. SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Claims and damages
Administraiive
Total cperating expenses
Operating loss
Interest income
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year

Self-Administered Long-Term Workers'
Insurance Disability Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Totals

% 411,119 - % 72572 % 483,691
- - 37,508 37,508
411,119 - 110,080 521,199
1,797,667 72,654 835,564 2,705,885
60,242 - 303,452 363,694
1,857,909 72,654 1,139,016 3,069,579
{1,446,790) (72,654) (1,028,936) (2,548,380)

30,449 2,918 42 416 75,783
(1,416,341} (69,736) (9886,520) (2,472 .597)

140,877 208,014 3,195,383 3,544,274

3 {1,275,484) 138,278 % 2,208,863 § 1,071,677
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from other funds

Claims paid
Premiums paid

Net cash provided by {used in} cperating aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year

Self-Administered Long-Term Workers'
Insurance Disability Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Totals

$ 982,123 $ - $ 110,577 $ 1,092,700
(859,134) (72,654) (624,648) {1,556,436)
(60,242) - (283,452) (343,694)
62,747 (72,654) (797,523) (807 ,430)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - ~ - -
30,449 2,918 42,4186 75,783

30,449 2,918 42,416 75,783

93,196 (69,736} {755,107) (731,847}

2,329,178 208,014 3,644,994 6,182,188

$ 2,422 374 3 138,278 $ 2,889,887 3 5,450,539

End of year

{Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Self-Administered Long-Term Workers'
Insurance Disability Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Totals
Classified as:
Cash % 43036 % 8417 % 30623 % 82,076
investments 2,379,338 129,861 2,859,264 5,368,463
$ 2422374 % 138,278 % 2,889,887 § 5,450,539
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY {USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating less $ (1,448,790) 3 (72,654) $  (1,028,936) $ (2,548,380)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in claims payable 938,533 - 230,916 1,169,449
Increase in due to other funds 571,004 - 497 571,501
Net cash provided by {(used in) operating activities g 62,747 % (72654) § (797.,523) % (807,430)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2005 SPECIAL CITY SALES TAX

Estimated Cost

Expenditures

Prior Current Cumulative
Project Original Current Years Year Total

Airport Improvements S 1,703,200 $ 1,703,200 1,332,360 § 164,823 1,497,183
Civic Center Improvements 2,560,000 2,560,000 2,330,336 144,943 2,475,279
Engineering 13,850,000 13,750,000 1,108,624 1,041,569 2,180,193
Civic Center Debt Retirement 5,500,000 5,500,000 2,656,306 1,332,750 3,988,056
Fire Department Eguipment 1,500,000 1,500,600 - - -
Public Safety Communications and Equipment 150,000 150,000 - - -
Public Works 6,810,000 6,810,600 4,700,653 580,280 5,280,343
Recreation 5,000,000 5,000,600 807,914 395,312 1,203,226
800 MHZ Radio Upgrade, Tower 6,800,000 6,800,000 6,235,104 416,127 6,651,231
GPS/GIS Information Infrastruciure Mapping 1,500,000 1,500,600 269,396 90,396 359,792
Fire Training Fadility 1,500,000 1,500,000 944,567 766,858 1,711,525
GIS/Color infrared Photos 750,000 750,000 95,362 - 95,362
Disparity Study 350,000 350,000 338,317 1,554 339,871
Riverfront Development Projects 8,650,000 7,151,425 4,468,160 577,774 5,045,934
Threnateeska Improvements 3,500,000 3,800,400 2,395,981 1,501,853 3,897,834
Civil Rights Museum Expansion 3,750,000 4,008,175 2,485,487 1,543,716 4,028,213
Chehaw Park Improvements 2,200,000 2,000,000 129,916 160,480 230,396
East Broad Lead Clean-up - 850,000 892,453 16,644 902,097
Debt Service - Principal on SPLOST bonds - - - 4,510,000 4,510,000
[Cebt Service - interest on SPLOST bonds - - 793,833 585,000 1,388,833

Total 3 65,873,200 $ 65,873,200 31,984,189 3 13,780,179 45,764,368

NOTE: The Prior Year column for "Civic Center Debi Retirement” and "Debt Service - Interest on SPLOST bonds" has been corrected to accurately refiact SPLOST debt service expenditures.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2000 SPECIAL CITY SALES TAX

Estimated Cost

Expenditures

Prior Current Cumulative
Project Qriginal Current Years Year Total
Law Enforcement Center s 14,500,000 $ 14,500,000 $ 2,052,840 $ 38,605 2,092,445
Debt Retirement 6,811,004 6,811,084 7,037,928 7,037,929
Street improvements 6,500,000 6,500,060 6,499,803 6,499,803
Recreation Improvemenis 3,150,000 3,150,000 1,348,918 1,349,818
Storm Drainage Improvemenis 3,060,000 3,000,000 1,191,646 1,191,846
Fire Station and Equipment 2,000,000 2,000,00C 2,001,362 2,601,362
Traffic Safety 725,000 725,000 725,000 725,000
Chehaw Park Improvements 760,000 700,000 193,809 183,808
Capital Improvement Preject
funded by Dougherty County 1,840,000 1,800,000 1,776,726 1,776,726
Total 3 39,186,094 3 38,186,004 $ 22,829,033 3 39,805 22,868,638
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1995 SPECIAL CITY SALES TAX

Estimated Cost

Expenditures

Prior Current Cumulative
Project Original Current Years Year Total
Street and Read Projects $ 16,000,000 $ 10,000,000 3 12,962,075 $ 192,972 13,155,047
Water and Sewer Exiensions 7,200,000 7,200,000 14,841,009 7.424 14,848,433
Fire Station and Equipment 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,503,629 - 2,503,829
Emergency Operations Center 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,842 042 - 2,942,042
Community Pglicing Centers 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,497,283 - 1,497,283
Recreation Improvements 8,500,000 8,500,000 7,713,804 - 7,713,804
Chehaw Park Improvernents 1,000,000 1,000,000 1.000,000 - 1,000,000
Downtown Improvements 2,350,000 2,350,000 1,618,433 - 1,618,433
Retirement of Government
Center Debt 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,286,863 - 3,289,863
Totatl 3 39,550,000 $ 39,550,000 & 48,368,138 $ 200,398 48,568,534
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1990 SPECIAL CITY SALES TAX

Estimated Cost Expenditures
Prior Current Cumulative
Project QOriginal Current Years Year Total
Chehaw Park improvements 3 8,000,000 8 6,000,000 $ 6,000,060 $ 6,000,000
Albany Sireet Lights 2,500,006 2,500,600 1,186,584 1,186,584
Conference Center 2,500,000 2,500,000 302,227 302,227
Total 3 11,000,600 $ 11,060,000 $ 7,488,811 $ 7,488,811
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Albany's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, required supplementary information, and supplementary information says about the City's
overall financial health.

Contents Page
PN ANCIAE TrOIIOS o etirieiireicriiereiriteeretrremesees e eemresanrasvereatrsnrerannsssssnranressssrarreastensssstsnesrnsressssresennsensssssrsseensensessasssressonssassreseanrassssseessanransesserrennasse 135 - 143

These schedules contain trend information fo help the reader understand how the City's financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

L=y L o = T 1 0 O 144 - 149
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue sources.

1] 0 T o T Lo 1 150 - 153
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels of cutstanding debt and
the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future,

Demographic and EConomic INFOIMIAtIoN ..ttt r e s e re e s st e s s et s tes s e ae s s s e e se s sreh e sasasmtae e hassseaaessssssenessrrsasesessranenrran 154 - 156
These schedulfes offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the City's
financial activities take place.

Operating INfOrMAtION ...t rersrarrres rrrrerrrrearr s ves s e s e s rar s s sesne s rseeararee s sonesasmeasar e enEessnerennneranseesrasensanmosenmessennnanrarse 157 and 158
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the City's financial
report relates fo the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City's financial reports for the relevant year. The City
impiemented GASB 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information {unless otherwise indicated) include information beginning in

that year.

Note: Unless otherwise noted, the financial information in these schedules do not include the City's discretely presented component units.



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 20086 2007 2008 2009

Governmental activities
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5 55,137,111 § 61,293,366 $ 79137673 §  63,265904 § 50,077,946 § 70610705 § 78,428,752

Restricted 308,413 51,416 101 15,013,027 22,207 175 21,328,387 16,456,922
Unrestricted 26,826,914 34,523,181 26,893,280 28,798,084 53,087 410 44,719,433 40,133,840
Total governmental activities net assets 3 52273438 $§ 85,867,963 § 106,031,064 § 107077015 § 125372531 $ 1365658505 § 135,019,514

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 45691981 § 48136706 § 49256423 $§ 73,004,315 $§ 82,582,046 $  86,139908 $ 87,159,039

Restricted 7,503,533 7,885,008 5,287,933 2,664,869 2,611,185 575,157 3,009,678
Unrestricted 6,377,188 7,319,208 10,898,996 13,281,884 14,604,568 20,104,218 19,368,954
Total business-type activities net assets $ 59,572,702 § 63,340,822 § 85443352 § 88,951,168 $ 98777799 § 106,819,373 § 108,537,671

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 100,829,092 $ 109,430,072 $ 128394096 $ 136270219 $ 132639892 $ 156,750,703 §$ 165,587,791

Restricted 7.812,848 7,936,424 5,288,034 17,677,896 24,818,360 21,903,524 19,466,600

Unrestricted 33,204,102 41,842 389 37,782,276 42,080,068 67,691,878 64,823,651 58,502,794

Total primary government net assets $ 141,846,140 § 159,208885 & 171474406 $ 196028183 § 225150330 $ 243477878 3 244,557,185
NOTES

Accrual-basis financial information for the city government as a whole is available back io June 30, 2003,
the year GASB 34 was impiemented.

Amounts presented for fiscal years 2003 - 2005 have been restated for the effects of prior period adjusiments
recorded in fiscal year 2005.

The City retroactively reported its major general infrastructure assets in fiscal year 2007.

The amounts presented for fiscal years 2008 - 2002 have heen restated for a change in accounting policy.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Expenses
Primary government:
Governmenta! activities:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Community development
Community service
Interest and fiscal changes
Totai governmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:
Sanitary sewer
Solid waste
Airport
Public employee deposit
Transit
Civic Center
Municipal Auditorium
Total business-type activities expenses

Total primary government expenses

{Continued}

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 7,262,456 % 7,278,172 % 8,137,913 & 8,434,146 3 11,031,409 § 13,083,421 12,215,564
602,121 558,782 534,486 899,203 874,234 810,240 952,323
26,426,783 24,026,801 28,127,098 25,878,588 26,853,620 30,268,106 31,206,297
3,309,918 6,095,676 4 628,392 3,956,468 8,148,684 8,306,157 7,685,464
3,946,885 3,136,304 5,224,944 4,345,931 7,185,375 12,818,108 9,073,385
12,346,081 17,408,508 17,583,267 9,825,973 8,283,662 7,497,726 5,591,053
354,501 413,405 387,919 272,044 341,999 336,411 398,347
675,902 593,218 1,144 069 1,283,108 1,318,996 1,515,177 1,548,738
54 924 647 59,508,867 65,768,088 54,800,461 65,047 879 74,715,348 68,689,171
11,940,921 11,520,444 11,449,170 13,561,191 13,400,852 13,503,253 14,402 906
6,333,690 5,158,567 6,223,887 7,002,226 7,473,428 8,206,745 8,498 616
1,292,206 1,197,088 1,602,819 1,764,615 1,557,618 2,195,388 2,415,280
15,025,032 15,330,981 13,934,182 15,186,576 17,909,891 19,935,572 13,042,128
2,749,742 3,108,171 2,649,153 3,029,085 3,185,794 3,435,820 2,802,980
1,605,582 1,468,785 1,500,880 1,617,272 1,702,874 1,807,638 1,603,124
302,700 216,235 213,443 182,004 154,036 160,829 192,118
39,249,880 39,001,281 37,573,714 42,343,070 45,384,493 49,245,325 43,058,151
84,174,527 98,511,148 103,341,802 97,143,531 110,432,372 123,960,671 111,747,322
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Program revenues
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Community development
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmentat activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Sanitary sewer
Solid waste
Airport
Public employee deposit
Transit
Civic Center
Municipal Auditorium
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and centributions
Totai business-type activities program revenues

Total primary government program revenues

(Continued}

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
7614708 3 2673068 & 2523557 % 2,339,933 2,348,462 2676483 3 2,466,315
1,474,668 1,540,161 1,285,247 1,028,011 856,868 998,810 1,109,205
2,381,822 1,468,067 1,747,826 1,517,385 1,538,804 1,691,284 1,715,042
1,045,666 1,080,248 1,401,512 1,242,302 2,105,018 806,260 752,786
358,926 131,136 326,707 362,668 454 975 437 344 335,993
3,845,280 3,482 564 8,938,601 2,377,746 2,055,849 2,861,168 481,049
10,687,430 12,845,939 14,014,169 14,311,112 13,729,819 15,310,571 18,080,264
3,616,653 13,489,455 6,734,862 4171,793 2,569,404 15,916,286 2,033,058
31,035,555 356,710,638 36,972,481 27,351,850 25,660,199 40,799,217 27,023,712
11,451,610 11,808,695 12,545,688 13,802,053 14,321,155 15,184,281 15,111,550
6,518,802 6,732,636 7,312,754 7,775,530 8,271,443 8,262,522 8,412,723
839,012 688,256 728,848 713,386 757,547 812,117 728,191
13,908,768 15,321,954 13,845,036 15,179,150 17,868,487 19,927,744 13,034,004
362,131 416,702 397,778 417,588 436,988 429,685 495 279
383,252 453 616 376,832 419,460 446,822 282,776 255,803
48,583 35,561 33,719 34,693 26,732 42,388 52,565
802,838 2,729,182 1,086,587 3,035,050 2,027 677 2,321,938 1,678,305
3,672,557 1,741,879 525,111 477 633 8,076,175 5,818,085 2,872,802
43,787,653 40,028,981 36,953,353 41,954,553 53,232,926 53,081,546 42 641,322
74,823,208 76,739,619 73,925,834 638,306,503 78,893,125 93,880,763 69 665,034
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
General revenues and other changes in net assets
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Taxes $ 38173893 $ 368756600 B 40498497 $ 50,255,224 % 45807436 § 47,569,216 § 41,747,300
Investment eamings 268,868 261,691 933,302 1,591,370 2,135,978 2,255,534 4,163,072
Gain on sale of assets (2,579,721) - - - - - -
Transfers (2,787,436) (2,624 537) (2,473.101) (23,352,122) {2,185,301) {2,543,171) (2,883,804)
Total governmental activities general revenues
and other changes in net assets 33,075,505 36,393,754 38,958,698 28,494 472 45,758,113 47,281,578 40,026,458
Business-type activities:
Investment earnings 186,037 115,888 249,690 544 211 792,897 662,182 251,223
Gain on sale of asseis 141,972 94 - - - - -
Transfers 2,787,436 2,624 537 2,473,101 23,352 122 2,185,301 2,543 171 2,883,904
Total business-type activities general revenues
and other changes in net assets 3,115,445 2,740,520 2,722,781 23,896,333 2,978,198 3,205,353 3,135,127
Total primary government general revenues and
other changes in net assets 36,190,950 38,134,274 41,681,489 52,380,805 48,736,311 50,486,931 43,161,585
Change in net asseis
Governmental activities 9,185,413 13,584,525 10,163,091 1,045,961 6,370,433 13,365,449 {1,638,991)
Business-type activities 7,653,218 3,768,220 2,102,430 23,507,816 10,826,631 7,041,574 2,718,298
Tetal primary government change in nef assets $ 16,839831 5 17,362,745 & 12,265521 % 24583777 % 17,187,064 3 20,407,023 % 1,078,307

{Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

NOTES
Accrual-basis financial information for the city government as a whole is available back to June 30, 2003,

the year GASB 34 was implemented.

Amounts presented for fiscal years 2003 - 2005 have been restated for the effects of prior period adjustments
recorded in fiscal year 2005.

Expenses in the Employee Deposit Fund decreased from FY 2004 to FY 2005 due to a reduction in employee health insurance claims.
The reduction in community development expenses from FY 2005 to FY 2006 is due to the completion of several projects in 2005.

The increase in taxes in fiscal year 2006 is due to the new SPLOST commencing April 20065,

The increase in parks and recreation expense from 2008 to 2007 and from 2007 fo 2008 is due to a number of community projects undertaken by the
City using SPLOST funding. Projects include the Civil Rights Museum, Riverfront Development and Thornateeska.

The decrease in the Public Employee Deposit Fund from 2008 to 2009 is due to the County no longer participating in the City's self insurance plan.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS
{Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Insurance Alcoholic

Fiscal Property Sales Hotei Motel Franchise Premium Beverage Other

Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Taxes Total

2003 14,407 467 16,357,288 $ 692,898 1,992,530 2,083,865 1,330,767 308,878 38,173,693
2004 14,404,199 16,541,996 762,770 2,070,851 3,320,225 1,371,654 277,905 38,756,600
2005 14,194,137 18,272,298 843,873 2,010,343 3,596,638 1,381,830 188,478 40,498,497
2008 14,581,340 27,509,223 805,282 1,808,258 3,865,223 1,390,224 205,704 50,255,224
2007 14,794,429 23,014,818 1,307,342 2,188,665 4,042,768 1,402,865 170,846 46,902,634
2008 14,776,748 23,380,560 1,378,411 2,184,755 4,218,875 1,457,124 172,642 47,569,215
2009 13,964,606 18,269,427 1,311,461 2,272,998 4,323,880 1,433,699 171,428 41,747,300

NOTES

Accrual-basis financial information for the City government as a whole is availabie back to June 30, 2003,
the year GASB 34 was implemented.

The increase in sales tax in fiscal year 2006 is due to the new SPLOST commencing Aprii 2005.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
General Fund
Reserved 8 341,529 2,114,167 1,326,545 354,352 318,889 395,504 573,383
Unreserved 11,633,185 12,459,929 16,311,481 21,337,958 23,946,604 22.117,285 18,627,452
Total General Fund 5 11,874,714 14,574,096 17,648,026 21,692,310 24,265,583 22,512,789 12,200,835
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved % 308,413 1,821,456 1,649,738 659,867 3,215,569 2,081,497 2,945,507
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds 3,551,701 7,081,448 2,737,210 3,878,252 5,274,345 5,613,088 5,676,146
Capital projects funds 971,397 830,805 10,535,048 19,760,677 25,588,135 25,705,739 18,333,452
Total All Other Governmental Funds 3 4.832,511 9,713,809 14,821,994 24,296,886 34,078,048 33,300,325 26,955 105
Totzl Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 850,942 3,835,623 2,986,281 1,014,318 3,534,558 2,477,001 3,518,880
Unreserved 16,156,283 20,352,282 29,583,738 44, 974,887 54,808,084 53,336,113 42,637,050
Total Governmental Funds $ 16,807,225 24 287 905 32,570,020 45,989,208 58,343 642 55813 114 46,155,940

NOTES

Amounts presented for fiscal years 2003 and 2004 have been restated for the effects

of prior period adjustments recorded in fscal ygar 2005.

Due to other changes in the City's fund structure connected with the implementation
of GASB 34, comparative fund balance information is not available prior 1o 2003.
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CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Revenues:

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Rental and other fees
Interest revenues
Qther revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Community developmeant
Community service
Nondepartmental

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

(Continued)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
38,173,693 38,756,600 40,498 497 50,255,224 46,608,379 47,271,610 41,461,664
2,401,566 2,364,806 2,456,888 2,318,314 2,320,724 2,434,916 2,258,362
14,304,082 25,019,812 20,749,032 18,482,805 16,299,223 18,756,831 20,123,322
2,626,567 2,400,419 2,827 843 2,074,804 2,146,007 2,324,102 2,233,114
1,486,248 1,425,568 1,143,169 917,565 776,268 901,008 1,025,445
105,422 308,479 394,162 415,623 339,325 297 605 .
268,068 248,335 875,573 1,458,136 1,941,958 2,041,846 1,087,289
3,480,258 2,506,440 4,001,631 3,608,044 3,648,717 3,168,757 2,738,200
62,846,806 73,120,559 73,046,805 79,532,615 74,080,602 75,194,776 70,827,405
5,678,800 7,867,730 7.556,000 8,620,186 9,884 652 11,875,762 8,975,530
520,677 551,810 523,817 690,775 855,330 807,934 386,359
24,292 930 27,113,101 26,108,519 24 707,476 26,272,002 28,732,159 28,655,558
7,981,996 8,234,310 4 565,533 4,150,882 6,711,134 8,781,237 6.980,544
5,221,028 5,522,857 4,468,555 4,681,306 4,143,167 4,341,644 4,542 627
12,023,383 16,668,421 17,292,703 8,816,126 4,644 429 6,036,774 5,018,810
349,093 408,489 387,919 272,044 341,999 336,411 389,347
5,028,716 - - - - - -
- - 6,298,112 8,322 9468 18,478,624 13,814,675 11,114,264
2,055,618 2,458,334 1,395,000 3,145,000 1,430,000 1,450,600 6,000,000
321,822 625,824 1,158,190 1,212,434 1,254,684 1,558,994 1,501,458
53,574,864 69,551 0756 63,754,448 64,619,176 74,016,021 75,835,580 74,185,498
(728,058} 3,569,483 3,282,357 14,913,439 64,581 (640,814) {3,258,093)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in $ 8181348 § 3,700,094 § 5608353 3§ 6,258,438 3,526,240 % 4,327,235 2,270,397

Transfers out (6,304,179} (6,267,196) {7,482,454) (8,444,077} (5,711,311) (6,870,408) (5,154,301}

Capitzl leases 1,253,387 977,380 - - - - -

Issuance of debt 150,000 5,500,000 - - 14,236,362 - -

Sale of capital assets - - - 691,386 455,208 653,457 208,758

Total other financing sources {(uses) 3,280,556 3,811,197 {1,873,101) (1,494,253) 12,506,487 {1,889,714) (2,677,146}

Net change in fund balances $ 2,662,498 § 7480680 % 1,418,256 % 13,419,186 12,571,078 % (2,530,528) (5,935,239)
Debt service as a percentage of

roncapital expenditures 3.74% 4.43% 4.03% 7.29% 4.28% 4.34% 11.18%

NOTES

Amounts presented for fiscal years 2003 and 2004 have been restated for the effecis
of prior period adjustments recorded in fiscal year 2005.

Due to other changes in the City's fund structure connected with the implementation
of GASB 34, comparative fund balance information is not available prior to 2003.

The increase in taxes in fiscal year 2008 is due to the new SPLOST commencing April 2005,
The increase in interest revenues in 2005 and 20086 is due to improved interest rates.

The nondepartmental category of expenditures was eliminated after fiscal year 2005
in accordance with the State Uniform Chart of Accounts.

The increase in debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures in 2009 is
due to the City beginning payment on the 2007 Revenue Bonds,
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Insurance Alcoholic

Fiscal Property Sales Hotel Motel Franchise Premium Beverage Other

Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Taxes Total

2003 14,407,467 16,357,288 $ 532,898 3 1,992,530 $ 3083855 % 1,330,767 308,878 38,173,693
2004 14,404,199 16,541,996 739,770 2,070,851 3,320,225 1,371,654 277,905 38,726,600
20086 14,194,137 18,272,298 843,973 2,010,343 3,596,638 1,381,63C 199,478 40,498,437
2008 14,581,340 27,509,223 895,252 1,808,258 3,885,223 1,390,224 205,704 50,255,224
2007 14,794,429 23,014,819 1,307,342 2,189,665 4,042,768 1,402,864 197,673 48,929,360
2008 14,775,748 23,380,560 1,378,411 2,184,755 4,218,875 1,457,124 172,642 47,568,215
2009 13,964,606 17,983,791 1,311,461 2,272,999 4,323,680 1,433,699 171,428 41,461,664

NOTES

Due to other changes in the City's fund structure connected with the implementation of GASB 34, comparative general fund tax revenues are not availabie prior to 2003.

The increase In sales tax in fiscal year 20086 is due to the new SPLOST commencing Aprif 2005

The decrease in sales tax in fiscal year 2009 is due {c the national downturn in the economy.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Dolar Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Real Property Personal Property Total
Estimated Estimated Estimated Total
Fiscal Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Direct
Year Value Value Value Value Exemptions Value Vaiue Tax Rafe
2000 $ 831488 % 2078720 % 475704 % 1,189,260 $ 92553 % 1,214,639 % 3,038,598 9.80
2001 851,080 2,127,700 493,583 1,233,984 88,732 1,254,941 3,137,353 8.80
2002 865,432 2,183,580 526,836 1,317,080 92,923 1,293,345 3,248,362 10.80
2003 930,781 2,326,953 498,843 1,247,108 88,159 1,341,465 3,353,863 10.80
2004 936,278 2,340,695 482,177 1,155,443 73,933 1,324,522 3,311,306 10.80
2005 950,163 2,375,408 456,120 1,140,300 82,598 1,323,885 3,308,213 1G.80
2008 961,837 2,404,593 487,731 1,169,327 85,840 1,343,628 3,358,070 10.79
2007 981,348 2,453,374 486,850 1,167,227 98,744 1,348,495 3,620,601 10.78
2008 1,225,531 3,063,828 478,728 1,196,820 103,518 1,600,741 4,001,853 9.16
2009 1,218,665 3,046,663 501,002 1,252,505 110,843 1,608,824 4,022,060 9.16

SOURCE
Dougherty County Tax Depariment

NOTE

Property is assessed at 40 percent of actual vaiue. Actual taxable value is calcuiated by dividing assessed value by 40 percent.
Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.
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CIiTY OF ALBANY, GECRGIA

PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

City of Albany Millage Dougherty County Millage Board of Education Millage Other

Fiscal Debt Total Debt Total Debt Total {State of

Year Operating Service City Operating Service County Operating Service School Georgia) Total
2000 9.340 0.460 9.80C 11.10C 0.000 11.100 17.7C0 0.0Go 17.700 0.25 32.080
2001 £.800 0.000 9.800 11.100 0.000 11.100 17.7C0 0.060 17.700 0.25 38.850
2002 10.800 0.000 10.80C 11.100 0.000 11.100 17.700 0.000 17.70C 0.25 39.850
2003 10.800 0.000 10.800 10.8658 0.000 10.658 17.550 0.000 17.550 0.25 39.258
2004 16.8G0 0.00C 10.800 10.658 0.000 10.658 18,000 0.000 18.000 0.25 40.708
2005 10.800 0.000 10.800 13.158 0.000 13.158 18.000 0.000 19.00C 0.25 43.208
2008 1G.790 0.00C 10.790 13.158 0.00C 13.158 18.000 G.000 19.00C 0.25 43.198
2007 10.777 0.000 10.777 13.147 0.000 13.147 18.684 6.000 18.5984 0.25 43.158
2008 9.159 0.00G 9.159 11.897 0.000 11.897 18.450 G.000 18.450 0.25 39.756
2008 9.157 0.006 9,157 11.864 0.000 11.894 18.445 6.000 18.445 0.25 39.746

SOURCE
Dougherty County Tax Depariment

NOTE
Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GECRGIA

TAXABLE SALES TAX DISTRIBUTION BY CATEGORY
LAST SIX CALENDAR YEARS (1) (2)

By Category 2004 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 (3)

Food $ 3,148,127 $ 3,463,700 3 3,802,808 $ 3,023,148 $ 3,677,474 $ 1,121,656
Apparel 544 168 631,284 676,270 688,235 683,128 281,751
General 2,304,540 2,307 265 2,403,887 2,448,008 2,402,603 886 475
Automotive 2,898,682 2,811,281 2,916,549 3,030,301 3,377,416 819,387
Home 846,121 939,734 1,034,018 882,259 916,640 304,158
Lumber 1,193,728 1,226,793 1,264,403 1,237,612 1,078,028 247,265
Miscellaneous Service 828,754 842 818 824 728 §30,368 1,008,135 312,408
Manufacturers 1,744,149 1,220,279 1,712,880 1,551,973 1,718,753 375,808
Utilities 1,311,603 1,339,453 1,517,393 1,480,452 1,594,512 446,648
Miscelianeous 1,676,383 1,800,816 1,864,146 1,887,785 1,619,727 372,908

$ 16,497,255 $ 16,583,223 $ 18,117,182 $ 18,270,148 ) 18,074,417 5 5,148,464

Source: Georgia Department of Revenue, Local Government Services Division

Notes:
(1) Only six years of data are available
(2) Information only available for Dougherty County
(3) Information enly available from January through Aprit
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND EIGHT YEARS AGO

Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year 2001
Percentage Percentage
2008 of Total 2000 of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation
Miller Brewing Company Brewery 3 53,481,660 1 332% §$ 53,944,311 1 4,44 %
BeliSouth Utility 19,688,654 2 1.22 23,016,499 3 1.80
M & M Mars - Div of Mars, Inc. Confectioner 15,610,112 3 0.97 23,059,706 2 1.89
Palmyra Medical Center Hospital 14,853,650 4 £.83 10,225,961 4 0.81
Aroncv/Albany Malt LLC Malt developer 14,455,405 5 C.80 9,892,515 5 0.48
Bassford N L Jr. Warehousing 7,337,519 8 0.48
Yancey Brothers Heavy Equipment 7,139,820 7 G.44 - -
Lowe's Home Center Building Supplies 6,560,954 8 0.41 - -
Wal Mart/ Sam's Ciub Retailer 6,187,778 9 0.38 8,016,266 6 0.73
Coats and Clark Textiles 5,096,579 10 0.38 5,561,920 e 0.84
Carlton Company Heavy equipment - - 7,959,928 7 .66
Georgia Power Company Public Utility - - 5,662,935 8 0.47
Flint River Textiles Textites - - £,403,336 10 0.44
$ 161,463,231 941 % % 153,643,377 12.64 %

SOURCE
Dougherty County Tax Department

Information pertaining o principal property taxpayers was not available prior o fiscal year 2001,

2001 from City of Albany Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Dolar Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal
Year

2000
2001
2062
2003
2004
2005
2008
2007
2008
2009

SOURCE
Dougherty County Tax Department

Total Tax
Levy for
Fiscal Year

10,833
10,836
12,261
12,750
12,884
12,738
12,988
13,077
13,164
13,400

Total Collections to Date

Collected Within the Coliections
Fiscal Year of the Levy in
Percentage Subsequent
Amount of Levy Years Amount
$ 10,488 99.67 % 23 10,591
10,886 100.46 a1 10,877
11,898 97.02 152 12,048
11,616 91. 11 108 14,725
12,535 98.83 683 12,598
12,505 28,19 123 12,628
12,791 88.48 25 12,886
12,901 38.65 157 13,058
12,872 G7.78 162 13,034
12,329 82.01 - 12,329
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Percentage

of Levy

100.55
101.30
98.26
91.96
899.32
99.15
99.2%
99.85
99.01
92.01

Yo



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
General Certificates Total Percentage
Fiscal Obligation of Notes Revenue Notes Capital Primary of Personal Per
Year Bonds Participation Payable Bonds Payable Leases Government Income Capita
2003 $ 14,110,000 § 10,000,C00 & 600,000 & 50,020,000 $ 1,038,517 § 575860 § 73,344,377 857% § 962.50
2004 8,815,000 10,000,600 6,050,0C0 485,160,000 862,359 481,862 75,369,221 8.92% 988.41
2005 8,470,000 10,000,600 6,000,000 46,195,000 678,054 383,366 71,726,420 6.10% 945.04
2008 5,875,000 10,000,000 5,350,000 44,115,000 485,189 280,156 66,205,345 4.44% 878.87
2007 18,870,000 10,000,000 5,525,000 39,650,000 283,329 172,006 74,500,335 4.31% 986.15
2008 17,720,000 10,000,000 5,225,000 39,110,000 120,054 58,681 72,233,735 2.43% 952.64
2008 12,620,000 10,000,000 4,925,000 36,670,000 51,586 - 63,666,586 4.14% 839.59

NOTES

Financial information presented as Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities for the city government as a whole is available back to June 30, 2003, the year
GASE 34 was implemented.

Details regarding the City of Albany's outstanding debt can be found in the notes o the financiat statements.
See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.

The amecunts shown for the certificates of participation and the capital leases have been restated for the years 2003 and 2004.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal
Year

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2008
2007
2008
2069

NOTES

Percentage of

Less Amounts Estimated
General Available in Actual Taxable
Obligation Debt Service Value of
Bonds Fund Total Property
16,560,000 $ 1,654,863 $ 14,905,137 049 %
12,380,000 1,698,702 10,680,298 0.34
11,905,000 64,305 11,840,695 0.36
11,410,000 58,116 11,051,884 0.33
9,815,000 68,253 9,745,747 0.29
8,474,000 6,831 8,463,169 0.26
5,975,000 8,851 5,968,149 0.18
18,670,000 6,868 18,863,132 0.52
17,720,000 8,782 17,713,218 0.44
42,020,000 6,808 12,013,192 0.30

In fiscal year 2007, $14,000,000 of SPLOST bonds were issued by ADICA.

Details regarding the City of Albany's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and popuiation data.

See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Value of Taxable Property for property value data.
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Per Capita

192
138
155
145
128
112

79
250
234
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
EAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
Debt limit 3 139227 % 142,962 % 139,846 § 140,628 § 142,857 % 126697 % 170,426 % 171,158
Total net debt applicabie to limit 11,841 11,052 9,746 8,463 5,968 18,863 3,720 2,430
Legal debt margin 3 127,386 § 131,910 § 130,100 3% 132,165 $ 136,889 % 107834 § 166,706 $ 168,728
Total net debt applicable to the limit as a
percentage of debt fimit 8.50% 7.73% 6.97% 6.02% 4.17% 14.89% 2.18% 1.42%
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN CALCULATION
Assessed value $ 1,200345 § 1,341,465 § 1,324,522 8 1,323,685 § 1,343,628 § 99,744 § 1,600,741 % 1,608,824
Add back exempt property 92,923 88,159 73,833 82,538 85,840 1,167,227 103,518 110,843
Total assessed value 1,392,268 1,429,624 1,398,455 1,406,283 1,429,568 1,266,971 1,704,258 1,719,667
Debt limit (10% of total assessed value) 139,227 142,962 139,846 140,628 142,857 126,697 170,426 171,867
Bebt applicabie to limit
General obligation bonds 11,205 11,110 9815 8,470 5,875 18,870 17,720 12,020
Less amount set aside for repayment of
general obligation debt (64) {58) (69) {7 (7) {7} {7 {7)
Total net debt applicable fo fimit 11,841 11,052 9,746 8,463 5,568 18,863 17,713 12,013
Legal debt margin $ 127,386 § 131,910 % 130,100 $ 132,185 § 136,989 § 107,824 3 152,713 $ 159,854
NOTES

Under State of Georgia law, the City of Albany's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 10 percent of total assessed property value.

The legal debt margin is the difference between the debt limit and the City's net general obligation debt outstanding applicable to the limit, and represents the
City's legal borrowing authority,
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Sewer Less: Net

Fiscal Charges Operating Avaitable Debt Service

Year and Other Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2000 $ 8,918,320 $ 6,579,283 $ 3,340,107 $ 1,235,000 $ 2,168,317 0.98
2001 10,794,856 5,403,121 5,391,735 1,285,000 2,092,810 1.59
2002 11,939,663 6,067,011 5,872,652 1,350,000 2,692,568 1.45
2003 11,510,470 6,253,648 5,256,822 1,420,000 1,575,161 1.78
2004 11,814,002 6,222,521 5,691,481 1,860,000 2,502,784 1.30
2005 12,681,971 6,255,038 5,426,933 1,865,000 2,417,481 1.47
2006 14,296,012 7,660,827 5,635,185 2,080,000 2,325,789 1.51
2007 14,953,008 7,484 B58 7,468,350 2,170,000 2,449,322 1.62
2008 15,722,157 8,266,328 7,455,829 2,440,000 1,732,081 1.79
2009 15,247,208 2,116,960 6,130,246 2,525,000 1,632,087 1.47

NOTES
Details regarding the City's ouisianding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
Sewer Charges and Other includes investment earrings.

Operating expenses do not inciude depreciation and amortization.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Personal Education
income Per i evel
{amounts Capita in Years (%)
Fiscal {1} expressed Personal Median of Farmal School (2) Unemployment
Year Population in thousands) Income Age {1) Schooling {1} Enrollment Rate {3)
20060 77,545 % 835,825 $ 10,776 {1) 30.0 125 17,310 53
2001 76,838 1,702,045 22,122 (1) 322 12.5 17,068 6.2
2062 76,271 971,921 12,743 (4) 31.1 12.5 16,789 8.3
2003 76,202 1,116,283 14,649 (1) 31.1 12.5 16,710 56
2004 76,253 1,089,808 14,282 (1) 311 12.5 16,607 5.2
2005 75,828 1,175,281 15,485 (1) 31.1 12.5 16,844 6.2
2006 75,335 1,491,558 19,789 (1) 311 12.5 16,894 8.1
2007 75,394 1,728,030 22,820 (1) 31.1 12.5 16,668 4.5
2008 75,825 2,971,354 39,187 (1) 33.5 12.5 16,436 4.9
200¢ 75,831 1,538,156 20,284 (1) 33.1 12.5 18,222 7.5
SOURCES
(1) Bureau of Census, Albany Dougherty Chamber of Commerce and Georgia Power Company
2 Dougherty County Board of Education
{3) Bureau of Census/State of Georgia - Department of Human Resources
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND EIGHT YEARS AGO

Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year 2001
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Employer (1) Employees (1} Rank Employment Employees (1) Rank Employment

Phoebe Putney Hospital 3,804 1 7.58 % 3,015 1 551 %
USMC Logistic Base (Civilian) 3,081 2 8.14 3,175 3 5.81
Dougherty County Board of Education 2,834 3 584 2,900 2 5.30
Proctor and Gambie 1,394 4 2.78 1,500 4 2.74
City of Albany 1,387 5 2.76 1,234 S] 2.26
Dougherty County 669 & 1.33 1,200 B 2.19
Miller Brewing Company 850 7 1.28 850 7 1.19
Albany State University 550 8 1.10 680 8 1.24
Teleperformance USA 474 9 G.94 - -
Palmyra Medical Center 454 10 295 - -
Bobs Candies - - 638 9 117
M&M Mars - Div of Mars, inc, - - 800 10 1.10

Totals 15,397 3271 % 15,592 28.52
Average number of employees (2) 50,216 54,678
SOURCE
{n Albany Chamber of Commerce
(2) Georgia Department of Labor
NOTE

Information pertaining to principal employers was not available prior to fiscal year 2001.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

General government 177 177 171 170 170 174 140 145
Judicial & 5] 6 8 11 EA 11 12
Pubiic safety 487 467 484 461 394 404 435 466
Public works 164 164 165 165 41 41 42 42
Parks and recreation 80 60 60 60 57 57 57 60
Community development 12 i2 12 12 i2 12 12 12
Sanitary sewer 59 58 58 59 68 68 68 68
Solid waste 48 48 49 52 51 49 48 49
Airport 18 18 17 17 14 14 17 17
Transit 28 2g 29 29 28 29 29 30
Civic Center 16 16 18 16 15 16 16 17
Ayditorium 1 1 1 1 1 - - -

1,057 1,056 1,048 1,050 863 875 876 918

Source: City of Albany Budget Document
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended June 320,

Function 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Sanitary sewer
Average daily treatment
{thousands of galions) 18,295 17,640 18,653 18,653 18,653 16,230 15,958 16,369
Airport
Number of daily flights 8 8 8 8 8 8 4 3
Number of enpianed passengers 34,336 35,820 35,461 39,954 39,854 37,108 40,835 35,128
Number of deplaned passengers 34,534 35,094 34,044 38,156 38,156 35,829 39,226 34,499
Number of based aircraft 52 47 44 40 40 35 38 39
Police
Citations issued 21,850 17,982 18,526 16,090 11,297 10,552 11,082 N/A
DUI Citations issued 287 268 183 138 a6 228 153 N/A
Warnings issued 954 1,423 2,555 3,046 3,424 3,235 3,181 N/A
Crime Statistics:
Aggravated Assauit 231 233 250 252 284 341 389 573
Auto Theft 284 401 349 329 389 378 288 347
Murder 7 g 5 8 8 8 11 8
Rape 43 37 52 40 31 34 33 44
Robbery 210 261 217 216 242 205 207 247
Burglary 1,297 1,280 1,576 1,705 1,845 1,558 1,520 1,450
Theft 3,318 2,967 3,375 2,058 3,239 3,289 3,615 3,048
Fire
Incident responses 3,434 1,587 2,859 3,141 2,778 3,708 3,511 2,234
Pubkic Safely Education
Events 87 65 73 52 81 81 103 1,264
Persons contacied 108,655 100,563 107,682 123,340 124,086 110,060 8,022 3,578

SOURCE
Various city departments

N/A - Information not available.

NOTE

Cperating indicators are not available for the general government function.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Function 2002 2003 2004 2005 20086 2007 2008 2009
Public Safety
Police
Fieet size 185 186 185 170 17G 170 170 170
Fire stations i1 11 i1 ki 11 11 . 11 1
Pubiic Works
Miles of streets 430 568 568 559 558 559 558 559
Number of street lights 8,503 8,503 8,503 8,503 10,420 11,247 11,247 11,247

Culture and Recreation

Park acreage 1,104 1,104 1,104 1,104 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300
Parks 45 45 45 45 44 54 54 54
Goif course 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Swimming pools 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1
Tennis courts 17 17 17 17 20 22 22 22

Sewerage System

Miles of sanitary sewer 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350

Miles of storm sewer 400 400 400 40C 400 400 400 406

Number of {reatment planis 1 1 i 1 1 1 1 1
SOURCE

Various City depariments

NOTE
Capital asset indicators are not available for the general government function.
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION




AULDIN
& )JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Commission
City of Albany, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Albany, Georgia as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City of Albany, Georgia's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated December 28, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicabie to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Conftrol over Financial Reporiing

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Albany, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Albany, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effeciiveness of the City of Albany, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting.

Cur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.

439 MULBERRY STREET « POST OFFICE BOX 1877 « MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 « 478-464-8000 - FAX 478-464-8051 » www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or empioyees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency,
or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City of Albany, Georgia’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the City of Albany, Georgia's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City of
Albany, Georgia's internal control. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2009-1 through 200%-5 to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financiat reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstaternent of the financiatl statements will not be prevented or detected by the City of Albany, Georgia’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and wouid not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal controf that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies
described above, we considered item 2008-5 to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the City of Albany, Georgia’s financiat statements are free of material
missiatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
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with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion cn
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disciosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards .

We also noted certain additional matters that we reported to management of the City of Albany, Georgia in a separate letter dated
December 28, 2008.

The City of Albany, Georgia's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City of Albany, Georgia's responses and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, members of the City Commission, management of the City

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended fo be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Maidclin # Gorfionar, XXC

Macon, Georgia
December 28, 2008
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AULDIN
& JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Commission
City of Albany, Georgia

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Albany, Georgia with the fypes of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are appilicable to each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2009. The City of Albany, Georgia's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, reguiations, contracts, and grants applicable
to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Albany, Georgia’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the City of Albany, Georgia’s compiiance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 reguire
that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the fypes of compliance reguirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City of Albany, Georgia's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the City of Albany, Georgia’'s compliance with those requirements.
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in our opinion, the City of Albany, Georgia complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
appiicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. However, the resuits of our auditing procedures disclosed an
instance of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required fo be reperted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2009-6.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Albany, Georgia is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. in planning and performing our audit,
we considered the City of Albany, Georgia’s internal control over compliance with reguirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Albany, Georgia’s internal control over compiiance.

A confrol deficiency i an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects the entify’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by
the entity’s internal control. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned cost as item 2008-5 to be significant deficiency.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelihcod that material nencompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not

identify any deficiencies in internal conirol over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

The City of Albany, Georgia's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. We did not audit the City of Albany, Georgia’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, members of the City Commission, management of the City

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties,

P awticlire # ognflonar, X5C

Macon, Georgia
December 28, 2008
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Federal Agency or
Federal Granior/ CFDA Pass-through Federal
Pass-Through Program Title Number Grantor's Number Expenditures
U.8. Department of Transportation
Direct Awards
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grant 20.500 PL-0008-00(781) $ 130,007
Federal Transit Capital Investiment Grant 20.500 MTG00-0140-00-001 266,493
Federal Transit Capital Invesiment Grant 20.500 MTG00-0128-00-001 32,000
Federal Transii Capital investment Grant 20.500 MTG00-0142-00-001 120,023
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grant 20.500 MTG00-0145-00-001 1,200
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grant 20.500 MTG00-01458-00-004 43,279
Federal Transit Operations Assistance Grant 20.507 MTGQO0-0142-00-0086 815,361
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,408,363
Federal Aviation Administration
Direct Awards
Airport Improvement Program 20,108 P3-13-0002-27 53,228
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 P3-13-0002-28 1,332,137
Airport Improvement Program 20.108 P3-13-0002-29 666,417
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 P3-13-0002-30 132,176
Total Federal Aviation Administration 2,183,855
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Awards
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-06-MC-13-0001 27,647
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-07-MC-13-0001 825,363

853,010

{Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDUILE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Federal Agency or
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Pass-through Federat
Pass-Through Program Title Number Grantor's Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Awards {Continued)
HUD-Home Partnership Investment Title Il Program 14.239 M-08-MC-13-0205 81,861
HUD-Home Partnership Investment Tifle | Program 14.239 M-G7-MC-13-0205 15,015
HUD-Home Partnership Investment Title {l Program 14.239 M-04-MC-13-0205 123,618
HUD-Home Partnership Investment Title 1l Program 14.23¢9 M-G1-MC-13-0205 48,313
268,807
Housing Counseling Grant 14.169 +CG7-0498-062 8,035
Housing Counseling Grant 14.169 HC08-0498-078 28,296
37,331
EDI - Special Project Grant 14.246 B-04-SP-GA-0196 5,899
Passed through State of Georgia
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 2008-08E-ET-08C096 23,633
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 GAOC54B4B010801 26,132
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 GAQ1B601027 62,3656
112,181
Total U.S. Bepartment of Housing and Urban Development 1,277,208

{(Continued)
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Federal Agency or
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Pass-through
Pass-Through Program Title Number Grantor's Number

Federal
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Awards

Schooi Lunch Bag Program 10.559 S07-08002
Total L1.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Justice
Passed-Through State of Georgia

Bullet Proof Vest Grant 16.607 2003-BU-BX-6439
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 2006-DJ-BX-0819
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 2007-DJ-BX-0808
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 20087-DJ-BX-0272

Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.8. Department of Commerce
Passed-Through State of Georgia
Revolving L.oan Fund 11.307 04-19-69032
Totai U.S. Department of Commerce

Corporation for Nation and Community Service
Passed-Through State of Georgia

AmeriCorps ©4.006 CBACO89949
Total U.S. Department of Commerce

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

187

81,395

81,395

8,564

2,948
15,8677
4,585

23,210

31.774

964,914

964,814

78,865

76,865

6,024,474




CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Albany, Georgia
{the "City") and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accerdance with

the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations”. Therefore, some
amounis presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements.

NOTE 2, SUBRECIPIENTS

During the fiscaf year ended June 30, 2009, disbursements were made to sub-recipients of the following grant programs:

Program CFDA Amount
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 $ 146,724
HUD-Home Partnership Investment Title 1l Program 14.238 103,109
EDI Special Project Grant 14.246 5,899
$ 255,732
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reperting:
Material weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance materiai io financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
{c be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs

SECTION |

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

169

Ungualified

__yes _X no

_X_vyes none reported

.yes _X.no

___yes X no

__yes X _none reporied

Unqualified



CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION |

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS {Continued)

Any audit findings discicsed that are required io
be reported in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, Section 510{(a)7?

Identification of major program:

CFDA Number

20.106
14.239
11.307

Doilar threshold used fo distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

170

X __vyes no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Airport improvement Program

HUD - Home Partnership Investmeni Title Il Program
Economic Development Revolving Lean Program

$300,00C

yas X no




CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION I
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

2009 - 1. Management of Accounts Payable

Criteria: Generally accepted accounting principles require reporting of all current Habilities whose liquidation is expecied 1o require the use of
current assets when the goods have been received or services have been performed.

Condition: The City did not properly address the above criteria as of June 30, 2009 as it relates to accounts payable within the General Fund,
SPLOST Fund and the Non-Major Funds.

Context: We addressed this matter with City officials and they were able to determine the amount of accounts payable that should be recorded in
these funds as of June 30, 2009.

Effect: An adjusiment to increase accounts payable by $1,645 and increase expenditures in the same amount was required o be made in the
General Fund. An adjustment to increase accounts payable by $17,534 and increase expenditures in the same amount was reqguired to be made
in the SPLOST Fund. An adjustment to decrease accounts payable by $78,091 and decrease expenditures in the same amount was required o
be made in the Non-Major Funds.

Cause: Reconciliations of accounts payable and accrued expenses are not being performed on a monthly basis.

Recommendation: We recommend the City implement procedures to reconcile all accounts payable subsidiary ledgers to the general ledger on a
monthly basis.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: We concur. We will establish procedures to reconcile subsidiary ledgers with the
general iedger on a monihly basis,
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION il
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (Continued)

2009 - 2. Management of Accounts Receivable Accounts

Criteria: Generally accepted accounting principles require revenues to be recognized in the accounting period in which they become both
measurable and available fo finance expenditures of the current period. As a part of these processes, the City should review all revenue
fransactions to determine reporiing in the proper period.

Condition: The City did not properly adjust amounts due from component units in the General Fund, amounts due from other governments in the
Community Development Fund, fees receivable in the Solid Waste Fund, or accounts receivabie in the Non-Major Funds as of June 30, 2009.

Context: See above condition.

Effect: An adjustment tc increase due from component units in the amount of $2,839 and increase revenues in the same amount was required to
be recorded in the General Fund. An adjustment io decrease due from other governments in the amoeunt of $510 and decrease revenues in the
same amount was required to be recorded in the Community Development Fund. An adjustment to increase fees receivable in the amount of 318
and increase revenues in the same amount was required o be recorded in the Solid Waste Fund. An adjustment to increase accounts receivable
in the amount of $198,800, increase deferred revenue in the amount of $54,764, and increase revenue in the amount of $144 036 was required to
be recorded in the Non-Major Funds.

Cause: The City did not review all revenue transactions aiter year-end to determine reporting in the proper period.

Recommendation: We recommend the City review all revenues after year end to determine all items are being properiy recorded.

Views of Responsible Officiais and Planned Corrective Acticn: We concur. We will work to properly record ali receivable balances at the end of
each financial reporiing cycle.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION H
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (Continued)

2009 - 3. Debt Transactions

Criteria: Proprietary funds use the economic rescurces measurement focus, which requires those funds to report all assets and liabilities, including
long-term debt. As part of that reporting process, the Cily should record the issuance of debt and debt related items in the statement of net assets
for all proprietary funds, and should amortize bond premiums, discounts, and related bond costs over the life of the debt.

Condition: The City did not properly record the amortization of the bond premium associated with the Series 2007 bonds in the Sanitary Sewer
Fund.

Context: See above condition.

Effect: An adjustment {o reduce the unamertized balance of bond premiums in the amount $84.678 and o increase amortization expense in the
same amount was required to be recorded in the Sanitary Sewer Fund.

Cause: See above condition.

Recommendation: We recommend the City record amoriization of aif bond premiums, discounts, and related bond costs appropriately as they
occur during the year.

Views of Responsible Officials and Pilanned Corrective Action: We concur with the finding. We will record amortization of all bend premiums,
discounts, and related bond costs appropriately as they occur during the year.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2009 - 4. Seqregation of Duties — ADICA (Blended Component Unit)

Criteria: Internai controls should be in place, which provide reasonabie assurance that an individual cannot misappropriate funds without such
actions being detected during the normal course of business.

Condition/Confext/Cause: Due to the lack of sufficient gualified staff, appropriate segregation of duties does not exist between recording,
distribution, and reconciliation of cash accounts and other operational functions of ADICA.

Effect: Failure to properly segregate duties between recording, distribution, and reconciliation of accounts can lead to misappropriation of funds
that is not detected during the normal course of business.

Recommendation: The Authority should work to properly segregate duties among ADICA staff, as well as implement procedures whereby an
appropriate level of review is performed when overlapping duties exist,

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Correctlive Action: We concur with the recommendation. We will work fo properly segregate duties
where possible and implement a review process for transactions.

2009 - 5. Management of Due to [/ from (Internal} Accounts

Criteria:  Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements cutstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
either “due toffrom cother funds” (the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances toffrom other funds” (the non-current portion of interfund
loans). All other ouistanding balances befween funds are reported as “due to/ffrom other funds”. As part of that process, the City should review the
amounis that should be included in “due toffrom other funds” and “advances fo/from other funds” to determine the proper amounts to be reported
and to determine the existence of infent and ability of each fund {o repay.

Condition: We noted the City did not properly report the due toffrom other funds accounts in the General Fund and Non-Major Funds.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2009 - 5. Management of Due to / from (Internal} Accounis

Coniext: See above condition.

Effect: An adjustment to decrease due fo other funds in the amount of $495,819 and increase fransfers in by the same amount was required o be
recorded in the Non-Major Funds. An adjustment to decrease due from other funds and increase transfers out for the same amount was recorded
in the General Fund.

Cause: All "due to/ffrom” activity between funds was not being properly reviewed, evaluated and recerded at the end of the fiscal year.

Recommendation:. We recommend the City implement procedures to properly record, reconcile, review and evaluate all "due fo/from” and
“advance to/from” activity on a monthly basis.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: We concur. We will work to record and reconcile and evaluate all due toffrom and
advance toffrom fransactions at the end of each financial reporting cycle.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION IH
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2009 - 6. Failure to Maintain the Minimum File Requirements

Federal Program Information:. CFDA No. 10.307
Eccnomic Development Authority Revolving Loan Program
U.S. Department of Commerce
Fiscal Year 2008

Criteria:  The Ecconomic Deveiopment Administration, authorized by PWEDA, as amended by the Economic Development Administration
Reauthorization Act of 2004 (Pub. L. No. 108-373), requires that prior to the disbursement of any EDA funds, the RLF recipient must cerlify that
standard RLF loan documents necessary or advisabie for lending are in place and that these documents have been reviewed by its legal counsel
for adequacy and compliance with the terms and conditions of the grant and applicable State and iccal law. The standard loan documents include,
at a minimum, the (1} loan application, (2) loan agreement, {3) board of directors’ meeting minutes approving the RLF loan, (4) promissory noie, (5)
security agreement(s), (8) deed of frust or mortgage (if applicable), (7) agreement of prior lien holder (if appiicabile), and (8) signed bank turn-down
letter demonstrating that credit is not ctherwise avaitable on terms and conditions that permit the completion or successful operation of the activity
to be financed.

Condition: For the year ended June 30, 2009, loan files did not meet the minimum file requirement as it relates to Board of Directors’ meeting
minutes approval of the RLF loan for five (5) of the loans.

Context: See above condition.

Effect: Because the loan files do not contain the proper approvat for the loans, the City is not in compliance with the reguirement.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION Hi
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2009 - 6. Failure fo Maintain the Minimum File Requirements (Continued}

Cause: Loan files were not being reviewed to verify that all minimum loan file requirements were being met; thus, loan files were not complete.

Recommendation: We recommend the City pericdically review all loan files related to the EDA Revolving Loan Program to verify that all required
documentation is contained in the files.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: We concur. We will establish policies and procedures fo review all loan files fo
verify that the minimum loan file requirements are followed.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2008 - 1. Management of Due to / from (Internal) Accounts

Criteria:  Generally accepted accounting principles reqguire reporting of interfund activity expected to be repaid within a reasonable time as due
to/from {interfund receivables and payables) accounts. As part of that process, the City should review the amounts that shouid be included in due
to/from accounts in each fund to determine the proper ameunts tc be reported at any given time during the fiscal year.

Condition; We noted the City did not properly report the due {offrom other funds accounts in the General Fund, Public Employee Fund, SPLOST
Fund and Sanitary Sewer Fund.

Status: This item was not corrected for the fiscal year ending June 3G, 2008. This is a repeat finding as indicated in the current year Scheduie of
Findings and Questioned Cosis as item 2009-5.

2008 - 2. Management of Accounis Receivable Accounts

Criteria:  Generally accepted accounting principles reguire revenues to be recognized in the accounting period in which they become both
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. As a part of these processes, the City should review afi revenue
transactions to determine reporting in the proper period.

Conditicn: The City did not properly adjust amounts due from cempenent units in the General Fund, amounts due from other governments and
due from component uniis in the Public Employee Deposit Fund, or assessments receivable in the Sanitary Sewer Fund, as of June 30, 2008.

Status: This item was not corrected for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This is a repeat finding as indicated in the current year Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2008-2.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2008 - 3. Management of Capital Asset Accounts

Criteria: Governmental {general) capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized at cost in the government-
wide statement of net assets. Additionally, generally accepted accounting principles require the reporting of all capital assets at their historical cost,
which is written off periodically, or depreciated, in a systematic and rational manner.  Assets donated by outside parties should aisc be reported,
but at the estimated fair value on the date of the donation.

Condition: The City did not properly account for capital asset activity in the Public Improvement Fund, properly capitalize capital assets and record
depreciation in the Sanitary Sewer Fund, or record contributed capital assets in the Sanitary Sewer Fund and Transit Fund during the year ended
June 30, 2008.

Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

2008 - 4, Fund Balance

Criteria: Internal controls shouid be in place io ensure that any prior year audit adjusiments are posted and fund balance reconciied to the prior
year's financial staiements.

Condition: For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, the City did not reconcile fund balance of the Public Improvement Fund tc the prior year's
financial statements.

Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2008 - 5. Recording Investment Activity

Criteria:  Significant balances and transactions in any operation should be recerded, reconciled, reviewed and adjusted on a monthly basis.
Specifically, investment fransactions warrant this exercise monthly, inclusive of reviewing and reconciling the monthly statements, trial balances
and other supporting documentation provided by externatl parties.

Condition: We noted the City did not record interest activity in the General Fund, Public Improvement Fund, or SPLOST Fund during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008.

Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
2008 - 6. Taxes Receivable

Criteria: Generally accepied accounting principles require revenue fo be recognized in the accounting period in which it becomes both measurable
and available to finance expenditures of the current period.

Condition: The City did not properly record year end property taxes receivable and related accounts in the General Fund as of June 30, 2008.
Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

2008 - 7. Debt Transactions

Criteria: Proprietary funds use the economic resources measurement focus, which requires those funds to report all assets and liabilities, including
long-term debt. As part of that reporting process, the City should record the issuance of debt and debt related items in the statement of net assets
for all proprietary funds, and should amortize bond costs over the life of the debt.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2008 - 7. Debt Transactions (Continued)

Condition: The City did not properly record the amortization of deferred bond costs in the Sanitary Sewer Fund.

Status: This item was not corrected for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This is a repeat finding as indicated in the current year Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2009-3.

2008 - 8. Undercollateralization of City Deposits

Criteria:  The Official Code of Georgia (OCGA) Section 45-8-12 (¢} requires all depositories of public funds to pledge securities of not less than
110% of the depoesiied public funds.

Condition: For the year ended June 30, 2008, the City's deposits held af one financial institution were under collateralized.
Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

2008 - 2. Blended Component Unit Budget - ADICA

Criteria: Hcuse Bill 1364 of the 1998 session of the Georgia General Assembly requires an annual balanced budget for the general fund, each
special revenue fund and each debt service fund and reguires a project length balanced budget for each capital projecis fund.

Condition: For the year ended June 30, 2008, no budget was adopted for the ADICA Special Revenue Fund. A budget should be adogpted for this
fund in accordance with the Official Code of Georgia (OCGA) Sections 36-81-2 through 36-81-6.

Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2008 - 10. Failure to Complete Repairs in a Timely Manner

Federal Program Information: CFDA No. 14.239
HUD — Home Partnership Investment Title |l Program
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Fiscal Year 2008

Criteria:  The HOME Investment Partnership Program established by Title il of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act (42 USC
12701-12838 and 3535(d)), requires that any repairs identified during the non-Federal entity’s inspection of a property be completed in a timely

manner.

Condition: For the year ended June 30, 2008, the need for repairs was identified during the inspection process for eight (8) properties. These
repairs were not completed in a timely manner for four (4) of these properties.

Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 200¢.

Criteria:  The HOME Investmeni Parinership Program established by Titie !l of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Mousing Act (42 USC
12701-1283% and 3535(d)}, requires that the rent being charged to a family not exceed 30% of the family's annual adjusted gross income.
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CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2008 - 11. Eligibility for Individuals

Federal Program information. CFDA No. 14.239
HUD — Home Partnership invesiment Title || Program
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Fiscal Year 2008

Condition: For the year ended June 30, 2008, we noted one (1) instance in which a family was being charged rent greater than the 30% imitation.

Status: This finding was corrected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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AULDIN
& JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT
ON LOCAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Commission
City of Alhany, Georgia

We have examined management's assertion included in the accompanying State of Georgia Grant Certification Form about the
City of Albany, Georgia's compliance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2609, with the requirement to use grant proceeds solely for the purpose
or purposes for which the grant was made for Local Assistance Grant #03-C-L-108. Management is responsible for the City of Albany, Georgia's

compiance with this requirement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assertion about the City of Albany, Georgia's
compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was made in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on & test basis, evidence supporting the City of Albany, Georgia's compliance with the above
mentioned requirement and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We belisve that our examination

provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City of Albany, Georgia's compiiance
with the specified reguirement,

fr our opinion, management's assertion that the City of Albany, Georgia complied with the aforementioned requirement for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is fairly stated, in all material respects.

435 MULBERRY STREET « POST OFFICE BOX 1877 «+ MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 « 478-464-8000  FAX 478-464-8051 » www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, members of the City Commission, management of the City,
and the Georgia Department of Audits and Accounts, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

T ceettene F rhina, e

Macon, Georgia
December 28, 2009
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STATE OF GEORGIA GRANT CERTIFICATION FORM

L.ocal Government

City of Albany

information for Year Ended

June 30, 2008

State Awarding Agency

Georgia Dept. of Community Affairs

Grant Identification Number

03-C-L-108

Grant Title

Siater King Adult Day Care Center - Local Assistance Grant

Grant Award Date

July 1, 2002

Grant Amount

$20,000
Baltance - Prior Year (Cash
or Accrued or Deferred $20,000
Revenue)}
Grant Receipts or Revenue
Recoegnized $-0-
Grant Disbursements or
Expenditures $-0-
Balance - Current Year (Cash
or Accrued or Deferred $20,000

Revenue)
(Line H+ Line | -Line J)

Signature of Chief Elected Official

Signature of Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Local Government Officials

! have reviewed the information presented above and certify that it is accurate and correct. | further cerfify that the proceeds of the grant award identified
above were used solely for the express purpose or purposes for which the grant was made. | understand that failure to comply with the provisions of the
law applicable to this grant award shall result in a forfeiture of such grant and the return to the state of any such grant funds received.

Date

Date
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